
 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 

 
 

HYBRID MEETING OF THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

 

Thursday, October 19, 2023 @ 10:45am 
 
 

 

Board Meeting: 
https://kcha-

org.zoom.us/j/86071292163?pwd=f2yC7IaFxRESx5zvS8IZw2G
2ocTE2l.1 

 

Meeting ID: 860 7129 2163 
Passcode: 149118 

 

Phone: 253 215 8782 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Hillsview Apartments 
830 Township St 

Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 

https://kcha-org.zoom.us/j/86071292163?pwd=f2yC7IaFxRESx5zvS8IZw2G2ocTE2l.1
https://kcha-org.zoom.us/j/86071292163?pwd=f2yC7IaFxRESx5zvS8IZw2G2ocTE2l.1
https://kcha-org.zoom.us/j/86071292163?pwd=f2yC7IaFxRESx5zvS8IZw2G2ocTE2l.1


 

 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 
 

HYBRID MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
AGENDA 

 

Thursday, October 19, 2023 - 10:45 am 
 

Zoom and Hillsview Apartments – 830 Township Street, Sedro-Woolley, WA 98284 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call       
 

III. Public Comment 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes     
 
A. Board Meeting Minutes – August 30, 2023     1  

  

V. Action Items for Discussion & Approval   
 
A. Approval of Voucher Report August 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 2 

 

B. Resolution No. 489 – A Resolution Adopting the Annual  3 
Civil Rights Certification Required in Conjunction with the Receipt 
Of the Federal Fiscal Year 2023 Allocation of Funds from the HUD  
Capital Fund Program 
 

C. Resolution No. 494 –        4 
  Authorizing Changes to the Public Housing Admission and Continued  
  Occupancy Policy (ACOP) Relating to Household Eligibility   

 

D. Resolution No. 491 –        5 
  Authorizing Restated and Amended By-laws of the Authority      

 

E. Resolution No. 492 –        6 
  Authorizing Changes to the Public Housing Admission and Continued  
  Occupancy Policy (ACOP)         
 
F. Resolution No. 493 – Acknowledging Receipt of Financial   7 

Statement Audit  Examinations and Attestations for the period  
January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 
 

G. Resolution No. 490 – Adopt Procurement Policy  
  

 
 



 

 

VI. Reports 
A. Financial Report for August 2023       8 

 

B. Housing Management Report for August/September 2023  9 
 

C. Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority Inventory Policy   10 
 

D. Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority Cost Allocation Plan   11 
 
 

VII. New Business    
  

VIII. Executive Session   
 

A. To discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters relating to agency 
enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing the agency 
litigation or potential litigation to which the agency, the governing body, or a member 
acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party, when public knowledge 
regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or financial consequence 
to the agency. (RCW 42.30.110 (1) i)) 

 
This subsection (1)(i) does not permit a governing body to hold an executive session  
solely because an attorney representing the agency is present. For purposes of this  
subsection (1)(i), "potential litigation" means matters protected by RPC 1.6 or  
RCW 5.60.060(2)(a) concerning: 

 
(iii) Litigation or legal risks of a proposed action or current practice that the agency  
has identified when public discussion of the litigation or legal risks is likely to result in  
an adverse legal or financial consequence to the agency. 

 
 

IX.  Adjournment  
  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=5.60.060


T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
1 



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 

Wednesday, August 30, 2023

 
I.  Call to Order 
 

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority was called 
to order by Chair Laurie Fellers at 10:45a.m., on Wednesday, August 30, 2023.    

 
II.   Roll Call 
 

Present:   Commissioner Laurie Fellers (Chair), Commissioner Reta Stephenson (Vice-Chair), 
Commissioner Kacy Johnson, Commissioner Dona Cowan, Commissioner Katherine 
Olson and Commissioner Lesa Sheahan 

 
Staff:  Robin Walls, Anneliese Gryta, Saeed Hajarizadeh, Tesh Assefa, Caprice 

Witherspoon and Candace Winfield 
 

III. Public Comment 
  

  No public comment. 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. June 14, 2023 - Board of Commissioners’ Meeting Minutes 
 

Commissioner Dona Cowan moved for approval of the Minutes, seconded by Commissioner Reta 
Stephenson; the Board unanimously approved the Minutes from June 14, 2023.   

 
V. Action Items for Discussion & Approval 
   

A. Approval of Voucher Report June 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023                                                  
         
 Questions of Commissioners’ were answered. 
 

Commissioner Dona Cowan moved for approval of the Voucher Report, seconded by 
Commissioner Reta Stephenson; the board unanimously approved the Voucher Report for June 1, 
2023 to July 31, 2023.  
 

B. Resolution No. 486 – Authorizing Changes to the Public Housing Admission and 
Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) Relating to Household Eligibility 

     
Commissioner Dona Cowan moved for approval, seconded by Commissioner Reta Stephenson; 
the board unanimously approved Resolution No. 486. 
 

C. Resolution No. 487 – Authorizing Approval of a Disposition Policy 
     

Commissioner Kacy Johnson moved for approval, with corrections of typo in section 5.3 of the 
policy -changes the word one to five, seconded by Commissioner Reta Stephenson; the board 
unanimously approved Resolution No. 487. 
 
 



Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority  
August 30, 2023 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 
 

D. Resolution No. 488 – Recognizing the Dedicated Service of Commissioner Kacy Johnson 
Throughout her Tenure on the Board of Commissioners of the Sedro-Woolley Housing 
Authority from 1991 through 2023 and Expressing the Appreciation of Board Members and 
Staff of the Housing Authority 

     
Commissioner Reta Stephenson moved for approval, seconded by Commissioner Dona Cowan; 
the board unanimously approved Resolution No. 488. 

 
VI. Reports 

 
A. Financial Report for June 2023 

 
   Tesh Assefa, Financial Reporting Manager explained the Financial Report for June 2023. 
   
  Questions of Commissioners’ were answered.  

 
B. Housing Management Report for June/July 2023 

 
    Caprice Witherspoon, Senior Property Manager gave an overview of the report.  
 

C. Update on the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority HUD Monitoring Review 
 
Anneliese Gryta, Deputy Executive Director of Housing Assistance Programs and Robin Walls,  

  Executive Director/CEO gave an update on the SWHA HUD Monitoring Review. 
 
VII.  Executive Session 
  

A. To review the performance of a public employee (RCW 42.30.110 (1) g)) 
 
11:20am – Board meeting was suspended. 
 
11:29am – Board meeting was re-convened. 

 
VIII. Adjournment 
 

There being no further business before the Board of Commissioners, the meeting was adjourned 
at 11:31 a.m. 

  
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 
 
 

 ___________________________ 
LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 

Board of Commissioners 
 

_________________________ 
ROBIN WALLS 
Executive Director/CEO 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
2 



 SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

 

FROM: Alfred Dulay, Accounting Manager 

 

DATE: October 5, 2023 

 

RE:  Approval of Vouchers August 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 

 

I, Alfred Dulay, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been 

furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described herein and that the 

expenditures represented by the summary listed below were just obligations of the Sedro-

Woolley Housing Authority, and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify said 

claims. 

 

 

 

     __________________________________ 

     Alfred Dulay 

     Accounting Manager 

     October 5, 2023 

 

 

 

Expenditures to Sedro-Woolley  

Operations  

    Directly to Cedar Grove 31,179.46 

    Cedar Grove Voids 

    Cedar Grove Total 

 

    Directly to Hillsview 

    Hillsview Voids 

    Hillsview Total 

-  

31,179.46 

 

27,902.63 

-  

27,902.63 

  

Total Expenditures 59,082.09 

  

 

 



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

CEDAR GROVE

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C. WIRE - WE 07/22/23 8/4/2023 347212

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 20.99              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 7.23.23 8/11/2023 347238

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 18.89              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 7/30-8/6/2023 8/18/2023 347345

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.72              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WHITE 8/5/23 8/18/2023 347444

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 07/29/23 - C. WIRE 8/25/2023 347540

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/12/23 8/25/2023 347540

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 20.99              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 8/20/23 9/1/2023 347567

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/19/23 9/1/2023 347646

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/26/23 9/8/2023 347717

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 7.33                BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 09/09/23 - C. WIRE 9/15/2023 347842

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 7.04                BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 9/2/2023 9/15/2023 347842

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 20.99              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 9/3/2023 9/15/2023 347754

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.62              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 09/16/23 - C. WIRE 9/22/2023 347964

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 18.89              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 9/10-17/23 9/22/2023 347881

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 11.18              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC W/E 09/23/23 - C. WIRE 9/29/2023 348059

409003 Benefits-Uniforms 41.31              IMAGE SOURCE INC WORK CLOTHES 9/1/2023 347632

410000 Admin Supplies 0.13                CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC CONTRACT 2209920 8/18/2023 347430

410000 Admin Supplies 4.54                CRYSTAL & SIERRA SPRINGS water - Hillsview 9/1/2023 347566

410000 Admin Supplies 0.13                CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC CONTRACT 2209920 9/15/2023 347823

411100 Comp Equip-Hardware 1.41                DUO SECURITY LLC DUO MFA EDITION 9/15/2023 347838

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 26.50              CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC MS EA M365 E5 FULL SUITE - 100 QTY 8/11/2023 347240

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 5.52                RIGHT! SYSTEMS INC Q9Y59AAE/HPE ARUBA CENTRAL AP FND 3YR SUB 8/18/2023 347411

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 3.36                CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC VEEAM LICENSE 8/18/2023 347347

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 19.30              RIGHT! SYSTEMS INC HUNTRESS LABS 9/15/2023 347808

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 0.40                DUO SECURITY LLC DUO MFA EDITION 9/15/2023 347838

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 11.94              CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC COMPUTER SUPPLIES 9/22/2023 347882

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 1.28                CANON FINANCIAL CONTRACT 0667544-005 9/1/2023 347614

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 1.42                QUADIENT LEASING USA INC CUST 00904969 9/15/2023 347832

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 1.28                CANON FINANCIAL CONTRACT 0667544-005 9/22/2023 347935

420908 Professional Services-Comps 4.18                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC CONSULTING SVCS - JUN/JUL-23 8/4/2023 347191

420908 Professional Services-Comps 8.75                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC AUG-23 BILLING PERIOD 8/11/2023 347282

420908 Professional Services-Comps 1.62                MARTIN S. COX SHAREPOINT SUPPORT - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347323

420908 Professional Services-Comps 8.75                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC SEP-23 BILLING PERIOD 8/18/2023 347405

420908 Professional Services-Comps 0.20                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC PROFESSIONAL SVCS 8/18/2023 347405

420908 Professional Services-Comps 8.75                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC ENHANCE MANAGED SVCS 9/8/2023 347691

421901 Admin -Records Management 0.02                PROSHRED SEATTLE SHREDDING SVC - APR-23 8/11/2023 347299

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 9.55                NET2VAULT LLC SERVER SVC - JUL-23 8/4/2023 347200

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 9.55                NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/8/2023 347703

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 9.55                NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/8/2023 347703

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 9.55                NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/15/2023 347812

440011 Travel-Mileage Reimbursement 33.41              CANDACE WINFIELD 7/19-8/9/23 MILEAGE 8/18/2023 347451

1 of 6



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

440011 Travel-Mileage Reimbursement 40.09              CANDACE WINFIELD 6/18-30/23 MILEAGE 9/8/2023 347720

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.23                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 2065741100383B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.35                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 206T301473386B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.35                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 206T301410382B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.40                INTRADO LIFE & SAFETY INC 911 SVC 8/18/2023 347429

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.35                INTRADO LIFE & SAFETY INC 911 SVC JULY 2023 9/1/2023 347627

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.35                CENTURYLINK 8/23-9/23/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.35                CENTURYLINK 8/23-9/23/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.23                CENTURYLINK 8/25-9/25/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450100 Comm-Long Distance Charges 0.35                CENTURYLINK MONTHLY CHGS 9/15/2023 347843

450100 Comm-Long Distance Charges 0.24                CENTURYLINK MONTHLY CHGS 9/29/2023 348060

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 14.31              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS-SEDRO WOOLLEY 8/11/2023 347244

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 12.68              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS 8/11/2023 347244

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 19.25              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BG CHECKS 8/18/2023 347350

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 10.18              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BG CHECKS 8/18/2023 347350

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 6.94                NATIONAL CREDIT REPORTING BACKGROUND CHECK 8/18/2023 347363

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 24.75              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECK SEDRO WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 9/8/2023 347680

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 2.84                NATIONAL CREDIT REPORTING BACKGROUND CHECK 9/15/2023 347769

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 12.01              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS 9/15/2023 347757

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 13.37              MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC AUGUST STATEMENTS 8/18/2023 347334

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 12.75              MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC SEPTEMBER STATEMENTS 9/1/2023 347561

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 6.67                QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC POSTAGE 9/1/2023 347642

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 6.92                QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC ACCT 7900 0440 8081 6949 9/22/2023 347959

493100 Other Admin Exp-Mail Handling 2.30                MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC AUGUST STATEMENTS 8/18/2023 347334

493100 Other Admin Exp-Mail Handling 2.30                MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC SEPTEMBER STATEMENTS 9/1/2023 347561

520104 Social Service -Interpretation 5.86                LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES, INC INTERPRETATION 8/25/2023 347476

620013 Occ Exp-Maint -Yard/Garden/Landscaping 2,497.00        SKAGIT LANDSCAPING LLC WEEKLY YARD CARE JULY 2023 9/15/2023 347841

620013 Occ Exp-Maint -Yard/Garden/Landscaping 2,497.00        SKAGIT LANDSCAPING LLC WEEKLY YAR CARE AUGUST 2023 9/15/2023 347841

620016 Occ Exp-Maint -Hazardous Material 13,976.37      ABATEMENT AND DECONTAMINATION SPECIALISTSABATEMENT AND DECONTAMINATION 8/25/2023 347553

620016 Occ Exp-Maint -Hazardous Material 2,355.63        PBS ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL IAQ INVESTIGATION 9/15/2023 347760

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 128.87            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 173.97            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 109.55            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 141.75            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 161.08            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 94.92              PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 257.70            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 167.52            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 225.50            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 136.37            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 116.90            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 136.37            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

2 of 6



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 129.88            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 155.84            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 79.15              PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 95.66              PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 227.26            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 83.27              PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 162.35            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 129.88            PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/29/2023 348028

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 763.33            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 8/11/2023 347280

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 453.74            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 8/11/2023 347280

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 302.88            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 8/11/2023 347280

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 453.74            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 9/22/2023 347917

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 763.33            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 9/22/2023 347917

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 302.88            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 9/22/2023 347917

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 57.44              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 8/4/2023 347182

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 43.05              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 8/4/2023 347182

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 15.83              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 8/4/2023 347182

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 67.49              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/15/2023 347787

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 6.50                PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/15/2023 347787

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 46.31              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/15/2023 347787

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 16.55              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/15/2023 347787

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 55.27              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/29/2023 348023

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 18.04              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/29/2023 348023

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 80.49              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/29/2023 348023

660201 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity-Closing Bill 13.07              PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 8/4/2023 347182

660300 Occ Exp-Utilities-Natural Gas 10.86              CASCADE NATURAL GAS CO GAS 8/18/2023 347384

660301 Occ Exp-Utilities-Natural Gas-Closing Bill 9.48                CASCADE NATURAL GAS CO GAS 8/18/2023 347384

660301 Occ Exp-Utilities-Natural Gas-Closing Bill 13.61              CASCADE NATURAL GAS CO GAS 9/15/2023 347784

660301 Occ Exp-Utilities-Natural Gas-Closing Bill 10.86              CASCADE NATURAL GAS CO GAS 9/15/2023 347784

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 71.60              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 8/11/2023 347280

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 42.33              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 8/11/2023 347280

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 28.28              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 8/11/2023 347280

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 42.33              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 9/22/2023 347917

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 71.60              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 9/22/2023 347917

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 28.28              CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 9/22/2023 347917

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 725.57            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 8/11/2023 347280

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 320.83            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 8/11/2023 347280

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 215.57            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 8/11/2023 347280

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 320.83            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 9/22/2023 347917

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 725.57            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 9/22/2023 347917

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 215.57            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 9/22/2023 347917

3 of 6



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

 SUBTOTAL CEDAR GROVE 31,179.46     

CEDAR GROVE VOIDS -                

TOTAL CEDAR GROVE 31,179.46     

HILLSVIEW 

Account Account(T) Amount Vendor(T) Voucher Description Pay Date Check No

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C. WIRE - WE 07/22/23 8/4/2023 347212

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 62.65              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 7.23.23 8/11/2023 347238

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 56.38              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 7/30-8/6/2023 8/18/2023 347345

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 35.17              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WHITE 8/5/23 8/18/2023 347444

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 07/29/23 - C. WIRE 8/25/2023 347540

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/12/23 8/25/2023 347540

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 62.65              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 8/20/23 9/1/2023 347567

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/19/23 9/1/2023 347646

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 8/26/23 9/8/2023 347717

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 22.00              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 09/09/23 - C. WIRE 9/15/2023 347842

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 21.13              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC C WIRE 9/2/2023 9/15/2023 347842

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 62.65              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 9/3/2023 9/15/2023 347754

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 34.85              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC WE 09/16/23 - C. WIRE 9/22/2023 347964

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 56.38              ALMOND & ASSOCIATES M AMOS 9/10-17/23 9/22/2023 347881

400100 Salaries-Temp Employees 33.54              BEACON HILL STAFFING GROUP LLC W/E 09/23/23 - C. WIRE 9/29/2023 348059

409003 Benefits-Uniforms 123.94            IMAGE SOURCE INC WORK CLOTHES 9/1/2023 347632

410000 Admin Supplies 0.38                CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC CONTRACT 2209920 8/18/2023 347430

410000 Admin Supplies 13.63              CRYSTAL & SIERRA SPRINGS water - Hillsview 9/1/2023 347566

410000 Admin Supplies 0.39                CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC CONTRACT 2209920 9/15/2023 347823

411100 Comp Equip-Hardware 4.22                DUO SECURITY LLC DUO MFA EDITION 9/15/2023 347838

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 79.49              CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC MS EA M365 E5 FULL SUITE - 100 QTY 8/11/2023 347240

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 16.55              RIGHT! SYSTEMS INC Q9Y59AAE/HPE ARUBA CENTRAL AP FND 3YR SUB 8/18/2023 347411

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 10.08              CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC VEEAM LICENSE 8/18/2023 347347

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 57.90              RIGHT! SYSTEMS INC HUNTRESS LABS 9/15/2023 347808

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 1.19                DUO SECURITY LLC DUO MFA EDITION 9/15/2023 347838

411104 Comp Equip-Software as a Service Fees 35.81              CDW/COMPUTER CENTERS INC COMPUTER SUPPLIES 9/22/2023 347882

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 3.83                CANON FINANCIAL CONTRACT 0667544-005 9/1/2023 347614

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 4.25                QUADIENT LEASING USA INC CUST 00904969 9/15/2023 347832

411901 Equip-Other-Leased/Rented 3.83                CANON FINANCIAL CONTRACT 0667544-005 9/22/2023 347935

420908 Professional Services-Comps 12.54              HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC CONSULTING SVCS - JUN/JUL-23 8/4/2023 347191

420908 Professional Services-Comps 26.25              HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC AUG-23 BILLING PERIOD 8/11/2023 347282

420908 Professional Services-Comps 4.85                MARTIN S. COX SHAREPOINT SUPPORT - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347323

420908 Professional Services-Comps 26.25              HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC SEP-23 BILLING PERIOD 8/18/2023 347405

4 of 6



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

420908 Professional Services-Comps 0.60                HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC PROFESSIONAL SVCS 8/18/2023 347405

420908 Professional Services-Comps 26.25              HYLAND SOFTWARE, INC ENHANCE MANAGED SVCS 9/8/2023 347691

421901 Admin -Records Management 0.07                PROSHRED SEATTLE SHREDDING SVC - APR-23 8/11/2023 347299

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 28.65              NET2VAULT LLC SERVER SVC - JUL-23 8/4/2023 347200

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 28.65              NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/8/2023 347703

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 28.65              NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/8/2023 347703

421904 Admin - Cloud Recovery Services 28.65              NET2VAULT LLC MANAGED VAULTING 9/15/2023 347812

440011 Travel-Mileage Reimbursement 100.21            CANDACE WINFIELD 7/19-8/9/23 MILEAGE 8/18/2023 347451

440011 Travel-Mileage Reimbursement 120.25            CANDACE WINFIELD 6/18-30/23 MILEAGE 9/8/2023 347720

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.06                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 206T301410382B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.69                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 2065741100383B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.06                CENTURYLINK ACCT# 206T301473386B - JUL-23 8/11/2023 347260

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.21                INTRADO LIFE & SAFETY INC 911 SVC 8/18/2023 347429

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.05                INTRADO LIFE & SAFETY INC 911 SVC JULY 2023 9/1/2023 347627

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 0.69                CENTURYLINK 8/25-9/25/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.06                CENTURYLINK 8/23-9/23/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450002 Comm-Phones Lines-Service-Digital Voice 1.06                CENTURYLINK 8/23-9/23/23 CHGS 9/8/2023 347684

450003 Comm-Phones Lines-Security 135.00            CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY SERVICES JULY 2023 CHGS 9/1/2023 347608

450003 Comm-Phones Lines-Security 135.00            CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AUGUST 2023 CHGS 9/15/2023 347802

450100 Comm-Long Distance Charges 1.05                CENTURYLINK MONTHLY CHGS 9/15/2023 347843

450100 Comm-Long Distance Charges 0.71                CENTURYLINK MONTHLY CHGS 9/29/2023 348060

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 42.94              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS-SEDRO WOOLLEY 8/11/2023 347244

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 38.04              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS 8/11/2023 347244

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 57.75              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BG CHECKS 8/18/2023 347350

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 30.55              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BG CHECKS 8/18/2023 347350

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 20.81              NATIONAL CREDIT REPORTING BACKGROUND CHECK 8/18/2023 347363

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 74.25              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECK SEDRO WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 9/8/2023 347680

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 8.53                NATIONAL CREDIT REPORTING BACKGROUND CHECK 9/15/2023 347769

491000 Admin Exp-Criminal/Background Checks 36.04              WASHINGTON STATE PATROL BACKGROUND CHECKS 9/15/2023 347757

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 40.11              MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC AUGUST STATEMENTS 8/18/2023 347334

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 38.24              MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC SEPTEMBER STATEMENTS 9/1/2023 347561

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 20.00              QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC POSTAGE 9/1/2023 347642

493000 Other Admin Exp-Postage 20.77              QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC ACCT 7900 0440 8081 6949 9/22/2023 347959

493100 Other Admin Exp-Mail Handling 6.89                MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC AUGUST STATEMENTS 8/18/2023 347334

493100 Other Admin Exp-Mail Handling 6.89                MAIL ADVERTISING BUREAU INC SEPTEMBER STATEMENTS 9/1/2023 347561

520104 Social Service -Interpretation 17.59              LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES, INC INTERPRETATION 8/25/2023 347476

620002 Occ Exp-Maint -A & E 636.00            345 CONSTRUCTION AND FLOORING CO. CARPET 9/15/2023 347852

620006 Occ Exp-Maint -Floor Covering 2,835.15        345 CONSTRUCTION AND FLOORING CO. CARPET 9/15/2023 347852

620009 Occ Exp-Maint -Painting 65.00              345 CONSTRUCTION AND FLOORING CO. CARPET 9/15/2023 347852

620013 Occ Exp-Maint -Yard/Garden/Landscaping 1,188.00        SKAGIT LANDSCAPING LLC WEEKLY YARD CARE JULY 2023 9/15/2023 347841

620013 Occ Exp-Maint -Yard/Garden/Landscaping 1,188.00        SKAGIT LANDSCAPING LLC WEEKLY YAR CARE AUGUST 2023 9/15/2023 347841

620016 Occ Exp-Maint -Hazardous Material 1,880.00        ABATEMENT AND DECONTAMINATION SPECIALISTSDRUG TESTING - REF PO# 89963 8/25/2023 347553

5 of 6



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY

Accounts Payable Report

8/01/2023 TO 9/30/2023

Account  Major Account  Check

No.  Description Amount  Vendor Name  Voucher Description Date Number

660000 Occ Exp-Utilities-Water 2,398.08        PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT #1 WATER  9/22/2023 347912

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 4,466.76        CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 8/11/2023 347280

660100 Occ Exp-Utilities-Sewer 4,467.89        CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY SEWER 9/22/2023 347917

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 987.98            PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 8/4/2023 347182

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 1,094.59        PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/15/2023 347787

660200 Occ Exp-Utilities-Electricity 829.07            PUGET SOUND ENERGY-BOT-01H ELECTRIC 9/29/2023 348023

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 412.93            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 8/11/2023 347280

660500 Occ Exp-Utilities-Surface Water Mgmt 413.09            CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY STORM 9/22/2023 347917

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 1,430.09        CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 8/11/2023 347280

660700 Occ Exp-Utilities-Garbage 1,461.95        CITY OF SEDRO WOOLLEY GARBAGE 9/22/2023 347917

 SUBTOTAL HILLSVIEW 27,902.63     

VOIDS -                

TOTAL HILLSVIEW 27,902.63     

59,082.09     TOTAL SEDRO WOOLLEY

6 of 6



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
3 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

RESOLUTION NO. 489 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL CIVIL RIGHTS CERTIFICATION REQUIRED 

IN CONJUCTION WITH THE RECEIPT OF THE FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2023   

ALLOCATION OF FUNDS FROM THE HUD CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the 24 CFR 905.300 establishes the HUD requirements for the Housing Authority’s 

annual receipt of Capital Fund Program (CFP) funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority has been awarded $320,263.00 in CFP funds for 2023; and 

WHEREAS, one of the requirements are that the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners 

certify that the Authority will carry out the public housing program in compliance with various federal 

acts listed in the attached Civil Rights Certification (HUD-50077-CR); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, THAT: 

SECTION 1. In 2023, the public housing program will continue to be carried out in conformance 

with the requirements of the attached “Civil Rights Certification.” 

SECTION 2. Robin Walls, Secretary/Treasurer of the Board of Commissioners is authorized to 

sign the attached “Civil Rights Certification” and submit it to HUD in compliance with the requirements 

for receipt of CFP funds for federal fiscal year 2023. 

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AT AN OPEN PUBLIC MEETING THIS 19th DAY OF 

OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

 

            

 _____________________________________ 

LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 

Board of Commissioners 
 

______________________________ 

ROBIN WALLS 

Secretary-Treasurer 



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Previous version is obsolete                      Page 1 of 1                                                  form HUD-50077-CR (3/31/2024)  

Civil Rights Certification 

(Qualified PHAs) 

      U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Office of Public and Indian Housing 
OMB Approval No. 2577-0226 

Expires 3/31/2024 

 
                    

Civil Rights Certification 

Annual Certification and Board Resolution 

Acting on behalf of the Board of Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency (PHA) listed below, as its Chairperson or other 
authorized PHA official if there is no Board of Commissioners, I approve the submission of the 5-Year PHA Plan , hereinafter 
referred to as” the Plan”,  of which this document is a part, and make the following certification and agreements with the Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for the fiscal year beginning 2023  in which the PHA receives assistance under 42 U.S.C. 
1437f and/or 1437g in connection with the mission, goals, and objectives of the public housing agency and implementation thereof:  

The PHA certifies that it will carry out the public housing program of the agency in conformity with title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-2000d—4), the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 
12101 et seq.), and other applicable civil rights requirements and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in 
the administration of the program. In addition, if it administers a Housing Choice Voucher Program, the PHA 
certifies that it will administer the program in conformity with the Fair Housing Act, title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and 
other applicable civil rights requirements, and that it will affirmatively further fair housing in the administration 
of the program. The PHA will affirmatively further fair housing, which means that it will take meaningful 
actions to further the goals identified in the Assessment of Fair Housing (AFH) conducted in accordance with 
the requirements of 24 CFR § 5.150 through 5.180, that it will take no action that is materially inconsistent with 
its obligation to affirmatively further fair housing, and that it will address fair housing issues and contributing 
factors in its programs, in accordance with 24 CFR § 903.7(o)(3). The PHA will fulfill the requirements at 24 
CFR § 903.7(o) and 24 CFR § 903.15(d). Until such time as the PHA is required to submit an AFH, the PHA 
will fulfill the requirements at 24 CFR § 903.7(o) promulgated prior to August 17, 2015, which means that it 
examines its programs or proposed programs; identifies any impediments to fair housing choice within those 
programs; addresses those impediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the resources available; works with 
local jurisdictions to implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to affirmatively further fair housing that 
require the PHA’s involvement; and maintains records reflecting these analyses and actions.  
 
 
Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley  WA030 
PHA Name        PHA Number/HA Code  

I hereby certify that all the statement above, as well as any information provided in the accompaniment herewith, is true and accurate. Warning:  HUD will prosecute 
false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)  

Name of Executive Director: Robin Walls     Name of Board Chairperson:   Laurie Fellers 

 

Signature     Date   Signature      Date 

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to collect the information requested in this form by virtue of Title 12, U.S. Code, Section 1701 et seq., 
and regulations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations.  Responses to the collection of information are required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit.  
The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.  The information is collected to ensure that PHAs carry out applicable civil rights requirements. 

Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 0.16 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data 
sources, gathering, and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. HUD may not collect this information, and respondents are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.   



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
4 



 

  SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 
 

FROM: Anneliese Gryta 
 
DATE: October 19, 2023 
 
RE: Resolution No. 494 - Approval of the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority’s 

(SWHA’s) Disposition Policy - Corrections 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attached, for your review and approval, is a Disposition Policy to help ensure compliance with 
federal regulations.  The purpose of the Disposition Policy is to establish terms, conditions, 
procedures and guidelines for disposition of the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA) 
items of property.  This policy was approved at the August 30, 2023 board meeting, but several 
typographical errors were noticed after the meeting. This updated policy corrects those errors. 
 
Prior to implementing this policy changes, SWHA must have Board approval of related changes.  
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 494, effective immediately. 



 

Sedro Wooley Housing Authority 
 

DISPOSITION POLICY 
 

1.0 PURPOSE 
 
To establish terms, conditions, procedures and guidelines for disposition of the Sedro-
Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA) items of property.  This policy outlines the 
circumstances under which employees will be authorized to conduct disposition 
transactions to assure the overall best interests of the SWHA are served.   

 
2.0 SCOPE 

 
All SWHA Employees, Offices/Departments.   

 
3.0 REFERENCES 

 
RCW 35.82(5)  
2 CFR 200.313 and 24 CFR 903.7(q) 
SWHA Personnel Policies and Procedures 
SWHA Procurement Policies and Procedures 

 
4.0 POLICY 
 

The SWHA shall dispose of all property that is surplus to the needs of the SWHA either 
due to replacement, obsolescence or when maintenance or storage costs exceed the 
property’s functional value to the SWHA.  The Board of Commissioners and the 
Executive Director shall have overall responsibility for the administration of the 
Disposition Policy.  The Executive Director is authorized to delegate this authority.  The 
Delegate shall be responsible for the overall execution of the disposition activities as 
prescribed by the Policy.  The Delegate may not re-delegate this responsibility either in 
part or in whole without prior approval of the Executive Director.  The Disposition Policy 
must conform to the requirements of the Department of Housing and Urban 
Development where related to administration of programs under annual contributions 
contract.  The Policy must also conform to all Executive Orders and State Law as 
applicable.   
 

5.0 DEFINITIONS 
 

5.1 A Disposition  
 
A transaction related to a single item of real or personal property.  Dispositions 
of a number of non-fungible items shall be considered as individual dispositions 
with respect to each item.  Disposition of a group of fungible items shall be 
considered as a single disposition. 

  



 

5.2 Formal Disposition  
 
A disposition of personal property with an estimated fair value of One Thousand 
($1,000) or more. 

 
5.3 General Disposition  

 
A disposition of personal property with an estimated face value of less than Five 
Thousand ($5,000). 
  

5.4 Trade-In Dispositions  
 
Items of personal property for which an allowance is given in the purchase of 
like-kind property.  

  
5.5 Scrap and Salvage Dispositions   

 
Items of personal property for which the SWHA has no further use and for which 
there is no disposable value other than as salvage. 

  
5.6 Public Body Dispositions  

 
Transactions involving property items sold or granted to a recognized public 
body to be retained for a public use. 

  
5.7 Real Estate Dispositions 

 
Any dispositions of ownership interest in real property.  

 
  6.0  PROCEDURE 
   

6.1 Formal Dispositions 
 
For Items valued at $1,000 or more shall be offered by the Delegate at public 
sale. 
 
6.1.1 Public sale requirements shall be satisfied by the following procedures: 

a. Mandatory publication in an established public circulation media.  
The media selected must provide notice to prospective bidders within 
the general area in which the item for disposition is available for 
inspection. 

 
b. In addition, the Delegate may publicize the disposition by the 

following methods:  
 

 



 

 Specifically notify recognized dealers, particularly minority 
dealers, known to trade in the items being disposed. 

 Responding to persons requesting to be notified of general 
SWHA dispositions.  

 
c. Solicitation of offers must incorporate a clear and accurate 

description of the item to be disposed.  Further, the solicitation must 
clearly set forth any requirements which need to be fulfilled by the 
bidder and provide sufficient time prior to the date set for bids to 
prepare a response. 

 
d. Sealed bids shall be the only acceptable response method in formal 

bid solicitation.  The Delegate shall not open the bids until the time 
and at the location specified in the solicitation.  The bid opening shall 
be public and all bid documents must be retained for a reasonable 
period of time for public inspection. 

 
e. Award by the Delegate shall be made to that bidder’s response which 

best satisfies the SWHA interests.  In general, award should be made 
to the responsible bidder whose bid, conforming to all material items 
and conditions of the solicitation to bid, is highest in price.  
Exceptions to award by highest price must be fully documented by 
the Delegate for review and concurrence by the Executive Director.  
In case of a tie, the award shall be made in the presence of two 
disinterested parties by a flip of the coin. 

 
f. The Delegate reserves the right to reject any and all offers and to 

define and waive any informality in responses. 
   

6.2 General Dispositions 
 
For items valued at less than $5,000, shall be disposed of informally by selecting 
that method which, in the judgment of the Delegate, best serves the SWHA 
interests. 
 

6.3 Trade-In Dispositions 
 
Shall be considered as a factor in determining the best net price available to the 
SWHA in the purchase of equipment or material under procedures specified in 
the procurement policy. 
 

 6.4 Scrap and Salvage Dispositions 
 
Shall conform to the following procedures: 

a. The property trustee shall recommend in writing to the Delegate the 
specific scrap and salvage action proposed. 



 

b. A survey action form shall be completed by the Director of Finance.  This 
survey action form shall contain as a minimum; the following 
information:  

 Attached written recommendation of the property trustee. 

 Description and inventory location of the item being disposed. 

 Certification as to status of the property as scrap or salvage. 

 Reference to the Accounting document effecting the write-off. 

 Signatures of the Property Officer, Delegate, and Director of 
Finance.  

 
6.5  Public Body Disposition 

 
May be transacted by the Delegate through informed negotiations.  Fair value 
amount, as determined by the Delegate and reviewed by the Executive Director, 
Shall be normal basis for Public Body dispositions.  Dispositions proposed by the 
Executive Director and Delegate at less than fair value must be pre-approved by 
Board resolution. 

 
6.6 Real Estate Disposition 

 
Shall be by resolution of the Board of Commissioners.  The Executive Director 
shall report to the Board at a regular or special meeting the recommendation for 
real property disposition.  The Board, on approval of the proposal, shall timely 
respond with the procedures to be followed regarding the specific disposition. 

 
 



1 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
RESOLUTION NO. 494  

AUTHORIZING CHANGES TO THE PUBLIC HOUSING ADMISSION AND 
CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY (ACOP) RELATING TO HOUSEHOLD 

ELIGIBILITY 
 

WHEREAS, SWHA is a Public Housing Authority (PHA) providing public 

housing assistance through an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD; 

and 

WHEREAS, the ACC specifies that the PHA agrees to administer the program 

in accordance with HUD regulations and requirements; and   

WHEREAS, HUD regulations require SWHA to have a Disposition Policy that 

complies with federal regulations; and 

WHEREAS, HUD requires that the SWHA Board of Commissioners (Board) 

approve the all HUD-mandated operational policies before SWHA can implement 

required changes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-

WOOLLEY; as follows:  

(1.) The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the Disposition Policy 

update; and  

(2.) Authorizes the Housing Authority to take the necessary steps to 

implement revisions as necessary to ensure the efficient operation of 

SWHA’s public housing program. 

 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AT AN OPEN PUBLIC 

MEETING THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 
       ___________________________________ 

       LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 
       Board of Commissioners 

 

 
  ___________________________ 

  ROBIN WALLS 
  Secretary-Treasurer 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
5 



 

  SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
TO: Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Anneliese Gryta 
 
DATE: October 9, 2023 
 
RE:  Resolution No. 491 - Approval of proposed changes to the Sedro-Woolley Housing 

Authority’s (SWHA’s) Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP)  
________________________________z________________________________________ 
 
Attached, for your review and approval, are changes to the SWHA By-Laws to help clarify 
governing rules regarding the following: 
 

 Article II, Section 4 - Secretary-Treasurer: Modified to clarify that the position of the 
Secretary-Treasurer is a non-voting member and, as such, does have voting rights with 
respect to any item brought before the Board for consideration. 

 Article III, Section 2 - Regular Meetings:  Modified the meeting frequency to quarterly, 
effective with calendar year 2024. Added language to reserve Board discretion to hold 
meetings telephonically, electronically or through other available media. Also added 
language regarding the Chair’s ability to cancel a regular meeting should he/she 
determine to determine the business of the Authority may be accomplished at a special 
meeting or meetings. 

 Article IV - Amendments: Added language to state that an Amendment to the By-laws 
supersedes prior By-laws. 

 

As you are aware, HUD recently completed a Management Review of the SWHA. The process 

included review of the By-laws established by the Board. The changes above are intended to 

address questions raised as part of the completed review. Prior to implementation, SWHA must 

have Board approval of the amended By-laws. As a result, Staff recommends approval of 

Resolution No. 491, effective immediately. 



1 

Amended and Restated By-Laws of 

 

The Housing Authority of the 

City of Sedro-Woolley 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

December 9, 2009October 19, 2023 

 



2 

Amended and Restated By-Laws of 

The Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley 

  

 

Article I 

The Authority 
 

Section l:  Name of Authority.  The Name of the Authority shall be “The Housing 

Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley”. 

Section 2:  Office of Authority.  The offices of the Authority shall be at Hillsview, 

830 Township Street, in the City of Sedro-Woolley, State of Washington. 

 

Article II 

Officers 

 

 Section 1:  Officers.  The Officers of the Authority shall be a Chair, Vice-Chair 

and a Secretary-Treasurer, who shall be the Executive Director. 

 Section 2:  Chair.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Authority.  Except 

as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Authority, the Chair shall sign all contracts, 

deeds and other instruments made by the Authority.  At each meeting the Chair shall submit 

such recommendations and information as he/she may consider proper concerning the busi-

ness, affairs and policies of the Authority.  

 Section 3:  Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in 

the absence or incapacity of the Chair; and in case of the resignation or death of the Chair, 

the Vice-Chair shall perform such duties as are imposed on the Chair until such time as the 

Authority shall select a new Chair. 

 Section 4:  Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary-Treasurer shall be the Executive 

Director of the Authority. The position of Secretary-Treasurer shall not hold a voting posi-

tion on the Board of Commissioners and as such shall not participate in the voting to approve 

or deny of any resolutions brought before the Board.  The Secretary-Treasurer’, and as such 

shall have general supervision over the administration of the Board’s its business and affairs, 

subject to the direction of the Authority.  The Secretary-Treasurer shall be charged with the 

management of the housing projects of the Authority. 



3 

 As Secretary-Treasurer, the Executive Director shall keep all records of the Au-

thority, shall act as secretary of the meetings of the Authority and record all votes and shall 

keep a record of the proceedings of the Authority in a journal of proceedings to be kept for 

such purpose, and shall perform all duties incident to this office.   

 As Secretary-Treasurer, the Executive Director shall have the custody of all funds 

of the Authority and shall deposit the same in the name of the Authority in such bank or 

banks as the Authority may select.  As Secretary-Treasurer, the Executive Director shall 

sign all orders and checks for the payment of money and shall pay out and disburse such 

monies under the direction of the Authority.  As Secretary-Treasurer, the Executive Direc-

tor shall keep regular books of accounts showing receipts and expenditures and shall render 

to the Authority at each regular meeting (or oftener when requested) an account of these 

transactions and also of the financial condition of the Authority.  As Secretary-Treasurer, 

the Executive Director shall give such bond for the faithful performance of his duties as 

the Authority may determine.   

 In the event of a vacancy in this position, the Deputy Executive Director shall serve 

as Secretary-Treasurer, exercising all the obligations and duties thereof, until such time as 

a permanent replacement is selected.    

 Section 5:  Additional Duties.  The officers of the Authority shall perform such 

other duties and functions as may from time to time be required by the Authority or the 

By-Laws, rules and regulations of the Authority.  

 Section 6:  Election or Appointment.  The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected 

at the annual meeting of the Authority from among the Commissioners of the Authority, 

and shall hold office for two years or until their successors are elected and qualified.   

 The Secretary-Treasurer shall be appointed by the Authority.  Any person ap-

pointed to fill the office of Secretary-Treasurer, or any vacancy therein, shall have such 

term as the Authority fixes, but no Commissioner of the Authority shall be eligible to this 

office except as a temporary appointee.  

 Section 7:  Vacancies.  Should the offices of Chair or Vice-Chair become vacant, 

the Authority shall elect a successor from its membership at the next regular meeting, and 

such election shall be for the unexpired term of said office.  When the office of Secretary-

Treasurer becomes vacant, the Authority shall appoint a successor, as aforesaid.  



4 

 Section 8: Additional Personnel.  The Authority may, from time to time, employ 

such personnel as it deems necessary to exercise its powers, duties, and functions as pre-

scribed by the Housing Authorities Law of Washington and all other laws of the State of 

Washington applicable thereto.  The selection and compensation of such personnel (includ-

ing the Secretary-Treasurer) shall be determined by the Authority subject to the laws of the 

State of Washington.  

 

Article III 

Meetings 

 

Section 1:  Annual Meetings.  The Annual Meeting of the Authority shall be held 

on the same day, and at the same time in February, as the Regular Board meeting.  

Section 2:  Regular Meetings.  Bi-monthly meetings, unless otherwise directed by 

the Authority, shall be held without notice at the Hillsview Apartments in the City of Sedro-

Woolley, on the third Thursday (bi-monthly) beginning at 10:45 am. Beginning in calendar 

year 2024, Regular Meetings, unless otherwise directed by the Board, will be held quar-

terly. Meetings shall be held, without notice at the Hillsview Apartments in the City of 

Sedro-Woolley on the third Thursday of each designated month beginning at 10:45 am or 

at such other time and place as may be designated by or at the direction of the Chair upon 

such notice as may be required by law; provided however, that in the event that the Chair 

determines that the business of the Authority may be accomplished at a special meeting or 

meetings, he/she may cancel any regular meeting. No notice of cancellation of a regular 

meeting shall be required. At the Board’s discretion, meetings may be conducted telephon-

ically, electronically or through other available media. 

 

Section 4:  Quorum.  The powers of the Authority shall be vested in the Commis-

sioners thereof in office from time to time.  Three Commissioners shall constitute a quorum 

for the purpose of conducting its business and exercising its powers and for all other pur-

poses, but a small number may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is obtained.  When 

a quorum is in attendance, either in person or telephonically, action may be taken by the 

Authority upon a vote of a majority of the Commissioners present. 

Section 5:  Order of Business.  At the regular meetings of the Authority the fol-

lowing shall be the order of business: 



5 

(1) Call to Order 

(2) Roll Call 

(3) Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

(4) Financial Report (s) 

(5) Resolution(s) for Discussion 

(6) Housing Management Report 

(7) New Business 

(8) Adjournment 

All resolutions shall be in writing and shall be copied in a journal of the proceedings of the 

Authority. 

 Section 6:  Manner of Voting.  The voting on all questions coming before the 

Authority shall be by roll call, and the ayes and noes shall be entered upon the minutes of 

such meeting. 

 

Article IV 

Amendments 

 

 Section 1:  Amendment to By-Laws.  The By-Laws of the Authority shall be 

amended only with the approval of at least three of the members of the Authority at a 

regular or a special meeting, but no such amendment shall be adopted unless at least seven 

days’ written notice thereof has been previously given to all members of the Authority.  

The approved By-laws will supersede all previous bylaws. 

 
 

ADOPTED BY THE  AT THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BBOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AU-

THORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AT AN OPEN PUBLIC MEET-

ING THIS 19th  DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 

 CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHING-

TON  

 

 

___________________________________ 



6 

LAURIE FELLERS 

 Board Chair 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

ROBIN WALLS  

Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

--end-- 



1 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

RESOLUTION NO. 491  

AUTHORIZING RESTATED AND AMENDED BY-LAWS OF THE AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, SWHA is a Public Housing Authority (PHA) providing public housing 

assistance through an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with the Department of 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

WHEREAS, governing rules for the SWHA Board of Commissioners are 

established under By-laws adopted by the Board; and   

WHEREAS, HUD recently completed a Management Review of SWHA, including 

a review of the established By-laws; and 

WHEREAS, HUD’s Management Review highlighted the need for clarification of 

the By-laws regarding (1) frequency of regular meetings of the Board and (2) the role of 

the Secretary-Treasurer of the Board; and 

WHEREAS, Board approval for changing approved By-laws is required before 

SWHA can implement such changes. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY; as follows:  

 

(1.) The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the Amended and Restated By-

laws as attached.  

 

 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AT AN OPEN PUBLIC MEETING 

THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

 
 

       ___________________________________ 

       LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 
       Board of Commissioners 

  ___________________________ 

  ROBIN WALLS 
  Secretary-Treasurer 
 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
6 



 

  SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
 
TO: Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Anneliese Gryta 
 
DATE: October 10, 2023 
 
RE: Resolution No. 492 - Approval of proposed changes to the Sedro-Woolley Housing 

Authority’s (SWHA’s) Admissions and Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP)  
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Attached, for your review and approval, are changes to SWHA’s ACOP to help ensure 
compliance with federal regulations.  The following is a brief summary of the proposed 
changes: 
 

 Section 2.C - Applicant Check-in Policy: Modified to show that the HA may, but 
is not required, to mail continuing interest letters to applicants every six (6) 
months.  

 Section 6.C.2 - Tenant Selection - Deleted unnecessary sentence to clarify local 
preferences available to SWHA applicants. To ensure program compliance, on 
public notification of the proposed change was completed - allowing 30 days to 
comment on the proposed change. In addition, a public hearing was held on 
October 19, 2023. To date, no comments have been received.  

 Section 9 - Rent for Families under Non-Citizen Rule: Replaced description 
regarding pro-rating rent for Mixed Family households with reference to Exhibit 
K to clarify procedures and ensure program compliance.   

 
In addition, a limited number of minor edits to correct identified typographical errors or 

citations are included in the attached.  

Please note, the Board is being asked to approve the full ACOP at this time in order to meet 

promises made to HUD following recently completed SWHA Management Review. Prior to 

implementing these proposed ACOP changes, SWHA must have Board approval of related 

changes.  As a result, Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 492, effective immediately. 



1 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

RESOLUTION NO. 492  

AUTHORIZING CHANGES TO THE PUBLIC HOUSING ADMISSION AND  

CONTINUED OCCUPANCY POLICY (ACOP)  

 

 

WHEREAS, SWHA is a Public Housing Authority (PHA) providing public 

housing assistance through an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with the 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and 

WHEREAS, the ACC specifies that the PHA agrees to administer the 

program in accordance with HUD regulations and requirements; and   

WHEREAS, HUD regulations require SWHA to have an Admission and 

Continued Occupancy Policy (ACOP) that details SWHA’s operational policies 

and procedures developed in accordance with federal, state and local 

regulations; and 

WHEREAS, SWHA’s ACOP must be updated to help ensure compliance 

with current federal regulations and improve clarity of policies and procedures 

described therein; and 

WHEREAS, Board approval for changing HUD-mandated operational 

policies is required before SWHA can implement such changes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-

WOOLLEY; as follows: 

 



2 

(1.) The Board of Commissioners hereby approves  revisions to the Public 

Housing ACOP, effective immediately, as attached; and  

(2.) Authorizes the Housing Authority to take the necessary steps to 

implement revisions as necessary to ensure the efficient operation of 

SWHA’s public housing program. 

 

 ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY AT AN OPEN PUBLIC 

MEETING THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 2023. 

 

 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

 
 

       ___________________________________ 
       LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 
       Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 

  ___________________________ 
  ROBIN WALLS 

  Secretary-Treasurer 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 1 

 
 
  

 Admission and 
Continued 
Occupancy 

Policy 

 

ACOP 

STATEMENT OF POLICIES GOVERNING ADMISSION TO AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY 
OF THE PUBLIC HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS OPERATED BY THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF  

SEDRO-WOOLLEY 
 

Adopted June 2023 
 

Revised August 30October 19, 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 2 

 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
INTRODUCTION  General Policy Statements 

Section 1   Definition of Terms 

Section 2   Receipt of Applications 

Section 3   Occupancy Standards 

Section 4   Conditions Governing Eligibility 

Section 5   Denial of Assistance 

Section 6   Tenant Selection 

Section 7   Leasing of Dwelling Units 

Section 8   Verification and Documentation of Data (Applications, Housings, and Recertifications) 

Section 9   Determination of Total Tenant Payment and Tenant Rent 

Section 10   Annual Recertification 

Section 11   Continued Occupancy Issues 

 

EXHIBITS 

 

Exhibit A   List of Income Inclusions 

Exhibit B   List of Income Exclusions 

Exhibit C   Clarification on Income, Assets, Allowances 

Exhibit D   Schedule of Flat Rents 

Exhibit E   Income Limits 

Exhibit F   Income Targeting Guidelines 

Exhibit G   Acceptable Forms of Verification 

Exhibit H   Verification Instructions for Tenant - Selection Preferences  

Exhibit I   Grievance Hearing Procedures 

Exhibit J   Dwelling Lease 

Exhibit K   Calculation of Assistance Following Immigration Verification 

Exhibit L   Accommodation of Persons with Disabilities 

Exhibit M   Confidentiality of Applicant/Tenant Records 

Exhibit N   Reserved 

Exhibit O   Schedule of Maintenance Charges 

Exhibit P   Transfer Policy 

Exhibit Q   Reserved 

Exhibit R   Rejection of Applicants/Review Process 

Exhibit S   Disposition of Records Policy 

Exhibit T   Reserved 

Exhibit U   Lead-Based Paint Notice 

 
 
 
 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 3 

 
STATEMENT OF POLICIES 

GOVERNING ADMISSION TO AND CONTINUED OCCUPANCY OF THE PUBLIC HOUSING PROJECTS 
OPERATED BY THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

 

INTRODUCTION GENERAL POLICY STATEMENTS 
 

FAIR HOUSING 
It is the policy of the Housing Authority to fully comply with all federal, state, and local nondiscrimination laws; the 

Americans with Disabilities Act; and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development regulations governing 

Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity. 

No person may, on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, age, national or ethnic origin, parental status, familial 

status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to 

discrimination under the Housing Authority’s programs. 

To further its commitment to full compliance with applicable civil rights laws, the Housing Authority will provide 

federal/state/local information to applicants/tenants of the Public Housing program regarding discrimination and 

any recourse available to them if they believe they may be victims of discrimination. Such information will be made 

available with the application and all applicable Fair Housing Information and Discrimination Complaint Forms will 

be made available at the Housing Authority’s Area Offices. In addition, all written information and advertisements 

will contain the appropriate language and logo. 

The Housing Authority will assist any family that believes they have suffered illegal discrimination by providing 

copies of the appropriate housing discrimination forms. The Housing Authority will also assist them in completing 

the forms if requested, and will provide them with the address of the nearest HUD office of Fair Housing and Equal 

Opportunity. 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 
Sometimes people with disabilities may need a reasonable accommodation in order to take full advantage of the 

Housing Authority’s housing programs and related services. When such accommodations are granted, they do not 

confer special treatment or advantage for the person with a disability; rather, they make the program accessible to 

them in a way that would otherwise not be possible due to their disability. This section and Exhibit L clarify how 

people can request accommodations and the guidelines the Housing Authority will follow in determining whether it 

is reasonable to provide a requested accommodation. Because disabilities are not always apparent, the Housing 

Authority will ensure that all applicants/tenants are aware of the opportunity to request reasonable 

accommodation.  

Anyone requesting an application will also receive a Request for Reasonable Accommodation form. 

Notifications of reexamination, inspection, appointment, or eviction will include information about requesting a 

reasonable accommodation. Any notification requesting action by the tenant will include information about requesting 

a reasonable accommodation.  

All decisions granting or denying requests for reasonable accommodations will be in writing.  

Exhibit J L provides additional information on the procedure for requesting a reasonable accommodation. 

SERVICES FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING APPLICANTS AND RESIDENTS 
The Housing Authority will endeavor to have bilingual staff or access to people who speak languages other than 

English in order to assist non-English speaking families. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 4 

 

FAMILY OUTREACH 
The Housing Authority will publicize the availability and nature of the Public Housing Program for extremely low-

income, very low-income, and low-income families in a newspaper of general circulation, minority media, and by 

other suitable means. 

To reach people who cannot or do not read the newspapers, the Housing Authority will distribute fact sheets to the 

broadcasting media and initiate personal contacts with members of the news media and community service 

personnel. The Housing Authority will also try to use public service announcements. 

The Housing Authority will communicate the status of housing availability to other service providers in the 

community and inform them of housing eligibility factors and guidelines so they can make proper referrals for the 

Public Housing Program. 

RIGHT TO PRIVACY 
All adult members of both applicant and tenant households are required to sign HUD Form 9886, Authorization for 

Release of Information and Privacy Act Notice. The Authorization for Release of Information and Privacy Act Notice 

states how family information will be released and includes the federal Privacy Act Statement. 

Any request for applicant or tenant information will not be released unless there is a signed release of information 

request from the applicant or tenant, or as provided in Exhibit M. 

REQUIRED POSTINGS 
In each of its offices, the Housing Authority will post, in a conspicuous place and at a height easily read by all 

persons, including persons with mobility disabilities, the following information: 

 Statement of Policies and Procedures governing Admission and Continued Occupancy; 

 Notice of the status of the waiting list (open or closed); 

 A listing of all the developments by name, address, number of units, units designed with special 

accommodations, address of all project offices, office hours, telephone numbers, TDD numbers; 

 Income Limits for Admission; 

 Excess Utility Charges; 

 Utility Allowance Schedule; 

 Current Schedule of Routine Maintenance Charges; 

 Dwelling Lease; 

 Grievance Procedure; 

 Fair Housing Poster; 

 Equal Opportunity in Employment Poster; 

 Any current Housing Authority Notices.  

  

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/OCHCO/documents/9886.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/OCHCO/documents/9886.pdf


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 5 

 

SECTION 1 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
Revised 08/30/2023 

Adjusted Annual Income: Adjusted Income means Annual Income less the following deductions: (See Exhibit C for 

additional guidelines on how to calculate any deductions or allowances.) 

1. A deduction of $480.00 for each Dependent. 

2. A deduction of $400.00 for any Elderly Family or Disabled Family. 

3. The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds three percent of annual income: 

a. Unreimbursed medical expenses of any elderly family or disabled family; and 

b. Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for each member of the 

family who is a person with disabilities, to the extent necessary to enable any member of the family 

(including the member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed, but this allowance may 

not exceed the earned income received by family members who are 18 years of age or older who 

are able to work because of such attendant care or auxiliary apparatus. 

4. A deduction for child care expenses for the care of children under 13 years of age, but only where such care 

is necessary to enable a Family member to be gainfully employed or to further their education. The amount 

deducted will reflect reasonable charges for child care and will be allowed only to the extent that such 

amounts are not reimbursed. In the case of child care necessary to permit employment, the amount 

deducted will not exceed the amount of income received from such employment.  

Adult: A household member who is 18 years or older or who is the head of the household, or spouse, or co-head. 

Allowances: Amounts deducted from the household’s annual income in determining adjusted annual income (the 

income amount used in the rent calculation). Allowances are given for elderly families, dependents, medical 

expenses for elderly families, disability expenses, and childcare expenses for children under 13 years of age. Other 

allowance can be given at the discretion of the Housing Authority. 

Alternative non-public housing rent: The monthly rent charged to a Non-public housing over-income household. 

The rent is equal to the greater of: 

1. The applicable fair market rent, as defined in 24 CFR part 888, subpart A, for the unit; or 

2. The amount of the monthly subsidy provided for the unit, which will be determined by adding the per unit 

assistance provided to a public housing property as calculated through the applicable formulas for the 

Public Housing Capital Fund and Public Housing Operating Fund. 

a. For the Public Housing Capital Fund, the amount of Capital Funds provided to the unit will be 

calculated as the per unit Capital Fund assistance provided to a PHA for the development in which 

the family resides for the most recent funding year for which Capital Funds have been allocated; 

b. For the Public Housing Operating Fund, the amount of Operating Funds provided to the unit will be 

calculated as the per unit amount provided to the public housing project where the unit is located 

for the most recent funding year for which a final funding obligation determination has been made; 

c. HUD will publish such funding amounts no later than December 31 each year. 

Annual Income: All amounts, monetary or not, that (See Exhibit A):  

1. Go to (or on behalf of) the family head or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other family 

member; or 

2. Are anticipated to be received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period following 

admission or annual reexamination effective date; and 

3. Are not specifically excluded from annual income (See Exhibit B). 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-VIII/part-888/subpart-A


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 6 

 
Annual Income also includes amounts derived (during the 12-month period) from assets to which any member of 

the family has access. (24 CFR 5.609) 

 
Applicant (applicant family): A person or family that has applied for admission to a program but is not yet a 

participant in the program. 

Authority: The Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley, Washington, a public corporation. 

Certification: The examination of a household’s income, expenses, and family composition to determine the 

family’s eligibility for program participation and to calculate the family’s share of rent. 

Child Care Expenses: (See definition of Adjusted Income) 

Citizen: A citizen or national of the United States. 

Community Service: The performance of voluntary work or duties that are a public benefit and that serve to 

improve the quality of life, enhance resident self-sufficiency, or increase resident self-responsibility in the 

community. Community service is not employment and may not include political activities. 

Consent Form: Any consent form approved by HUD to be signed by assistance applicants and participants for the 

purpose of obtaining income information from employers and SWICAs, return information from the Social Security 

Administration, and return information for unearned income from the Internal Revenue Service. The consent forms 

may authorize the collection of other information from assistance applicants or participant to determine eligibility 

or level of benefits. 

Dependent: A member of the Family household (excluding foster children and foster adults) other than the Family 

head or spouse, who is under 18 years of age or is a person with a disability, or is a Full-time Student 18 years of 

age or older. An unborn child will not be counted as a Dependent. 

Dilapidated Housing Unit: For selection preference purposes, a housing unit is considered dilapidated if it does not 

provide safe and adequate shelter, in its present condition endangers the health, safety or well-being of a family, or 

it has one or more critical defects, or a combination of intermediate defects in sufficient number or extent to 

require considerable repair or rebuilding. The defects may involve original construction, or they may result from 

continued neglect or lack of repair from serious damage to the structure. 

Disability Assistance Expenses: Reasonable expenses that are anticipated, during the period for which annual 

income is computed, for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for a disabled family member and that are 

necessary to enable a family member (including the disabled member) to be employed, provided that the expenses 

are neither paid to a member of the family nor reimbursed by an outside source. (24 CFR 5.603(d)). 

Disabled Family: A family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a person with disabilities; or two or more persons 

with disabilities living together; or one or more persons with disabilities living with one or more live-in aides.  

Displaced Family: For eligibility purposes, a family in which each member, or whose sole member, is a person 

displaced by governmental action, or a person whose dwelling has been extensively damaged or destroyed as a 

result of a disaster declared or otherwise formally recognized pursuant to federal disaster relief laws.  

Displaced Person: For eligibility purposes, a person displaced by governmental action, or a person whose dwelling 

has been extensively damaged or destroyed as a result of a disaster declared or otherwise formally recognized 

under federal disaster relief laws. 

Drug-Related Criminal Activity: The illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, or use of a drug, or the possession of a 

drug with intent to manufacture, sell distribute or use the drug. (As defined in Section 102 of the Controlled 

Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 802) 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-A/part-5/subpart-F/subject-group-ECFR174c6349abd095d/section-5.609
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-A/part-5/subpart-F/section-5.603#p-5.603(D)
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-1999-title21-section802&num=0&edition=1999


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 7 

 
 
Dwelling Lease: A rental agreement between the Housing Authority and the tenant in the form shown in Exhibit J of 

this policy. The Dwelling Lease (or a Rider to the Dwelling Lease) will, among other things, reflect the rent currently 

being charged and the conditions governing occupancy. 

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program: Any program designed to encourage, assist, train, or facilitate the economic 

independence of HUD-assisted families or to provide work for such families. These programs include programs for 

job training, employment counseling, work placement, basic skills training, education, English proficiency, workfare, 

financial or household management, apprenticeship, and any program necessary to ready a participant for work 

(including a substance abuse or mental health treatment program); or other work activities. 

EIV (Enterprise Income Verification): A HUD web-based system used to validate tenant reported income including 

wages, unemployment, Social Security, SSI and other income and benefits. 

Elderly Family:  A family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a person who is at least 62 years of age; or two or 

more persons who are at least 62 years of age living together; or one or more persons who are at least 62 years of 

age living with one or more live-in aides. 

Elderly Person: A person who is at least 62 years of age. 

Eligible Immigration Status: An immigration status in one of the following categories: 

1. A noncitizen lawfully admitted for permanent residence, as defined by Section 101(a)(20) of the 

Immigration and Nationality Act (INA), as an immigrant, as defined by Section 101(a)(15) of the INA (8 

U.S.C. 1101 (a)(20) and 1101(a)(15), respectively) (immigrants). (This category includes a noncitizen 

admitted under Section 210 or 210A of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1160 or 1161), (special agricultural worker), who 

has been granted lawful temporary resident status); 

2. A noncitizen who entered the United States before January 1, 1972, or such later date as enacted by law, 

and has continuously maintained residence in the United States since then, and who is not eligible for 

citizenship, but who is deemed to be lawfully admitted for permanent residence as a result of an exercise of 

discretion by the Attorney General under Section 249 of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1259); 

3. A noncitizen who is lawfully present in the United States pursuant to an admission under Section 207 of the 

INA (8 U.S.C. 1157)(refugee status); pursuant to the grant of asylum (which has not been terminated) under 

Section 208 of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1158)(asylum status); or as a result of being granted conditional entry 

under Section 203 (a)(7) of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1153(a)(7)) before April 1, 1980, because of persecution or fear 

of persecution on account of race, religion, or political opinion or because of being uprooted by 

catastrophic national calamity; 

4. A noncitizen who is lawfully present in the United States as a result of an exercise of discretion by the 

Attorney General for emergent reasons or reasons deemed strictly in the public interest under Section 

212(d)(5) of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1182(d)(5))(parole status); 

5. A non-citizen whose deportation is being withheld under section 243(h) of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1253(h)) (as in 

effect immediately before April 1, 1997) or section 241(b)(3) of the INA (8 U.S.C. 1231(b)(3)) (as amended 

by section 305(a) of division C of the Omnibus Consolidated Appropriations Act of 1997, Pub. L. No. 104-

208, 110 Stat. 3009-597 (1996)); or 

6. A noncitizen lawfully admitted for temporary or permanent residence under Section 245A of the INA (8 

U.S.C. 1255(a))(amnesty granted under INA 245A). 

Extremely Low-Income Families: Those families whose incomes do not exceed the higher of the Federal poverty 

level or 30% of the median income for the area, as determined by the HUD Secretary with adjustments for smaller 

and larger families. 

Family:  Family includes, but is not limited to, the following, regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, 

gender identity, or marital status (in all cases the Head of Household must be at least 18 years of age): 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1101&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1101&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1160&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1161&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1259&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1157&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1158&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1153&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1182&num=0&edition=prelim
https://law.justia.com/codes/us/1994/title8/chap11/subchapii_2/partv/sec1253
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1231&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1255&num=0&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title8-section1255&num=0&edition=prelim


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 8 

 
1. A group of two or more persons (with or without children) sharing a residency whose income and resources 

are available to meet the family needs and who are either related by (1) blood, marriage or operation of 

law (excluding custody of foster children), or; (2) who have evidenced a stable family relationship. 

a. A group of “two or more persons” includes a single pregnant woman without other children and 

individuals in the process of securing legal custody of any other person.  

b. Members of the family temporarily absent will be included in the family group. To establish what 

constitutes “temporary absence,” the following clarification is provided: 

i. A service member will be classified as “temporarily absent” when away from home due to 

military service. Therefore, each service member will be counted as part of the family for 

purposes of qualifying as an eligible family for admission of or continued occupancy and for 

establishment of rent, but not for determining size of unit required. 

ii. If the family claims a child as a family member, but does not have full custody, or if the 

child lives only part time with the family, it will be the sole discretion of the Housing 

Authority as to whether to count the child as part of the family. 

iii. If the family has a dependent away at school, the dependent may be considered a member 

of the household if the dependent normally lives in the household while not attending 

school. 

iv. The Authority may consider an absent child to be part of the family if there is evidence that 

the child would reside with the family if the family were admitted to the Authority’s 

housing. 

2. An Elderly Person or Family (see definition) 

3. A Near-Elderly Family 

4. A Person with Disabilities or Disabled Family (see definition) 

5. A Remaining Member of a tenant family (see definition) 

6. Any “other” Single Person (see definition) 

Family Income: For purposes of qualifying for a Federal Preference, Family Income is “Monthly Income” as defined 

in this Section. 

Family Members: All members of the household other than live-in aides, foster children, and foster adults. All 

family members permanently reside in the unit, though they may be temporarily absent. All family members are 

listed on the lease.  

Family Development: Any development assisted under the US Housing Act of 1937 (other than Section 8 or Section 

17 of the Act) which is not a Project for the Elderly or Disabled. 

Family Self-Sufficiency Program (FSS Program): The program established by a Housing Authority to promote self-

sufficiency among participating families, including the coordination of supportive services. 

Flat Rent: An amount the family may choose to pay as the Tenant Rent in lieu of having their rent determined 

under the formula method. The flat rent is established by the Housing Authority, based on the market rate for 

comparable units in the unassisted private market at which the Housing Authority could lease the unit. Families 

selecting the flat rent option have their income evaluated once every three years, rather than annually. 

Foster Child Care Payment: Payments to eligible households by state, local or private agencies. 

Full Time Student: A person who is carrying a subject load which is considered fulltime for day students under the 

standards and practices of the educational institution attended. An educational institution includes a vocational 

school with a diploma or certificate program, as well as an institution offering a college degree. 

Handicapped Assistance Expenses: Reasonable expenses that are anticipated, during the period for which annual 

Income is computed, for attendant care an auxiliary apparatus for a Handicapped or Disabled Family member, and 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 9 

 
that are necessary to enable a Family member (including the Handicapped or Disabled member) to be employed, 

provided that the expenses are neither paid to a member of the Family nor reimbursed by an outside source. 

Head of Household: The adult member of the Family who is the head of the household for the purposes of 

determining income eligibility and rent. 

Homeless Family: For selection preference purposes, and applicant is considered a Homeless Family if they: 

1. Lack a fixed, regular and adequate night time residence; and 

2. Have a primary night time residence that is: 

a. A supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living 

accommodations (including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and transitional housing for the 

mentally ill); 

b. An institution that provides a temporary residence for individuals intended to be institutionalized; 

or 

c. A public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation 

for human beings. 

A Homeless Family does not include any individual imprisoned or otherwise detained pursuant to an Act of the 

Congress or a state law. 

Housing Authority (HA): The Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley, a public corporation. 

HUD: The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Imputed Income: For households with net family assets of more than $5,000, the amount calculated by multiplying 

net family assets by a HUD-specified percentage. If imputed income is more than actual income from assets, the 

imputed amount is used as income from assets in determining annual income. 

Imputed Welfare Income: The amount of annual income not actually received by a family, as a result of a specified 

welfare benefit reduction, that is nonetheless included in the family’s annual income for purposes of determining 

rent. 

Income-based Formula Method: One of the rent calculation methods available to Tenants and used in determining 

the monthly rental payment due under the lease. Under this method, the Tenant Rent is calculated based on total 

household income and allowances at an amount not to exceed the Total Tenant Payment, less any applicable utility 

allowance for tenant paid utilities. Families choosing to have their rent calculated under this method will have the 

total family income evaluated at least annually. 

Income-based Formula Rent: The Tenant Rent payable for residents who choose to have their monthly rent 

calculated using the Income-based Formula method. The Income-based Formula Rent is equal to the calculated 

Total Tenant Payment (TTP) for the household, less the estimated cost to the Tenant of reasonable quantities of 

utilities, determined in accordance with the Housing Authority’s schedule of allowances for utilities, where the 

payment of such utilities are the responsibility of the Tenant. If the utility allowance exceeds TTP, as determined in 

this policy, the excess amount would be paid to the Tenant as a Utility Reimbursement. 

Income Limits:  A schedule of incomes that do not exceed a percent of the median income for the area (AMI) as 

determined by HUD with adjustments for smaller or larger Families, except that HUD may establish income limits 

higher or lower on the basis of its findings that such variations are necessary because of the prevailing levels of 

construction costs, unusually high or low incomes, or other factors. (See Exhibit E.) 

Interim (examination): A reexamination of a family income, expenses, and household composition conducted between 
the regular annual recertifications when a change in a household’s circumstances warrants such a reexamination.  
Live-in Aide: A person who resides with one or more elderly persons, or near-elderly persons, or persons with 

disabilities, and who:  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 10 

 
1. is determined by the Housing Authority to be essential to the care and well-being of the person(s);  

2. is not obligated for the support of the person(s); and  

3. would not be living in the unit except to provide necessary supportive services. 

A relative meeting the above three criteria would not be prohibited from serving as a Live-in Aide. 

With the consent of the Housing Authority, a live-in aide meeting the above criteria may be permitted to reside in 

the dwelling unit. In addition to screening the live-in aide for the normal suitability criteria, permission may depend 

on whether the addition of a new occupant would require a transfer of the family to another unit, and whether 

another appropriate unit is available. 

A live-in aide is not a party to the lease, has no continued occupancy rights, and their income is not considered in 

computing family income or family deduction. 

Local Preference: A preference adopted by the Housing Authority to select among applicant families. Housing 

Authority approved local preferences and the limits on their use are outlined under Section 6 of this Policy. 

Low Income Family: A Family whose Annual Income does not exceed 80% of the median low income limit for the 

area, as determined by HUD with adjustment for smaller and larger families. 

Medical Expenses: See definition of Adjusted Income. 

Member of the Armed Forces: A person in the active Military or Naval Service of the United States Army, Navy, Air 

Force, Marine Corps, or Coast Guard. 

For the purpose of determining Annual Income, a Member of the Armed Forces may be the Head of Household, 

Spouse, or other Family member whose dependents are residing in the unit. 

Mixed Family: A family whose members include those with citizenship or eligible immigration status and those 

without citizenship or eligible immigration status.  

Mixed Population Development: Any development assisted under the US Act of 1937 (other than under Section 8 

or Section 17 of the Act), including any building within a mixed-use project that was designated for occupancy by 

the elderly or disabled at its inception or, although not so designated, for which the PHA gives preference in a 

tenant selection (with HUD approval) for all units in the project (or for a building within a mixed-use project) to 

elderly or disabled families. 

Monthly Adjusted Income: One-twelfth of Adjusted Income. 

Monthly Income: One-twelfth of Annual Income. 

National: A person who owes permanent allegiance to the United States, for example, as a result of birth in a U.S. 

Territory or Possession. 

Near-Elderly Family: A family whose head, spouse, or sole member is a person who is at least 50 years of age but 

below the age of 62; or two or more persons, who are at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62 living 

together; or one or more persons who are at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62 living together with one 

or more live-in aides. 

Near-Elderly Person: A Person who is at least 50 years of age but below the age of 62. 

Net Family Assets: 

1. Net cash value after deducting reasonable costs that would be incurred in disposing or real property, 

savings, stocks, bonds, and other forms of capital investment, excluding interests in Indian Trust land and 

excluding equity accounts in HUD home ownership programs. The value of necessary items of personal 

property such as furniture and automobiles will be excluded. In addition, a checking account in which the 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 11 

 
family maintains a nominal balance in order to meet normal day-to-day needs would not be considered an 

asset, or included in the calculation of income derived from Net Family Assets. 

2. In cases where a trust fund has been established and the trust is not revocable by, or under the control of, 

any member of the Family or household, the value of the trust fund will not be considered an asset so long 

as the fund continues to be held in trust. Any income distributed from the trust fund will be counted when 

determining Annual Income. 

3. In determining Net Family Assets, housing authorities or owners, as applicable, will include the value of any 

Business or Family assets disposed of by an applicant or tenant for less than fair market value (including a 

disposition in trust, but not in a foreclosure or bankruptcy sale) during the two years preceding the date of 

application for the program or reexamination, as applicable, in excess of the consideration received 

thereof. In the case of a disposition as part of a separation or divorce settlement, the disposition will not be 

considered to be for less than fair market value if the applicant or tenant receives important consideration 

not measurable in dollar terms. 

Net Income from Operation of a Business or Profession: See Exhibit A. 

Noncitizen: A person who is neither a citizen nor national of the United States. 

Non-public housing over-income family: A family whose income exceeds the over-income limit for 24 consecutive 

months and is paying the alternative non-public housing rent. 

Occupancy Standards: The standards that a housing authority establishes for determining the appropriate number 

of bedrooms needed to house families of different sizes or composition. 

Other Criminal Activity: Criminal activity that would adversely affect the health, safety, or right to peaceful 

enjoyment of the premises by other residents, persons residing in the immediate vicinity, the owner or public 

housing employees.  

Over-income family: A family whose income exceeds the Over-income limit.  

Over-income limit: The over-income limit is determined by multiplying the applicable income limit for a very low-

income family, as defined in 24 CFR 5.603(b), by a factor of 2.4. See 24 CFR 960.507(b). 

Person with Disabilities: Per the HUD definition, a person is considered disabled if (1) the following Social Security 

disability definition is met, or (2) the individual has a developmental disability as described in Paragraph 2 below. 

1. Has a disability as defined in Section 223 of the Social Security Act which states: “Inability to engage in any 

substantial gainful activity because of any physical or mental impairment that is expected to result in death 

or has lasted or can be expected to last continuously for at least 12 months; or, in the case of an individual 

who has attained the age of 55 and is blind (within the meaning of “blindness” as defined in section 216(i)(1)), 

inability by reason of such blindness to engage in substantial gainful activity requiring skills or abilities 

comparable to those of any gainful activity in which he has previously engaged with some regularity and over 

a substantial period of time.” 

2. Is determined, pursuant to regulations issued by HUD to have a “physical, mental, or emotional impairment 

caused by alcohol or drug abuse, post-traumatic stress disorder, brain injury or a chronic physical illness 

that: 

a. is expected to be of long, continued and indefinite duration; and 

b. substantially impedes that person’s ability to live independently; and 

c. could be improved by more suitable housing, or 

3. Has a developmental disability as defined below in Section 102 of the Developmental Disabilities Assistance 

and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 which is a severe, chronic disability that: 

a. Is attributable to a mental or physical impairment or a combination; and 

b. Is manifested before the person attains the age of 22; and 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-A/part-5/subpart-F/section-5.603#p-5.603(b)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-IX/part-960#p-960.507(b)
https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title02/0223.htm
https://www.ssa.gov/OP_Home/ssact/title02/0216.htm#:~:text=(i)(1)%20Except,be%20expected%20to%20last%20for
https://acl.gov/sites/default/files/about-acl/2016-12/dd_act_2000.pdf
https://acl.gov/sites/default/files/about-acl/2016-12/dd_act_2000.pdf


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 12 

 
c. Is likely to continue indefinitely; and 

d. Results in substantial limitations in three or more major life activities, and 

i. Self-care 

ii. Receptive and expressive language 

iii. Learning 

iv. Mobility 

v. Self-direction 

vi. Capacity for independent living;  

vii. Economic self-sufficiency 

e. Reflects need for: 

i. A combination and sequence of special, interdisciplinary, or generic services; or  

ii. Individualized supports; or 

iii. Other forms of assistance that are of lifelong or extended duration and are individually 

planned and coordinated.” 

This definition of a person with disabilities does not exclude persons who have AIDS. 

For purposes of qualifying for low-income housing, it does not include a person where disability is based solely on 

any drug or alcohol dependence. 

Preponderance of the Evidence: Evidence which is of greater weight or more convincing than the evidence which is 

offered in opposition to it; that is, evidence which as a whole shows that the fact sought to be proved is more 

probable than not. 

Previously Unemployed: This includes a person who has earned, in the 12 months previous to employment, no 

more than would be received for 10 hours of work per week for 50 weeks at the established minimum wage. 

Principle Income Recipient: That member of the Family who has the greatest amount of income. In the case of two 

members of the Family with the same amount of income the Principle Income Recipient will be the member of the 

Family who has the most responsibility, in the following order: Head of Household, Spouse, adult dependents, 

children in order of age. 

Remaining Member of Tenant Family: A member of the Family listed on the Lease who continues to live in the 

dwelling unit after all of the Family Members have left. If the person is named on the lease but did not sign it, it will 

be the sole determination of the Housing Authority whether to enter into a new lease with that person. Among 

other factors, the person’s suitability for tenancy and his or her ability to uphold a lease will be considered. 

In accordance with the Authority’s Occupancy Standard, the remaining member may be required to transfer to an 

appropriate sized dwelling unit or type of project. 

Rent: For selection preference purposes, rent is defined as: 

1. The actual amount due, calculated on a monthly basis, under a lease or occupancy agreement between a 

family and the family’s current landlord; and 

2. In the case of utilities purchased directly by tenants from utility providers: 

a. The utility allowance (if any) determined for the Section 8 Certificate/Voucher Program; or 

b. If the family chooses, the average monthly payments that it actually made for its utilities for the 

most recent 12-month period, or if that information is not obtainable, for the entire period of an 

appropriate recent period (such period may be no less than 6 consecutive months). 

 
Single Person: A person who lives alone or intends to live alone, and who does not qualify as an elderly or displaced 

person, a person with disabilities, or, (for continued occupancy) as the remaining member of a tenant family. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 13 

 
Social Security Number: The number that is assigned to a person by the Social Security Administration of the 

Department of Health and Human Services, and that identifies the record of the person’s earnings that are reported 

to the Administration. 

Spouse: The husband or wife of the Head of Household. 

Standard Replacement Housing: For selection preference purposes, standard replacement housing is housing 

1. That is decent, safe, and sanitary; 

2. That is adequate for the family size (according to the Authority’s occupancy standards); and 

3. That the family is occupying pursuant to a lease or occupancy agreement. 

Such housing does not include transient facilities (such as motels, hotels or temporary shelters for victims of 

domestic violence or homeless families not the housing unit in which the applicant and the applicant’s spouse or 

other member of the household who engages in such violence lives). 

Tenant: Any lessee or the remaining head of the household or any tenant family residing in housing 

accommodations covered by 24 CFR 966. 

Tenant Rent: The amount payable monthly by the Tenant as rent to the Housing Authority. According to this policy, 

Tenant Rent is set at either:  

1. The Flat Rent established by the Housing Authority for the unit in which the Tenant resides; or  

2. The Income-based Formula Rent based on total household income and allowances and determined in 

accordance with guidelines and procedures outlined in this policy. 

Total Tenant Payment (TTP): For tenants paying the Income-based Formula Rent, the amount of the maximum 

monthly obligation by the Tenant for payment of rent and utilities as calculated according to this Policy (see Section 

9). TTP is the greater of:  

1. 10% of monthly household income;  

2. 30% if adjusted household income;  

3. The Welfare Rent; or,  

4. The Minimum Rent established by the Housing Authority.  

The TTP does not include charges for excess utility consumption or other miscellaneous charges. The TTP, less the 

established Utility Allowance, is the monthly Tenant Rent payable by a household choosing the Income-based 

Formula Method of rent calculation. For Tenant’s selecting the Flat Rent option the Flat Rent, less the established 

Utility Allowance is the monthly Tenant Rent payable. 

USCIS: The United States Citizenship and Immigration Service. 

Utilities: Utilities means electricity, gas, other heating, refrigeration and cooking fuels. Telephone service is not 

included as a utility. 

Utility Allowance:. If the costs of Utilities and other housing services for an assisted unit are not included in the 

Tenant Rent but are the responsibility of the Family occupying the unit, an amount equal to the estimate made by 

the Housing Authority of the monthly cost of a reasonable consumption of such utilities and other services of the 

unit by an energy-conservative household of modest circumstances consistent with the requirements of a safe, 

sanitary, and healthful living environment.  

 
A utility allowance is not provided to a Non-public housing over-income family. 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-IX/part-966


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 14 

 
Utility Reimbursement: Applies ONLY to Tenants paying the Income-based Formula Rent. The amount, if any, by 

which the Utility Allowance for the unit, if applicable, exceeds the Total Tenant Payment for the Family occupying 

the unit. 

Very Low-Income Family: A Low-Income Family whose Annual income does not exceed the Very Low-Income Limit, 

which is 50% of the median income for the area (AMI), as determined by HUD, with adjustments for smaller and 

larger families. 

Violent Criminal Activity: Any criminal activity that has as one of its elements the use, attempted use, or 

threatened use of physical force substantial enough to cause, or be reasonably likely to cause, serious bodily injury 

or property damage.  

Welfare Assistance: Welfare or other payments to families or individuals, based on need, that are made under 

programs funded separately or jointly, by federal, state or local governments. 

Welfare Benefit Reduction: A reduction of welfare benefits by the welfare agency, in whole or in part, for a family 

member, as determined by the welfare agency, because of fraud by a family member in connection with the 

welfare program, or because of welfare agency sanction against a family member for noncompliance with a welfare 

agency requirement to participate in an economic self-sufficiency program. 

“Welfare reduction” does not include a reduction or termination of welfare benefits by the welfare agency: 

1. At the expiration of a lifetime or other time limit on the payment of welfare benefits; 

2. Because a family member is not able to obtain employment, even though the family member has complied 

with welfare agency economic self-sufficiency or work activities requirements; or 

3. Because a family member has not complied with other welfare agency requirements. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 15 

 

SECTION 2 RECEIPT OF APPLICATIONS 
Revised 06/14/2023 
 

A. Establishing a Waiting List 
 

1. Written applications on the Authority Standard Application Form(s) will be accepted from all Families seeking 
admission to the program and a waiting list maintained of apparently eligible Families. Due to the demand for 
housing in the Housing Authority’s jurisdiction, the Housing Authority may take applications on an open enrollment 
basis, depending upon the length of the waiting list. Unless the waiting list is closed, or applications are only being 
taken on an open enrollment basis, the Authority will accept an application for an applicant who wants to apply, 
even if an informal discussion shows that the applicant may not be eligible. Applications will be received, in person 
or by mail, at any of the Housing Authority Management Offices during posted hours. Applications will be mailed to 
interested families upon request. 

 
A separate waiting list may be kept for applicants referred due to an Agreement with a Social Service Agency if prior 
HUD approval is received. 

 
Persons with disabilities who require a reasonable accommodation in completing an application may call the 
Housing Authority to make special arrangements. A Telecommunication Device for the Deaf (TDD) is available for 
the hearing impaired. The TDD telephone number is posted in each Management Office. 
 

2. All applications will be dated, time-stamped, and processed to the extent necessary to determine whether the 
applicant is eligible. Applications will be organized on the waiting list according to the bedroom size needed, 
preference, and date and time of application and kept in a permanent file. 
 

3. The application process will involve two phases. The first phase is the initial application for housing assistance, or 
the pre-application. The pre-application requires the family to provide limited basic information establishing any 
preferences to which they may be entitled. This first phase results in the family’s placement on the waiting list. 
 

4. Upon receipt of the family’s pre-application, the Housing Authority will make a preliminary determination of 
eligibility. The Housing Authority will notify the family in writing of the date and time of placement on the waiting 
list, and the approximate wait before housing may be offered. If the Housing Authority determines the family to be 
ineligible, the notice will state the reasons therefore and will offer the family the opportunity of an informal review 
of the determination. 
 
If the applicant is determined initially eligible but no dwelling unit is available, the applicant is to be notified in 
writing that the application is on the waiting list and when a suitable unit may become available (insofar as such 
date can be reasonably determined). 
 
The applicant may at any time report changes in their applicant status including changes in family composition, 
income, or preference factors. The Housing Authority will annotate the applicant’s file and will update their place 
on the waiting list. Confirmation of the changes will be confirmed with the family in writing.  
 
The second phase is the final determination of eligibility, referred to as the full application. The full application 
takes place when the family nears the top of the waiting list. The Housing Authority will ensure that verification of 
all preferences, eligibility, suitability, and selection factors are current in order to determine the family’s final 
eligibility for admission into the Public Housing Program. 

 
B. Suspension of Applications 

 
If the number of families on the waiting list with Local Preferences greatly exceeds the number of families that the 

Housing Authority is likely to be able to house within the coming year, the Housing Authority may at any time 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 16 

 
suspend the acceptance or processing of new applications or the addition of any new applicants on the waiting list. 

Any such suspension (and any subsequent reopening of applications) will be publicly announced by the Housing 

Authority through publication in a newspaper of general circulation as well as through minority media and other 

suitable means. 

 
C. Applicant Check-In Policy 

 
To keep the waiting list current, the Housing Authority will may mail a continuing interest letter to the last known 

address of each applicant every six months. The letter will require the applicant to return a response card to the 

Housing Authority within 30 days in order to remain active on the waiting list. Those applicants failing to respond 

will be removed from the waiting list without further notice. Any applicant who subsequently maintains that their 

failure to properly respond to the interest letter was caused by their disability will be provided reasonable 

accommodation to explain their circumstances. Should the Family be reinstated, their application will be placed in 

their former position on the waiting list. 

 
D. Missed Appointments 

 
All applicants who fails to keep a scheduled appointment with the Housing Authority will be sent a notice of 

termination of the process for eligibility. The Housing Authority will allow the family to reschedule for good cause. 

Generally, no more than one opportunity will be given to reschedule without good cause, and no more than two 

opportunities will be given for good cause. When good cause exists for missing an appointment, the Housing 

Authority will work closely with the family to find a more suitable time. Applicants will be offered the right to an 

informal review before being removed from the waiting list. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 17 

 

SECTION 3 OCCUPANCY STANDARDS 
Revised 06/14/2023 
 

A. In determining the proper bedroom size for each Family, the following general principles will apply: 
 

1. Avoidance of overcrowding; 
2. Compliance with applicable federal, state, or local requirements. 

 
These general principles result in the following occupancy standards (See Section 3.C for the possible exceptions to 
these standards): 

 

 Number of Persons 

No. of Bedrooms Minimum Maximum 

1 1 2 

2 2 4 

3 3 6 

4 4 8 

5 7 10 

 
B. In addition to meeting the minimum-maximum standards shown above, the following criteria will also be used in 

determining the proper bedroom size assigned: 
 
1. No more than two persons will be required to occupy a bedroom. 

 
2. Persons of the opposite sex, other than husband and wife, will not be required to share a bedroom. Two 

unrelated, unmarried adult individuals who have indicated a current, regular relationship with each other and 
who have been determined eligible as a Family, will be treated the same as husband and wife and assigned to 
one bedroom. 

 
3. Persons of different generations will not be required to share a bedroom. As an example, a grandmother will 

not be required to share a bedroom with her children or her grandchildren. 
 

4. Children: 
a. Children of the same sex must share a bedroom. 
b. Children of the opposite sex, with the exception of those under the age of four, will not be required to 

share a bedroom. At the option of the family, children of the opposite sex past the age of four years, 
may share the same bedroom or living/sleeping room for continued occupancy. 

c. Adults and children will not be required to share a bedroom. 
d. Included in determining the bedroom size are the following: 

1. All children anticipated to reside regularly in a dwelling unit. Examples include children 
expected to be born to pregnant women, children who are in the process of being adopted by 
an adult, or children whose custody is being obtained by an adult; 

2. Children who are away at school, but who will live with the family during breaks; 
3. Children who are temporarily absent from the home due to placement in foster care; 
4. Foster children. 

 
5. Two or more single elderly persons or persons with disabilities residing in the same dwelling unit will be 

assigned a unit so that each has a separate bedroom, or so that the bedrooms may be occupied by two 
persons, at the option of the Family. 

 
6. A live-in aide who is not a member of the family will not be required to share a bedroom with another 

unrelated member of the household. A live-in aide’s family members may reside in the unit provided doing so: 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 18 

 
a. Does not increase the subsidy by the cost of an additional bedroom; and 
b. The presence of the live-in aide’s family does not overcrowd the unit. 

 
7. Dwelling units will be assigned so as not to require use of the living room for sleeping purposes, with the 

exception of zero-bedroom units. 
 

8. Space will not be provided for a family member who will be absent most of the time, such as a member who is 
away in the military. 

 
9. A single person who is not an elderly or displaced person, or a person with disabilities, or the remaining 

member of a tenant family may not be assigned a unit with two or more bedrooms.  
 

C. Granting of Exceptions to Unit Size Standards 
 

1. The criteria and standards prescribed for the determination of any applicant’s unit size should apply to the vast 
majority of families. Unique situations, such as verified medical need, however, may warrant the assignment of 
a different size of unit than stated in the Authority’s occupancy standards. As an example, a family may need an 
exception to the occupancy standards for a unit that is large enough to accommodate a member of the family 
or a person associated with that household who has a physical or mental handicap. Such exceptions, however, 
must be fully documented in the applicant’s or tenant’s file. 

 
2. Units smaller than assigned through the above guidelines: A family may request a smaller unit size than the 

guidelines allow. The Housing Authority will allow the smaller size unit so long as generally no more than two 
people per bedroom are assigned. In such situations, the family will sign a certification stating they understand 
they will be ineligible for a larger size unit for three years or until the family size changes, whichever may occur 
first.  

 
3. Where it is found that the size of the dwelling unit is no longer suitable for the Family in accordance with these 

standards, a request for Transfer by the Family will be considered at the time of the Family’s next Annual 
Review. In such cases, Families who are considered to be over-housed or under-housed will be placed on the 
transfer waiting list according to the date that they became eligible for the alternate size unit. A family on the 
transfer waiting list will be required to move to their new unit as soon as administratively possible. Failure to 
move after receipt of proper notification will be considered a violation of the Dwelling Lease. 

 
4. If there are no families on the waiting list for a larger unit size, smaller families may be housed if they sign a 

release form stating they will transfer (at the family’s own expense) to the appropriate size unit when an 
eligible family needing the larger unit applies. The family transferring will be provided at least 30 days’ advance 
notice before being required to move.  
 

5. Larger units may be offered in order to improve the marketing of a development suffering a high vacancy rate 
or as a de-concentration incentive. 

 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 19 

 

SECTION 4 CONDITIONS GOVERNING ELIGIBILITY 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
A. General Guidelines 
 

1. In determining an applicant’s eligibility for admission, the Authority will evaluate all household members to 
determine their eligibility for the Public Housing program (See 4.B.) as well as their suitability as tenants. The 
Authority will reject any application where any household member would be reasonably expected to have a 
detrimental effect on other tenants, the development environment, or Housing Authority employees, or, it is 
determined that the applicant would be unable to manage their household or comply with or be held accountable 
for the Lease terms. 

 

2. In making the determination on tenant suitability, the Authority will assure that all tenant selection is objective and 
reasonable. The Housing Authority will look at past conduct as an indicator of future conduct. The Authority will 
consider reasonable and objective aspects of the applicant’s background including the following general areas (See 
Sections 4.B. and 4.C): 

 

a. History of meeting financial obligations, especially rent; 
b. Ability to maintain (or with assistance would have the ability to maintain) their housing in a decent and safe 

condition based on living or housekeeping habits and whether such habits could adversely affect the 
health, safety, or welfare of other tenants; 

c. History of criminal activity by any household member involving drug-related criminal activity, violent 
criminal activity, or other criminal activity that would adversely affect the health, safety, or right to 
peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other of other tenants or staff or cause damage to the property 
(see definitions Section 1); 

d. History of disturbing neighbors or destruction of property; 
e. History of having committed fraud in connection with any federal housing assistance program, including 

the intentional misrepresentation of information related to their housing application or benefits derived 
there from; and 

f. History of abusing alcohol in a way that may interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful 
enjoyment by others. 
 

3. The Authority will rely on third party sources of information which may include, but not be limited to, Housing 
Authority records, personal interviews, a minimum of three years’ prior Landlord References, social workers, parole 
officers, criminal and court records, clinics, physicians, police departments, employers, etc. 

 

4. The Housing Authority will ask applicants to provide information demonstrating their ability to comply with the 
essential elements of the lease. The Housing Authority will verify the information provided. Such verification may 
include but may not be limited to the following: 

 

a. A credit check of the head, spouses and co-head; 
b. A rental history check of all adult family members; 
c. A criminal background check conducted on all adult household members, including live-in aides. This check 

will be made through state or local law enforcement or court records in those cases where the household 
member has lived in the local jurisdiction for the last three years. Where the individual has lived outside 
the local area, the Housing Authority may contact law enforcement agencies where the individual had lived 
or request a check through the FBI’s National Crime Information Center (NCIC).  All criminal background 
check results will be kept in an eligibility review file in a locked file cabinet.  Once reviewed and its use is no 
longer required for its intended purpose, the certified criminal background check is destroyed. However, 
the top portion of the WSP request which is kept in the applicant file to document that the review has been 
completed; 

d. A check of the United States Department of Justice National Sex Offender Public Website (NSOPW) 

for each adult household member, including live-in aides. No individual subject to “life-time” registry 

http://www.nsopw.gov/?AspxAutoDetectCookieSupport=1


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 20 

 
with this program will be admitted to SWHA’s programs. If an applicant household contains such a 

member, the family will be given the option to remove the member from the household in order to 

gain admission to housing. If they choose not to remove the member, they will be denied admission. 

See Section 4.A.2.c and Section 4.C for additional information regarding eligibility of other individuals 

required to register under this program/website. 

 
The Housing Authority will access its own resources for obtaining credit and criminal history checks and 
verifying information provided at no cost to the applicant household. As such, the Housing Authority will 
not accept “comprehensive reusable tenant screening reports” prepared by a consumer reporting agency 
at the direction of the prospective tenant/household for use in the screening process.  

5. In the event of the receipt of unfavorable information with respect to an applicant, consideration will be given to 
the time, nature, and extent of the applicant’s conduct and to factors which might indicate a reasonable probability 
of favorable future conduct. Upon receipt of any unfavorable information, an applicant will receive written notice 
form the Housing Authority informing them of their right to discuss this information and provide any mitigating 
circumstances prior to a final decision being made on their eligibility.  

 

6. The same standards of tenant suitability that the Housing Authority uses for applicants will be used in evaluating a 
person who is joining a Family already in occupancy, including a request to add a live-in aide to the dwelling unit. 
The person must meet the Authority’s standards prior to being added to the household. 
 

7. In deciding whether to admit applicants who are borderline, the Housing Authority will recognize that for every 
marginal applicant it admits, it is denying the opportunity of housing to another applicant who clearly meets the 
Authority’s standards. 

 

B. Eligibility Criteria 
 

There are to be eligible for admission to public housing projects operated by this Authority only those applicants: 
 

1. Who, at the time of application, qualify as a Family as defined in Section 1 of this policy; 
 

a. An applicant family will not be put on the waiting list as an Elderly Family before the head, spouse, or sole 
member has reached age 62. 

b. Applicants will not be placed on the waiting list where the Head of the Household has not yet reached the age 
of 18. 

c. A Single Person (see definitions, Section 1) will be offered housing assistance only after no qualified elderly or 
displaced person(s), or person(s) with disabilities remain on the waiting list for the same bedroom size. 

 

2. Whose Annual Income, at the time of application, does not exceed the Low Income Limit set by HUD (cannot 
exceed 80% of the median income for the area). (See Exhibit E) 
 

The Low-Income Limit applies only at admission and is not applicable for continued occupancy. See Section 11.L for 
information regarding income restrictions that apply to current public housing occupants. 
 

An applicant who initially qualifies but whose income subsequently increases beyond the income limits prior to 
housing will be denied admission. 
 

The income limit restrictions do not apply to a family who needs or wants to transfer to another dwelling unit 
within the Authority’s public housing program. However, a family may not be admitted to the Public Housing 
program from another assisted program, or from another Housing Authority without meeting the income limit 
restrictions applicable to this Housing Authority. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 21 

 
3. Whose family members qualify as Citizens, Nationals, or as Noncitizens who have eligible immigration status (as 

defined in Section 1) (Also: See Exhibit G. VII for verification requirements and Exhibit K for information regarding 
calculation of assistance following immigration verification). 
 

a. A family that consists of a single individual who does not contend to have U.S. citizenship or eligible 
immigration status (See Section 1) is not eligible. 

b. A family that includes (2) or more individuals must include at least one household member who is a U.S. 
citizen or has eligible immigration status. The HA may not make assistance available to a family applying for 
assistance until at least the eligibility of one family member has been established by the submission of the 
required documentation (and then assistance must be prorated based on the number of individuals in the 
family for whom the required verification has been submitted.) 

c. Once verification has been properly submitted, no family will have their assistance delayed, denied, or reduced 
because of delays in verifying this information on the part of the USCIS. 

 

4. Who disclose and submit required documentation to verify the assigned Social Security Number for each Family 
Member. 

a. A family is required to disclose and submit proper SSN documentation for each household member. 
However, the HA may not deny assistance to a Mixed Family (see Section 1) due to non-disclosure of 
an SSN by an individual who does not contend to have eligible immigration status. 

 
 

5. Whose family size is such that, according to the Authority’s occupancy standards (See Section 3), an appropriate 
size dwelling unit is available; 
 

6. Who sign the required consent forms: 
 

a. In order to be eligible, each member of the family who is at least 18 years of age, and each family head and 
spouse regardless of age, must sign one or more consent forms. 

b. The consent form must contain, at a minimum, the following: 
1. A provision authorizing HUD or the Housing Authority to obtain from State Wage Information 

Collection Agencies (SWICAs) any information or materials necessary to complete or verify the 
application for participation or for eligibility for continued occupancy; and 

2. A provision authorizing HUD or the Housing Authority to verify with previous or current employers 
income information pertinent to the family’s eligibility for or level of assistance; 

3. A provision authorizing HUD to request income information from the IRS and the SSA for the sole 
purpose of verifying income information pertinent to the family’s eligibility or level of benefits; and 

4. A statement that the authorization to release the information requested by the consent form expires 
15 months after the date the consent form is signed. 

 

C. Grounds for Denial of Application (Screening for Suitability) 
 

In addition to the eligibility criteria, the Housing Authority is not required or obligated to house applicants who: 
 

1. Have engaged in abusive, violent or threatening behavior directed toward a Housing Authority staff member. 
Applicants who have a history of such behavior will be denied application to the Authority’s housing programs for a 
minimum period of 10 years. 
 

2. Have, within the previous year, previously had their application for public housing denied due to failure to meet the 
suitability criteria. Applicants who have failed to meet these suitability criteria will be considered ineligible to 
reapply for housing assistance for one year from the date the previous application was denied. 

 

3. Have failed to respond to a written request for information or a request to declare their continued interest in the 
program.  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 22 

 
 

4. Have failed to provide, within the necessary time limits, the required verification to determine their eligibility and 
income/rent (including required Social Security Verification for all household members six years of age and older); 

 

5. Currently owe rent or other amounts to the Housing Authority or to another Housing Authority in connection with 
public housing or Section 8 programs; 

 

6. Have a history of not meeting financial obligations, especially rent. 
 

7. Lack the ability (with assistance) to maintain their housing in a decent, and safe condition where such habits could 
adversely affect the health, safety, or welfare of other tenants. 

 

8. Have committed fraud or bribery in connection with any federal housing assistance program, including the 
intentional misrepresentation of information relating to their housing benefits. 

 

9. Have misrepresented any material fact during the application process. If the Authority determines after an 
applicant has been housed that such misrepresentation has occurred, the Housing Authority will terminate the 
Family’s Lease and, if applicable, charge retroactive rent. 

 

10. Whose conduct in present or prior housing has been such that admission to the program would adversely affect the 
health, safety, or welfare of other residents, or the physical environment, or the financial stability of the project. A 
record of any of the following may be sufficient cause for the Authority to deny eligibility: 

a. A record of non-payment of rightful obligations, including rent and utilities; 
 

b. A record of disturbance of neighbors or destroying property; 
 

c. A record of poor living or housekeeping habits which could adversely affect the health, safety, or welfare of 
other tenants; 
 

d. A determination by the Housing Authority that the use of alcohol or drugs by an applicant would likely 
result in conduct that would adversely affect the project environment. 
 

11. Have a history of conviction for criminal activity by any Family Member which would be judged by the Housing 
Authority to have an adverse effect on the health, safety, or welfare of Housing Authority residents or employees, 
or the physical environment or financial stability of the development.  For example, a history involving drug-
related criminal activity, violent criminal activity or other criminal activity (as defined in Section 1) will be 
considered cause for denial of housing assistance. The following is a list of how convictions for criminal activity 
will impact the Housing Authority’s determination of applicant eligibility.  

a. A family Member who is bound to “lifetime registration” under any state sex offender registration program 
is DENIED for LIFE from occupancy in any assisted housing development. 
 

b. A family member who has ever been convicted of manufacturing or producing methamphetamine (speed) 
in a Public Housing development or in a Section 8 assisted property is DENIED for LIFE from occupancy in 
any assisted housing development. 

 
While the above list is not all-inclusive, it provides insight to the type of convictions considered to have a direct 
adverse impact upon Housing Authority residents, units and communities. However, while a review of criminal 
history is an important tool in determining an individual’s eligibility/suitability for program participation, a record of 
conviction may not automatically exclude an applicant from consideration. Except where federal regulations have 
imposed “life-time denials” of program eligibility (see above), prior to a final determination of program 
eligibility/suitability the Housing Authority will provide applicants an opportunity to present mitigating information 
that when taken into consideration may result in a determination that the applicant could be considered for 
tenancy.  
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 23 

 
12. Who have been evicted from public housing, Indian housing, Section 23, or any Section 8 housing program because 

of drug-related criminal activity involving the personal use or possession for personal use within the previous three 
years. Persons evicted from any of the listed federal housing programs are ineligible for admission to the Public 
Housing program for a period of three years, beginning on the date of such eviction. 

a. The Housing Authority may waive this requirement if: 

 The person demonstrates successful completion of a rehabilitation program approved by the Housing 
Authority, or; 

 The circumstances leading to the eviction no longer exist. For example, the individual involved in drug-
related criminal activity no longer resides in the household because the person is incarcerated. 
 

13. Were evicted from assisted housing within five years of the projected date of admission because of drug-related 
criminal activity involving the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, or possession with the intent to manufacture, 
sell, distribute a controlled substance as defined in Section 102 of the Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. 802; 

 

14. Have been illegally using a controlled substance, or, have given the Housing Authority reasonable cause to believe 
that their pattern of illegal use of a controlled substance may interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful 
enjoyment of the premises by other residents. 

a. The Housing Authority may waive this provision if the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
Housing Authority that they no longer engage in the illegal use of a controlled substance and 

 has successfully completed a supervised drug rehabilitation program; 

 has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully; or, 

 is participating in a supervised drug rehabilitation program. 
 

15. Have given the Housing Authority reasonable cause to believe that the applicant abuses alcohol, or has a pattern of 
alcohol abuse, which may interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises by other 
residents. 

a. The Housing Authority may waive this provision if the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction of the 
Housing Authority that they no longer engage in the abuse of alcohol and 

 has successfully completed a supervised alcohol treatment program; 

 has otherwise been rehabilitated successfully; or, 

 is participating in a supervised alcohol rehabilitation program. 
 

16. Have a Household Member who has ever been evicted from public housing or terminated under the Section 8 
Certificate/Voucher Program. 

  

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title21-section802&num=0&edition=prelim


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 24 

 

SECTION 5 DENIAL OF APPLICATION/INFORMAL REVIEW 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
A. Applicant Removal from Waiting List 

Any applicant whose name is being removed from the waiting list will be notified by the Housing Authority, in writing, 
that they have  10 calendar days from the date of the written correspondence to present mitigating circumstances or 
request an informal review. The letter will also indicate that their name will be removed from the waiting list if they fail 
to respond within the timeframe specified. The Housing Authority system of removing applicant names from the 
waiting list may not violate the rights of persons with disabilities. If an applicant claims that their failure to respond to a 
request for information or updates was caused by a disability, the Housing Authority will verify that there is in fact a 
disability and the disability caused the failure to respond, and provide a reasonable accommodation. An example of a 
reasonable accommodation would be to reinstate the applicant on the waiting list based on the date and time of the 
original application. 

 
B. Informal Review 

If the Housing Authority determines than an applicant does not meet the criteria for receiving public housing 
assistance, the Housing Authority will promptly provide the applicant with written notice of the determination. The 
notice must contain a brief statement of the reason(s) for the decision and state that the applicant may request an 
informal review of the decision within 10 business days of the denial (See Exhibit R). The Housing Authority will describe 
how to obtain the informal review.  

 
The informal review may be conducted by any person designated by the Housing Authority, other than a person who 
made or approved the decision under review or subordinate of this person. The applicant must be given the 
opportunity to present written or oral objections to the Housing Authority’s decision. The Housing Authority must 
notify the applicant of the final decision within 14 calendar days after the informal review, including a brief statement 
of the reasons for the final decision. 

 
C. Denial due to immigration status 

Families denied assistance as a result of their immigration status will be informed of their right to request an appeal of 
the results of the USCIS verification to the USCIS or request an Informal Hearing with the Housing Authority (in 
lieu/upon completion of the USCIS appeal). The notice will also inform the applicant: 

 
1. Of the reason for the denial; 
2. That they may be eligible for proration of assistance based on the number of family members with “eligible 

immigration status”; 
3. Of the time limits and procedures that must be followed when requesting an appeal to the USCIS or Housing 

Authority; 
4. That assistance may not be delayed, denied or reduced until the conclusion of the USCIS appeal process, but, that 

assistance may be delayed while awaiting the outcome of the Housing Authority’s Informal Hearing process. 
 

D. Denial due to Criminal History Background Screening 
Before denial of admission on the basis of criminal background record, household will be notified of the 
proposed action. A copy of the criminal record will be provided to the subject of the record and the applicant 
along with the notice of pending denial described above. The applicant will be provided an opportunity to 
dispute the accuracy and relevance of that record through the informal review process. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 25 

 

SECTION 6 TENANT SELECTION AND ASSIGNMENT PLAN 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
A. Income Targeting Requirements 
The Housing Authority will adhere to the statutory requirement that at least 40% of newly admitted families in any 

fiscal year be families whose annual income is at or below 30% of the area median income (extremely low-income 

families). To insure this requirement is met, the Housing Authority will quarterly monitor the incomes of newly 

admitted families and the incomes of the families on the waiting list. If it appears that the requirement to house 

extremely low-income families will not be met, the Housing Authority will skip higher income families on the 

waiting list to reach extremely low-income families. 

If there are not enough extremely low-income families on the waiting list, the Housing Authority will conduct 

outreach on a non-discriminatory basis to attract extremely low-income families to reach the statutory 

requirement. 

 
B. Income Mixing/De-concentration of Poverty in Family Developments 
In accordance with federal law and federal implementing regulations, it is the policy of the Housing Authority to 

provide for de-concentration of poverty and encourage income mixing by bringing higher income families into 

lower income family developments and lower income families into higher income family developments. Toward this 

end, the Housing Authority will “skip” families on the waiting list to reach other families with a lower or higher 

income. The Housing Authority will accomplish this in a uniform and non-discriminating manner. 

The Housing Authority will affirmatively market its housing to all eligible income groups. Lower income applicants 

will not be steered toward lower income developments and higher income applicants will not be steered toward 

high income developments. 

Where necessary in order to comply with de-concentration regulations, the Housing Authority may offer incentives 

to encourage applicant families whose income classification would help to meet the de-concentration goals of a 

particular development. Various incentives may be used at different times, or under different conditions, but will 

always be provided in a consistent and nondiscriminatory manner. 

Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the Housing Authority will analyze the income levels of families residing in 

its family developments in order to determine whether special marketing strategies or de-concentration incentives 

need to be implemented. 

 
C. Local Preferences 
The Housing Authority will select families sequentially based on date and time, within each bedroom size category 

and based on the following local preference categories: 

 
1. Local Preference Number 1 - Applicants who have documented that they meet one of the three urgent housing 

need categories (note: see Exhibit H for a complete listing of the definitions of each category, the criteria 
established to meet them, and verification procedures necessary for documentation any claimed preferences): 
 

 Involuntarily Displaced. An applicant is or will be considered involuntarily displaced if the applicant has vacated 
or will have to vacate the unit where the applicant lives because of one or more of the following: 
o Displacement by disaster; 
o Displacement by government action; 
o Displacement by action of a housing owner; 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 26 

 
o Displacement by domestic violence (domestic violence is defined as actual or threatened physical violence 

directed against one or more members of the applicant family by a spouse or other member of the 
applicant’s household); 

o Displacement to avoid reprisals; 
o Displacement by hate crimes (hate crimes are actual or threatened physical violence of intimidation that is 

directed against a person or his or her property and that is based on the person’s race, color, religion, sex, 
national origin, handicap, or familial status); 

o Displacement by inaccessibility of unit; 
o Displacement because of HUD disposition of a multifamily project. 

 

 Substandard Housing. A family is living in substandard housing if they are living in housing that: 
o Is dilapidated; 
o Does not have operable indoor plumbing; 
o Does not have a usable flush toilet inside the unit for the exclusive use of the family; 
o Does not have electricity, or has inadequate or unsafe electrical service; 
o Does not have a safe or adequate source of heat; 
o Should, but does not, have a kitchen; 
o Has been declared unfit for habitation by an agency or unit of government. 

 

 Rent Burden. A rent-burdened family is a family who is currently paying more than 50% of total family income 
for rent and utilities. 

 
2. Local Preference Number 2 - All other applicants will receive preference number 2 and will be selected according to 

the date and time of their application but only after applications for local preference number one have been 
exhausted. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, applicants who are elderly, disabled, or displaced will be offered housing before other 
single persons. 

 
D. Buildings Designed for the Elderly and Disabled (“Mixed Population Buildings”) 
Using the local preferences above, preference for “mixed population buildings” will be given to elderly and disabled 

applicants. If there are no elderly or disabled applicants on the waiting list, preference will then be given to “near-

elderly” applicants as defined in Section I. If there are no “near-elderly” families on the waiting list, units will be 

offered to applicants who qualify for the appropriate bedroom size. 

 
E. Accessible Units 
Accessible units will be first offered to current tenants who have documented a need to transfer into an accessible 

unit. If there are no current tenants with this need, units will be offered within the local preferences to applicants 

who may benefit from the accessible features. If there are no applicants who would benefit from the accessible 

features, the units will be offered to other applicants in the order that their names come to the top of the waiting 

list. Such applicants must, however, sign a release form stating they will accept a transfer (at their own expense) if, 

at a future time, a family requiring a unit with an accessible feature applies. Any family required to transfer will be 

provided at least 30 days’ advance notice before being required to move. Failure to move after receipt of proper 

notification will be considered a violation of the Dwelling Lease.  

 
F. Non-Smoking and Smoke Free Buildings 
The Housing Authority may designate certain buildings as Non-Smoking or Smoke Free. Residents, other household 
members, visitors and guests are not allowed to smoke within the common areas and hallways of these buildings, inside 
dwelling units, or, within any designated buffer zones surrounding the building exterior of sites designated as Non-smoking 
or Smoke Free. Resident failure to adhere to non-smoking and smoke free restrictions established by the Housing Authority, 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 27 

 
or to ensure their household members, visitors and guests abide by the policy will be considered a violation of the Dwelling 
Lease and could be cause for termination of tenancy. 

 
G. Verification of Local Preferences 
All applicants will be allowed to initially qualify for a local preference by claiming it on the Housing Authority’s 

preference certification form. Prior to actually being offered housing, all applicants will be required to document 

that a claimed local preference still exists (see Exhibit G for specific verification requirements).  

 
H. Denial of Local Preference 
An applicant will be denied qualification for a local preference if the applicant is unable to adequately document 

their qualification for the claimed preference at the time of being offered housing assistance. If such verification 

cannot be provided, the applicant will be returned to the waiting list in the local preference for which they qualify 

based on their original date and time of their application. 

An applicant denied a preference will receive a prompt written notice giving a brief statement of the reasons for 

the denial and be given an opportunity to meet with the Regional Manager of the appropriate office to review the 

denial. This review will be limited only to the issue of whether the applicant meets the criteria for receiving a 

preference. 

 
I. Requests for A Specific Development Preference 
Written applications will be received, in person or by mail, at any of the Authority’s Management Offices for the 

developments operated by Housing Authority. Applicants will be informed that a request for a particular 

development or developments within the Housing Authority’s area of operation will not be considered. All 

applicants will be placed on the appropriate waiting list, by bedroom size, preference, and date and time of 

application. 

When the Housing Authority determines that a suitable unit has become available in one of the Housing Authority’s 

developments, the Housing Authority will offer the unit to the applicant at the top of the waiting list (according to 

local preference, date and time and, where appropriate, income category if necessary to meet de-concentration 

goals.) 

 
J. Offer and Rejection of Unit 
If in making the offer to the family, the Housing Authority skipped over other families on the waiting list in order to 

meet its de-concentration goal or offered the applicant any other de-concentration incentive and the applicant 

rejects the unit, the applicant will not lose their place on the waiting list and will not be otherwise penalized. 

If the Housing Authority did not skip over other families on the waiting list to reach this applicant, did not offer any 

other de-concentration incentive and the applicant rejects an offered unit two times without good cause, the 

applicant will forfeit their local preference and the date and time of the application will be changed to the date and 

time the unit was rejected. 

If the family, however, rejects the unit with documented good cause, they will not lose their place on the waiting 

list. Good cause includes reasons related to health, proximity to work, school, and child care (for those working or 

going to school). Good cause also includes documented situations where an applicant is temporarily unable to 

move at the time of the offer (such as major surgery requiring a period of time to recuperate, or serving on a jury). 

The applicant will be offered the right to an informal review of the decision to alter their application status. 

 
 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 28 

 
K. Record Keeping of Unit Offers 
The Housing Authority will maintain records concerning the offer of dwelling units which shows the location and 

size of each unit offered; the name, family size, race/ethnicity and preference ranking of the applicant to whom the 

offer is made; the date of acceptance or rejection of the offer; and the reason(s) for the rejection of the offer and 

the action taken by the Authority with respect to the rejection. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 29 

 

SECTION 7 LEASING of DWELLING UNITS 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
A Dwelling Lease is to be entered into between the Housing Authority and each of its tenant families. The public 

housing Dwelling Lease will be in the form shown in Exhibit J to this policy will be kept current at all times, and is to 

reflect the Tenant Rent being charged and the conditions governing occupancy. Non-public housing over-income 

families who remain in occupancy under the option to pay the alternative non-public housing rent will be required 

to enter into a separate non-public housing dwelling lease as described in Section 11.L of this policy. Required 

terms and conditions of the non-public housing dwelling lease are described 24 CFR 960.509 and may differ from 

the standard public housing lease. 

A. Execution of Dwelling Lease 
 
1. The Head of Household and Spouse, if any, are required to execute a Dwelling Lease in duplicate prior to actual 

admission. The copy will be given to the tenant and the original will be filed in the permanent record folder 
established for the Family. The Tenant will also be provided with a copy of the Grievance Procedure and a Request 
for Reasonable Accommodation form. 

 
2. If, through any cause, the signer of the Dwelling Lease ceases to be the Head of Household, the lease is to be 

voided and a new Dwelling Lease executed and signed by the new Head of Household of the Family, provided the 
Family is eligible for continued occupancy. 

 
3. If a tenant Family transfers to a different dwelling in the same or another public housing development operated by 

the Housing Authority, the existing lease is to be canceled and a new lease executed by the Head of Household and 
the Housing Authority for the dwelling into which the Family is to move. 

 
4. If, at any time during the tenant’s occupancy of the dwelling, any change in the tenant’s income, composition, or 

Family size results in a change in the Tenant Rent shown on the Dwelling Lease, the tenant will be required to sign a 
new Dwelling Lease, or Rider to the Dwelling Lease, showing the revised Tenant Rent. Tenant will also be required 
to sign a new Dwelling Lease, or Rider to the Dwelling Lease, in the event of a change in Tenant Rent due to a 
change in the Utility Allowance applicable to tenant’s unit, or change in federal law concerning calculation of 
Tenant Rent. All copies of leases are to be dated and signed by the Head of Household of the tenant’s Family and 
the authorized Housing Authority staff member. 

 
5. If the Housing Authority desires to change, amend, or waive any provision of the lease with respect to any 

particular tenant, an appropriate rider is to be prepared and made a part of the existing lease, and future leases, so 
long as the rider applies to the particular tenant. All copies of riders are to be dated and signed by the Head of 
Household of the tenant’s Family and the authorized Housing Authority staff member. 
 

6. In the event two or more single elderly persons or persons with disabilities reside in the same dwelling unit (See 
Section 1), a separate Dwelling Lease may be executed with each individual. 

 
  

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-IX/part-960/subpart-E/section-960.509


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 30 

 

SECTION 8 VERIFICATION and DOCUMENTATION of DATA 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
Applications, Housings, and Recertifications 

A. General Guidelines 
In order to carry out the Housing Authority’s responsibility to assure that income information provided is complete 

and accurate and to verify that eligibility, preference, admission, and benefit level determinations have been made 

properly, all factors affecting eligibility and tenant payment must be verified. This requirement is a condition of 

admission to, or continued occupancy of, any assisted housing unit. Failure to provide the required verification 

within the stated time limits will be considered sufficient grounds for canceling an application or termination of a 

Family’s Lease. Age and relationship will only be verified in those instances where needed to make a determination 

of level of assistance. 

Up-front HUD’s Enterprise Income Verification (EIV) system will be used when possible to verify tenant reported 

income for both annual and interim reviews completed as outlined in this ACOP. Whenever there is a substantial 

difference between the tenant-provided information and the information obtained using EIV ($200 per month, 

$2400 annually discrepancy), or when EIV system information is not available or is disputed, third party or other 

verification, including other databases that maintain income information in computerized form will be obtained as 

described below and in Exhibit G. 

EIV will not be used at the time of initial housing or to determine applicant eligibility. EIV will be checked within 120 

days of resident’s move-in date to verify income information.  A copy of this report will be placed in the resident 

file.  For these purposes, third party (independent) verification will be used whenever possible since it provides the 

most reliable data. The third party must be able to properly verify the statements of the Family. Third party written 

verification will normally be required, and other forms of third party verification used only if the Family’s file clearly 

indicates that third party written verification was impossible to obtain. 

To facilitate the obtaining of verification of information as may be deemed necessary by the Authority, the Head of 

Household and any other member of the Family over the age of 18 will be required to sign a Release of information 

(“Authorization”) form at the time of application, selection for housing, and each Annual Recertification. Refusal to 

sign the “Authorization” form will be sufficient cause to declare an applicant ineligible or terminate the assistance 

of a Tenant. 

In situations where an applicant or Tenant reports income that appears to be less than adequate for the Family’s 

needs, or if the Family appears to be eligible for income that is not reported (i.e., public assistance; unemployment 

compensation; child support; etc.), the absence of such income must be verified by the family. 

All verifications will be placed in the Family’s file  Unless disposed of in accordance with the HA’s approved 

disposition of records policy.  (See Exhibit S for more information) 

B. Effective Term of Verifications 
For initial housings, verifications will be considered valid if dated by the third party no later than 90 days prior to 

the Family being housed. If the verification is older than this, the source will be contacted and asked to provide 

information regarding any changes. 

For annual recertifications, verifications will be considered valid if dated by the third party no later than 120 days 

prior to the annual recertification date.  

For interim reviews, all factors reported to have changed since the last review must be re-verified and updated. 

Reverification of factors that have not been reported to have changed is not required, even if the documentation is 

more than 120 days old. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 31 

 
C. Methods of Verification -- In Order of Acceptability 
 

1. Up-front Income Verification through EIV or other sources. 
The EIV system will be used to verify and validate income amounts reported by the Tenant. EIV will be checked 
within 120 days of a resident’s move-in date to verify income information. A copy of this report will be placed 
in the resident file. Unreported income revealed by EIV or any discrepancy of $200 or more per month ($2,400 per 
year) must be verified using the hierarchy listed below. If a Tenant disputes an amount obtained through EIV, they 
have the right to meet with the Housing Authority to discuss the information. However, federal regulations prohibit 
the disclosure of EIV data to any third party. Only the individual for whom the record pertains may view the data, 
except in the case of a minor for whom the parent or guardian may view the data. If a meeting is requested, the 
Tenant must obtain documentation of the data using the hierarchy below of the disputed amount prior to the 
meeting rather than using the information obtained through EIV. 
 

2. Third Party Written 
Third party written verifications (transmitted through the mail) must be used unless the file clearly documents why 
this was impossible and one of the other methods of verification is used. 

 
3. Third Party Oral 

Third party oral verification (properly documented direct contact with a reliable source) can be by phone or in 
person by staff. Proper documentation includes: date and time of contact; name and source of the information; 
staff name; and concise summary of the information. 
 

4. Review of Documents 
When third party verification cannot be obtained, documents supporting the applicant’s/participant’s statements 
may be reviewed or photocopied, except where prohibited by law (i.e., government checks), and the staff member 
reviewing the documents must prepare a summary of the appropriate facts of such documents and sign and date 
the form if a photocopy cannot be obtained. 
  

5. Notarized Statement or Signed Affidavit 
A notarized statement or signed affidavit is the least acceptable form of verification and can only be used if the file 
is clearly documented as to why other source(s) were not available. This form of verification cannot be used for the 
convenience of the applicant/tenant nor in a situation where an applicant/tenant claims to be unable to remember 
necessary information. 

 
D. Specific Forms of Verification 
For more specific guidelines on verification requirements for income, assets, family composition, preferences, 

Social Security Numbers, immigration status, etc., see Exhibit G. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 32 

 

SECTION 9 DETERMINATION OF TOTAL TENANT PAYMENT 
AND TENANT RENT 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
FAMILY CHOICE 

At admission and each year in preparation for their annual reexamination, each family will be given the choice of 

having their rent determined under the income based formula rent method or having their rent set at the flat rent 

amount. See Section 11.L regarding additional rent recertification requirements applicable to over-Income and non-

public housing over-income households. 

THE FLAT RENT 

The Housing Authority has set a flat rent for each public housing unit. The flat rent is based on 80% Fair Market 

Rents (FMR) for the Housing Authority’s service area as determined annually by HUD. The amount of the flat rent 

will be adjusted annually based on changes to the HUD published Fair Market Rent. Affected families will be given a 

30-day notice of any rent change. Adjustments are applied on the anniversary date for each affected family (for 

more information on flat rents, see Section 10). 

The Housing Authority’s flat rents are posted at each of the developments and at the central office and are 

incorporated in this policy in Exhibit D. 

For families choosing the FLAT RENT option, the rent will be the Flat Rent (for their bedroom size) less the Utility 

Allowance. 

a. Families who opt for the flat rent will be required to go through the income reexamination process every 

three years, rather than the annual review they would otherwise undergo. 

 

b. Families who opt for the flat rent may request to have a reexamination and return to the income based 

formula rent method at any time for any of the following reasons: 

 

a. The family’s income has decreased. 

b. The family’s circumstances have changed increasing their expenses for child care, medical care, etc. 

c. Other circumstances creating a hardship on the family such that the formula method would be more 

financially feasible for the family. 

THE INCOME BASED FORMULA RENT METHOD 

The total tenant payment is equal to the highest of: 

1. 10% of monthly income; 
2. 30% of adjusted monthly income; 
3. The welfare rent; 
4. The Minimum Rent of $25, established by the Housing Authority. 

 
The family will pay the greater the amounts above . 

In the case of a family who has qualified for the income exclusion at Exhibit B.9, upon the expiration of the 12-

month period described in that section, an additional rent benefit accrues to the family. If the family member’s 

employment continues, then for the 12-month period following the 12-month period of disallowance, the resulting 

rent increase will be capped at 50% of the rent increase the family would have otherwise received.  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 33 

 
MINIMUM RENT 

The Housing Authority has set the minimum Total Tenant Payment at $25. However if the family requests a 

hardship exemption, the Housing Authority will immediately suspend the minimum rent for the family until the 

Housing Authority can determine whether the hardship exists and whether the hardship is of a temporary or long-

term nature. 

1. A hardship exists in the following circumstances: 
 

a. When the family has lost eligibility for or is waiting an eligibility determination for a federal, state, or local 
assistance program; including a family that includes a member who is a non-citizen lawfully admitted for 
permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act who would be entitled to public benefits 
but for title IV of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Act of 1996; 

 
b. When the family would be evicted as a result of the imposition of the minimum rent requirement; 

 
c. When the income of the family has decreased because of changed circumstances, including loss of 

employment; 
 

d. When the family has an increase in expenses because of changed circumstances, for medical costs, child 
care, transportation, education, or similar items; 

 
e. When a death has occurred in the family. 

 
2. No hardship. If the Housing Authority determines there is no qualifying hardship, the minimum rent will be 

reinstated, including requiring back payment of minimum rent for the time of suspension. 
 
3. Temporary hardship. If the Housing Authority reasonably determines that there is a qualifying hardship but 

that it is of a temporary nature, the minimum rent will be not be imposed for a period of 90 days from the date 
of the family’s request. At the end of the 90-day period, the minimum rent will be imposed retroactively to the 
time of suspension. The Housing Authority will offer a repayment agreement in accordance with the rest of this 
policy for any rent not paid during the period of suspension. During the suspension period the Housing 
Authority will not evict the family for nonpayment of the amount of tenant rent owed for the suspension 
period. 

 
4. Long-term hardship. If the Housing Authority determines there is a long-term hardship, the family will be 

exempt from the minimum rent requirement until the hardship no longer exists. 
 

5. Appeals. The family may use the grievance procedure to appeal the Housing Authority’s determination 
regarding the hardship. No escrow deposit will be required in order to access the grievance procedure. 

 
RENT FOR FAMILIES UNDER THE NONCITIZEN RULE 

A mixed family will receive full continuation of assistance if all of the following conditions are met: 

1. The family was receiving assistance on June 19, 1995; 
 
2. The family was granted continuation of assistance before November 29, 1996; 
 
3. The family’s head or spouse has eligible immigration status; and 
 
4. The family does not include any person who does not have eligible status other than the head of household, 

the spouse of the head of household, any parent of the head or spouse, or any child (under the age of 18) of 
the head or spouse. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 34 

 
 
If a mixed family qualifies for prorated assistance but decides not to accept it, or if the family has no eligible 

members, the family may be eligible for temporary deferral of termination of assistance to permit the family 

additional time for the orderly transition of some or all of its members to locate other affordable housing. Under 

this provision, the family receives full assistance. If assistance is granted under this provision prior to November 29, 

1996, it may last no longer than three years. If granted after that date, the maximum period of time for assistance 

under the provision is 18 months. The Housing Authority will grant each family a period of six months to find 

suitable affordable housing. If the family cannot find suitable affordable housing, the Housing Authority will provide 

additional search periods up to the maximum time allowable.  

Suitable housing means housing that is not substandard and is of appropriate size for the family. Affordable housing 

means that it can be rented for an amount not exceeding the amount the family pays for rent, plus utilities, plus 

25%. 

See Exhibit K, Section IV for information on determining Prorated Assistance for eligible Mixed Family households.  

The family’s assistance is prorated in the following manner: 

2. Determine the 95th percentile of gross rents (tenant rent plus utility allowance) for the Housing Authority. The 

95th percentile is called the maximum rent. 

 

4. Subtract the family’s total tenant payment from the maximum rent. The resulting number is called the 

maximum subsidy. 

 

6. Divide the maximum subsidy by the number of family members and multiply the result times the number of 

eligible family members. This yields the prorated subsidy. 

 

8. Subtract the prorated subsidy from the maximum rent to find the prorated total tenant payment. From this 

amount subtract the full utility allowance to obtain the prorated tenant rent. 

 
UTILITY ALLOWANCE  

The Housing Authority will establish a utility allowance for all check-metered utilities and for all tenant-paid utilities. 

The allowance will be based on a reasonable consumption of utilities by an energy-conservative household of 

modest circumstances consistent with the requirements of a safe, sanitary, and healthful environment. In setting 

the allowance, the Housing Authority will review the actual consumption of tenant families as well as changes made 

or anticipated due to modernization (weatherization efforts, installation of energy efficient appliances, etc.). 

Allowances will be evaluated at least annually and adjusted any time the review indicates the probability of a 

significant change in reasonable consumption requirements (including completion of modernization or other 

energy conservation measures implemented by the PHA) together with utility rate changes, result in a change of 

10% or more since the last revision to the allowances. 

The utility allowance will be subtracted from the family’s TTP, as defined in this policy, to determine the amount of 

the Tenant Rent. The Tenant Rent is the amount the family owes each month to the Housing Authority. The amount 

of the utility allowance is then still available to the family to pay the cost of their utilities. Any utility cost above the 

allowance is the responsibility of the tenant. Any savings resulting from utility costs below the amount of the 

allowance belongs to the tenant. If the Utility allowance is greater than the Tenant’s total tenant payment, the 

Housing Authority will provide utility reimbursement to the Family. 

Formatted: Normal, Right:  0",  No bullets or numbering,
Hyphenate, Tab stops: Not at  0"



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 35 

 
For Housing Authority paid utilities, the Housing Authority will monitor the utility consumption of each household. 

Any consumption in excess of the allowance established by the Housing Authority will be billed to the tenant 

quarterly. 

Utility allowance revisions as a result of rate changes will be retroactive to the first day of the month following the 

month in which the last rate change taken into account became effective.. Revisions based on changes in 

consumption or other reasons will become effective at each family’s next annual reexamination. 

Families with unusually high utility costs are encouraged to contact the Housing Authority for an energy analysis. 

The analysis may identify problems with the dwelling unit that once corrected will reduce energy costs. The analysis 

can also assist the family in identifying ways they can reduce their costs. 

No Utility Allowance is provided to a Non-public housing over-income household for whom the alternative minimum 
rent applies. 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 36 

 

SECTION 10 RECERTIFICATION 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
A. General Guidelines for Annual Recertification 

 
The Housing Authority will send a notification letter annually to a family letting them know that it is time for their 

annual reexamination, giving them the option of selecting either the flat rent or income-based formula method, 

and scheduling an appointment if they are currently paying a formula rent. If the family thinks they may want to 

switch from a flat rent to a formula rent, they should request an appointment. At the appointment, the family can 

make their final decision regarding which rent method they will choose. The letter also includes, for those families 

paying the income-based formula method, forms for the family to complete in preparation for the interview. The 

letter includes instructions permitting the family to reschedule the interview if necessary. The letter tells families 

who may need to make alternate arrangements due to a disability that they may contact staff to request an 

accommodation of their needs. 

During the appointment, the Housing Authority will determine whether family composition may require a transfer 

to a different bedroom size unit, and if so, the family’s name will be placed on the transfer list. 

An Annual Review will be conducted and will include the annual inspection of the unit. As a general rule, the Annual 

Review process will begin 90–120 days in advance of the scheduled reexamination date so that the Family can be 

given reasonable notice of any changes. Where appropriate, the Authority will use the same procedures for 

obtaining, verifying, and calculating information that were used at admission (see Section 8 and Exhibit G of this 

Policy) and will compare the information the Family reports to the Family’s most recent reexamination to identify 

any discrepancies. In addition, the Annual Reexamination will be used to determine whether the family is in 

compliance with the Community Service Requirement (see Section 11). 

If not previously verified, all household members six years of age and older must also provide the required Social 

Security number documentation (or certification) at the time of the Annual Review. Additionally, all family 

members who have not previously provided evidence of citizenship or eligible immigration status (i.e. family 

members added to the lease since the last annual review) will be required to do so at the time of the Annual 

Review. 

If the Family fails or refuses to provide the information needed (information that the Authority determines the 

Family is capable of supplying) within the required time limits, the Authority will terminate the family from the 

program. 

Once rent is established at the Annual Review, the rental rate will remain in effect until the next Annual Review or 

until circumstances occur that qualify for an Interim or Special Review. See Section 11.L regarding certification 

requirements specific to over-Income and non-public housing over-income households. 

1. Flat Rent Method 
 

The annual letter to flat rent payers regarding the reexamination process will state the following: 

a. Each year at the time of the annual reexamination, the family has the option of selecting a flat rent amount 
in lieu of completing the reexamination process and having their rent based on the formula amount. 

b. The amount of the rent. 
c. A fact sheet about income-based formula rents that explains the types of income counted, the most 

common types of income excluded, and the categories of allowances that can be deducted from income. 
d. Families who opt for the flat rent will be required to go through the income reexamination process every 

three years, rather than the annual review they otherwise would undergo, except for the Annual Unit 
Inspection and compliance with Community Work Requirement. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 37 

 
e. Families who opt for the flat rent may request to have a reexamination and return to the income-based 

method at any time for any of the following reasons: 
1. The family’s income has decreased. 
2. The family’s circumstances have changed increasing their expenses for child care, medical care, etc. 
3. Other circumstances creating a hardship on the family such that the formula method would be more 

financially feasible for the family. 
f. The dates upon which the Housing Authority expects to review the amount of the flat rent, the 

approximate rent increase the family could expect, and the approximate date upon which a future rent 
increase could become effective. 

g. The name and phone number of an individual to call to get additional information concerning flat rents. 
h. A certification for the family to sign accepting or declining the flat rent. 

 
Each year prior to their anniversary date, the Housing Authority will send a reexamination letter to the family 
offering the choice between a flat or an income-based formula rent. The opportunity to select the flat rent is 
available only at this time. At the appointment, the Housing Authority may assist the family in identifying the rent 
method that would be most advantageous for the family. If the family wishes to select the flat rent method without 
meeting with the Housing Authority representative, they may make the selection on the form and return the form 
to the Housing Authority. In such case, the Housing Authority will cancel the appointment. 

 
2. The Income-Based Formula Method 

 
During the interview, the family will provide all information regarding income, assets, expenses, and other 

information necessary to determine the family’s Total Tenant Payment (TTP). The family will sign the HUD 

consent form and other consent forms that later will be mailed to the sources that will verify the family 

circumstances. 

Upon receipt of verification, the Housing Authority will determine the family’s annual income and will 

calculate their rent as follows. 

The total tenant payment is equal to the highest of: 

a. 10% of monthly income; 
b. 30% of adjusted monthly income; 
c. The welfare rent; or, 
d. The Minimum rent of $25.00 established by the Housing Authority. 

 
The family’s TTP will be the greater of the amounts above. As outlined in this policy, the monthly Tenant 

Rent payable by the family with then be determined by subtracting the established Utility Allowance from 

the TTP. 

3. Effective Date of Rent Changes For Annual Reexaminations 
 
The new rent will generally be effective upon the anniversary date with 30 days’ notice of any rent increase 

to the family. 

If the rent determination is delayed due to a reason beyond the control of the family, then any rent 

increase will be effective the first of the month after the month in which the family receives a 30-day notice 

of the amount. (The family’s Annual Review date will not change as a result of such a delay in 

implementation of the increased rent.) If the new rent is a reduction and the delay is beyond the control of 

the family, the reduction will be effective as scheduled on the anniversary date. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 38 

 
If the family caused the delay, then any increase will be effective on the anniversary date. Any reduction 

will be effective the first of the month after the rent amount is determined. (The family’s Annual Review 

date will not change as a result of such a delay in implementation of the decreased rent.) 

B. General Guidelines for Special Recertification for Income-Based Rent Tenants 
 

If at the time of the Annual Review (or Admission), it is not possible to make an estimate of Adjusted Income for the 

next 12-month period with any degree of accuracy because of no current income, or, unstable past income 

patterns, the Authority will determine current rent based on available income data and annualize this amount. A 

Special Review will then be scheduled every 60 days until the income stabilizes and an annual income can be 

determined. This process will be continued, if necessary, up to the Family’s Annual Review, until such time as a 

reasonable estimate of Adjusted Income can be made. 

If income has changed at the time of any Special Review, the rate of income will again be projected for a 12-month 

period and rent charged accordingly.  

If at any time the Family reports it has zero income, Special Reviews will be scheduled at intervals no to exceed 

every three months until such time as a stable source of income is reported. If a Family is eligible for certain sources 

of income but claims they do not have any income, the Family will be required to document that they are not 

receiving income to which they are entitled. A Family reporting no income will also be required to submit a monthly 

budget (Form 409) to the Authority. 

 
C. General Guidelines Regarding Interim Review Policy for Income-Based Rent Tenants 
 

1. Reporting of Changes - Families will be required to report changes in household composition and housing (Family) 
income in the following manner: 
 

a. Changes must be reported in writing; 
b. Must be received by the Housing Authority within 10 business days of the occurrence. 

 
Failure to properly report any change is cause for termination of tenancy or housing assistance payments and, if 
applicable, will require a retroactive rent charge. 

 
2. Changes Qualifying for an Interim Review - An interim review will be conducted for reported changes in income or 

family composition in the following situations: 
 

a. Decrease in income, except when welfare assistance has been terminated for fraud or failure to meet the 
requirement to participate in an economic self-sufficiency program or work activity; 

b. Increase in deductions; 
c. Changes affecting family composition; 
d. Receipt of lump sum payments due to a delayed start of a periodic payment (excluding payments from 

Social Security or SSI); 
e. Increase in income for families on Credit Rent; 
f. Errors/misrepresentation/fraud; 
g. Any change resulting in an increase in tenant rent when the previous interim review resulted in a decrease 

in tenant rent. 
 

3. Processing of Reported Changes - upon receipt of the reported information, the changes will be processed in the 
following manner: 
 

a. If the change qualifies for an interim review, the Authority will: 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 39 

 
i. Consider all changes (current and previous). 
ii. Notify the tenant within 14 business days that the review will be conducted. 
iii. Always give the tenant 30 days’ written notice of a rent increase. 

 
b. If the change does not qualify for an interim review, the Authority will notify the tenant within 14 business 

days that the review will not be conducted. 
 

c. Whenever there is evidence that additional changes to income or composition will occur as a result of the 
reported changes, the Housing Authority reserves the right to delay processing an interim review for a 
period not to exceed 30 days. 

 
4. Effective Date of Rent Charges/Retroactive Charges 

 
a. Increased Tenant Rent 

 
i. If the change has been reported as required, the increased rent will be effected the first day of the 

second month following the month in which the change in family income or composition occurred. 
ii. If the change has been reported as required, and the processing of the interim review is delayed 

due to the fault of the Housing Authority, the rent increase will be effective the first of the month 
30 days following the processed change. 

iii. If the change has not been reported as required, or if the tenant fails to provide the required 
information, the family will be determined to have caused an unreasonable delay in the interim 
review process. The rent will be increased the first of the month 30 days following the processed 
change. However, the effective date of the increase will be the first of the month following the 
date the change occurred. Any money due the Housing Authority as a result of the difference 
between the date the rent was increased and the effective date of the increase will be charged to 
the tenant as retroactive rent. 

 
b. Decreased Tenant Rent 

 
i. If the change has been reported as required, a decrease in tenant rent will be effective the first day 

of the month following the change. However, no downward rent adjustments will be processed 
until all facts have been verified, even if a retroactive adjustment results. 

ii. If the change has not been reported as required, a decrease in tenant rent will be effective the first 
day of the month following the date the change was reported. 
 

c. Discovery of Errors 
 

If an error in rent is revealed at any time, the Authority will make adjustments to correct the error as 
follows: 
 

i. If the error was due to misrepresentation/fraud (i.e., not reporting a change, withholding 
information, etc.) and corrective actions result in an increased tenant rent, such rent will be 
retroactive to the first month following the date the misrepresentation occurred. Unless otherwise 
agreed to by the Authority, all retroactive rent charges will be payable the first day of the month 
following determination of the charge. 

ii. If the error was the fault of the tenant and corrective action results in decreased tenant rent, such 
decrease will be effective the first day of the month following the date when the error was 
discovered. 

iii. If the error was not the fault of the tenant and corrective action results in increased rent, such rent 
will be effective the first day of the second month following the date the error was discovered. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 40 

 
iv. If the error was not the fault of the tenant and corrective action results in decreased tenant rent, 

the change in rent will be made retroactive to the effective date the error was made, and the 
tenant will be reimbursed accordingly. 
 

d. Over-income and non-public housing over-income households: interim reviews will be completed when 
required by HUD regulations as detailed in Section 11.L of this ACOP. 

 
D. Retroactive Rent Collection Procedures 
 

If the Housing Authority allows a person who owes back rent to remain on the program, a written repayment 

agreement may be offered, at the sole discretion of the Housing Authority, and will be calculated in the following 

manner: 

1. For retroactive amounts accrued in 12 months or less, repayment will be made in a time period not to exceed the 
number of months it took to accrue the balance. 

 
2. For retroactive amounts whose accrual time is longer than 12 months, repayment will be made in a time period not 

to exceed 12 months. 

 
The Housing Authority retains the right to begin eviction procedures against a tenant who misses a payment or 

refuses to sign a retroactive rent agreement. 

In the case of a vacated or evicted Public Housing participant owing retroactive rent amounts, a repayment 

agreement must be signed with the Housing Authority within 30 days of the date of the vacate. The repayment 

agreement will not exceed six months. If an agreement is not executed within 30 days, all amounts owing will be 

sent to a collection agency. 

E. Addition or Removal of Family Members 
 
Whenever additional members are being added to the household, written permission must be obtained (in 

advance) from the Authority. A person being added must meet the Authority’s eligibility requirements and 

standards prior to being added to the household. The same standards of eligibility and tenant suitability that the 

Authority uses for applicants will be used in evaluating a person who is joining a Family already in occupancy. 

The Housing Authority will have the sole discretion which members of an assisted family will continue to receive 

assistance in the program if the family breaks up. It is the general policy of the Authority to provide assistance to 

the family members remaining in the unit unless it is determined that the family member(s) remaining in the unit is 

the abuser in a situation of domestic violence. In each case, the Housing Authority will review the interests of minor 

children, ill, or elderly persons, or persons with disabilities prior to making its determination. If the local Superior 

court determines the disposition of property between members of the assisted family in a divorce or separation 

under a settlement or judicial decree, the Housing Authority will be bound by the court’s determination concerning 

which family members continue to receive assistance in the program. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 41 

 

SECTION 11 CONTINUED OCCUPANCY ISSUES 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
A. Community Service Requirement 
In order to be eligible for continued occupancy, each adult family member must either (1) contribute eight hours 

per month of community service within the community in which the public housing development is located, or (2) 

participate in an economic self-sufficiency program for a minimum eight hours per month (see definitions in Section 

2). The hours may be provided flexibly (including a combination of community service and economic self-sufficiency 

activities) so long as the hours total 96 hours per year. 

1. Exemptions. The following adult family members of tenant families are exempt from this requirement if 
satisfactory documentation is provided of exemption status:  
 

a. Family members aged 17 and under or 62 and older; 

 Existing tenant file information will be accepted for age exemptions. 
b. Family members who are blind or disabled and who self-certify that, because of the disabling condition, 

they are unable to comply with the community service requirement; 

 Existing file information will be accepted as evidence of a disability and disabled individuals will be 
allowed to self-certify that they cannot perform community service or self-sufficiency activities. 

c. Family members who are the primary care giver for someone who is blind or disabled within the resident’s 
family; 

 Existing file information will be accepted (such as HA prior approval to serve the role of an 
Attendant/Live-in Aide) for exemption as a primary care giver for a disabled or blind family member. If 
such information is not available, families will be given the opportunity to provide medical verification, 
which establishes that an individual is such a primary care giver. 

d. Family members who are exempt from work activity under Part A, Title IV of the Social Security Act or 
under any Washington State welfare program, including the state’s TANF program; 

 For example, under TANF, exemptions and or deferrals from regular Work First participation 
requirements can be allowed for parents with a child three months old or younger, or older persons 
(55 years old or older) caring for their relative’s children. 

 The HA will request and accept verification from TANF for an exemption under this category. 
e. Family members receiving assistance under a state program funded under part A, Title IV of the Social 

Security Act or under any Washington State welfare program, including the TANF program and who are in 
compliance with that program. 

 The HA will request verification from TANF that a family is receiving TANF assistance without 
sanction for a non-compliance with a work activity requirement. 

f. Family members engaged in a Work Activity (as defined in Section 2 below) for a total of at least 8 hours a 
week. 

 
2. Self-sufficiency Programs/Community Service Volunteer Opportunities/Work Activities 

 
Economic Self-sufficiency Program: A program that is designed to encourage, assist, train or facilitate the economic 
independence of participants and their families or to provide work for participants. These programs may include 
programs for job training, work placement, basic skills training, education, English proficiency, work fare, 
financial or household management, apprenticeship, and any program necessary to ready a participant to work 
(such as substance abuse or mental health treatment.) 
 
Community Service Program: Includes performing work or duties in the public benefit that serve to improve the 
quality of life or enhance resident self-sufficiency, or increase the self- responsibility of the resident within the 
community. Community service is not considered employment and may not include political activities. No 
community service or self-sufficiency activity can replace work ordinarily performed by HA employees.  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 42 

 
 
Work Activities 
 
For single person families or families with children with a single parent, or single adults within families, an individual 
working or engaged in “work activities” for not fewer than 8 hours per week will be exempted from the Community 
Service requirement.  
 
For two-parent families, either individual parent who is working or engaged in “work-activities” for not fewer than 8 
hours per week will be exempted from the Community Service. Further, both parents will be exempted if one of 
them is working or engaged in “work activities” for no less than 35 hours per week. 

 
Work Activities are defined as the following: 
 

a. Employment (subsidized or unsubsidized employment, in either the public or the private sector); 
b. On-the-job training 
c. Job search and job readiness assistance 
d. Community service programs 
e. Vocational educational training (not to exceed 12 months) 
f. The provision of childcare services to an individual who is participating in a community service program. 
g. Job skills training directly related to employment 
h. Education directly related to employment, in the case of a resident who has not received a high school 

diploma or a GED 
i. Satisfactory attendance at secondary school or in a course of study leading to a GED, in the case of a 

resident who has not completed secondary school or received a GED. 

 
3. Process for Implementing Community Service Requirement 

At all initial housings beginning on July 1, 2001 during all annual reviews beginning on July 1, 2001 and during each 
annual reexamination thereafter, the Housing Authority will do the following: 
 

a. Provide written information to each family explaining the Community Service requirement and providing 
the family the opportunity to claim an exemption. 

b. Review all claimed exemptions, and supporting documentation, and approve or deny exemption requests. 
c. For those required to perform Community Service: 

 Provide the opportunity to identify any current activities they are already engaged in that may 
qualify as Community Service or economic self-sufficiency activities; 

 Provide additional written guidance on lists of acceptable activities along with ways to contact 
various groups for potential volunteer opportunities; 

d. Provide a timesheet/certification form to the family members, with instructions indicating how the form is 
to be completed and how it needs to be signed by a third party supervisor. This documentation will be 
used by the HA to verify their annual review. 

e. Where necessary, refer family members to a coordinator who will assist the family members in identifying 
appropriate volunteer positions and in meeting their responsibilities. 

f. At least 30 days before the families next lease anniversary date, the Housing Authority will review the 
family’s hours and verifications and make a determination as to whether the family is in compliance with 
the Community Service requirement. Time sheets/certification forms verifying hours must be signed by 
third parties representing entities for which the community service has been provided. Self-certification 
will not be acceptable. At this time, the family will also be provided the opportunity to claim any change in 
their exemption status. 

4. Non-Compliance With Community Service Requirement 
 
a. Notice of Non-compliance 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 43 

 
The Housing Authority will provide written notification of the following to a family found to be in non-
compliance: 

 
1. Identification of the family member(s) determined to be in non-compliance; 
2. The reason for the determination (such as insufficient hours, or participating in a ineligible 

activity); 
3. That, unless the Tenant and the non-compliant family member(s) enter into an agreement to 

comply, or provide documentation that the non-compliant family member is no longer living in the 
unit, the lease will not be renewed at the end of the 12 month lease term; 

4. That the determination is subject to the HA’s grievance procedure. 

 
b. Opportunity For Cure 

 
The Housing Authority will offer the family member(s) the opportunity to enter into an agreement prior to 
the anniversary of the lease. The agreement will state that the family member(s) agrees to enter into an 
economic self-sufficiency program or participate in community service for as many hours as were required 
for compliance over the past 12-month period. The cure will occur over the 12-month period beginning 
with the date of the agreement and the resident will, at the same time, comply with the current year’s 
community service requirement. The first hours the resident documents each month will be applied 
toward the current year’s commitment. Additional hours documented by the resident each month will be 
applied toward the number of hours required for compliance during the previous 12-month period.  
 
A coordinator will assist the family member in identifying volunteer opportunities and will track compliance 
on a quarterly basis. 
 
If any applicable family member does not accept the terms of the agreement, does not fulfill their 
obligation to participate in an economic self-sufficiency program, or falls behind in their obligation under 
the agreement to perform community service by more than three hours after three months, the Housing 
Authority will take action to terminate the lease. 
 

B. Termination of Tenancy/Dwelling Lease Modifications 
 
1. Modifications of lease Terms 

The Housing Authority may modify the Lease at any time during the lease term by following the federal 
requirements of proper notice to tenants and resident organizations and consideration of any comments by them. 
The Housing Authority may terminate a tenancy if a tenant refuses to accept a revision to the Lease after being 
given at least 60 days’ notice of its proposed effect and being allowed a reasonable time to respond to the offer. 

 
2. Termination by Tenant 

The tenant may terminate the lease at any time upon submitting a 15-day written notice. The tenant will be liable 
for rent up to the end of the 15 days for which notice was required or to the date the unit was re-rented, whichever 
date came first. 
 

3. Termination by the Housing Authority for Serious or Repeated Violations 
The Housing Authority may terminate the lease at any time for serious or repeated violations of the Dwelling Lease 
(see Exhibit J). Termination of Tenant’s occupancy due to lease violations will be carried out in accordance with 
provisions contained in the Dwelling Lease as well as the Housing Authority’s Grievance Procedure (see Exhibit I.). 
Such violations include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

a. Engaging in or threatening abusive or violent behavior towards any Housing Authority staff, contractors, or 
residents, including any harassment in violation of the Fair Housing Act or any other civil or criminal code 
(See Section 11.C); 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 44 

 
b. Nonpayment of rent or other charges; 
c. A history of late rental payments (chronic rent delinquency which is defined as four times or more in a 12-

month period); 
d. Failure to sign and submit consent forms for obtaining information as required by program regulations; 
e. Failure to provide timely and accurate information regarding family composition, income circumstances, or 

other information related to eligibility or rent, including failure to receive advanced housing Authority 
approval before adding any other person as a member of the household; 

f. Failure to properly report to the Housing Authority a letter or notice received from HUD (or to respond to 
Housing Authority contact) as part of HUD’s Computer Income Matching program within the time limits 
specified by the notice/letter or subsequent failure to provide verification necessary to explain any income 
discrepancy; 

g. Failure to allow inspection or repairs of the dwelling unit (after receiving reasonable notice); 
h. Failure to maintain the unit in a safe and sanitary manner; 
i. Assignment or subletting of the premises or being absent from the unit in violation of the Housing 

Authority’s policy (See Section 11.G); 
j. Use of the premises for purposes other than as a dwelling unit (other than for Housing Authority approved 

resident businesses which are incidental to the primary use of the unit for residence by members of the 
family), or failure to ensure that the unit is the family’s only residence; 

k. Engaging in a pattern of disturbance of neighbors; 
l. Abuse of alcohol in a way that may interfere with the health, safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the 

premises by other residents; 
m. Engaging in a pattern of destruction of property, or living or housekeeping habits resulting in damage to 

the unit or premises 
n. Engaging in acts of destruction, defacement, or removal of any part of the premises or failure to cause 

guests to refrain from such acts; 
o. Any criminal activity by any household member, guest, or other person under Tenant’s control, including 

criminal activity that threatens the health, safety, or right to personal enjoyment of the public housing 
premises by other residents or employees, or any drug-related criminal activity on or off the premises. This 
includes, but is not limited to the manufacture of methamphetamine on the premises of the Housing 
Authority; 

p. Commitment of fraud, bribery, or any other corruption in connection with the housing program, including 
the intentional misrepresentation of information related to housing benefits; 

q. Non-compliance with the Non-Citizen Rule requirements; 
r. Permitting persons not on the lease to reside in the unit more than 14 days in a three-month period each 

without the prior written approval of the Housing Authority; 
s. Failure to be in compliance with the Community Service Requirement or an approved Agreement to Cure; 
t. Failure to move after being required to move by the Housing Authority (due to such reasons as the unit 

being overcrowded or the family being under-housed, or for unit capital repair reasons); and for, 
u. Failure to abide by non-smoking or smoke-free policies established at designated buildings. 
v. Other good cause. 

 
The Housing Authority will take immediate action to evict any household that includes an individual who is subject 
to a lifetime registration requirement under a state sex offender registration program. 
 

 

4. Eligibility for Lease Renewal at Annual Review 
At the time of Annual Review there are to be eligible for lease renewal for the same lease term only those tenants:  
 
a. Who qualify as a Family (See Section 1). A Person with Disabilities who no longer is able to provide 

documentation of their disability will be eligible to remain in housing; however, the family will no longer be 
considered a Disabled Family for purposes of calculating total income and allowances. 

b. Whose family members qualify as citizens, nationals, or as noncitizens who have eligible immigration status. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 45 

 
i. Families in which one or more members are determined ineligible may have the option of receiving 

prorated or continued housing assistance, or be eligible to defer their termination (see Exhibit K). 
c. Who conform to the Housing Authority’s occupancy standards set forth in Section 3). 
d. Who are in compliance with the Community Service Requirement or an approved Agreement to Cure 

 
C. Tenant on Tenant Harassment Policy 

 
1. General Policy. 

 
It is the policy of the HA that harassment or intimidation of a tenant, staff person, or guest because of that person’s 
race, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, sex, disability, familial status, marital status, parental status, or sexual 
orientation violates fair housing laws and the Dwelling Lease and will not be tolerated. Discriminatory harassment 
or intimidation, including abusive, foul, or threatening language or behavior, is specifically prohibited. 
 
The HA expects all staff to model appropriate non-discriminatory behavior and strive to cultivate and maintain a 
living environment that is free from discriminatory harassment or intimidation. Staff who witness or learn of 
possible discriminatory harassment or intimidation or receive a complaint from a tenant must take it seriously and 
respond promptly according to the procedures outlined in this policy. 
 

2. Procedures 
 
HA staff that observe any situations that could be an emergency, such as a threat of bodily harm, must call 911 
immediately. 

 
When a tenant complains of discriminatory harassment, HA staff will inform the tenant that the HA takes the 
complaint seriously and will be looking into the matter. 
 
A prompt investigation must be conducted to determine whether a violation of this policy has occurred based on all 
facts and circumstances, the nature of the allegation, and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. 
 

a. When discussing the allegations with the alleged harasser, the tenant must be informed that harassment is 
not tolerated and that the HA will be investigating the allegation. 

b. All information gathered must be documented.  
 

 If HA staff is unable to verify a violation of the policy following the investigation: 
 

a. The complaint will be documented and results of the investigation placed in both the complaining parties 
and alleged harasser’s files. 

b. Each individual alleged to have engaged in discriminatory harassment must be reminded about the HA’s 
serious commitment to a housing environment free of harassment and that retaliation against the 
complaining party will not be tolerated. 

c. Both parties must be informed in writing of the outcome of the investigation. 
 

If the investigation supports a violation of this policy: 

 
a. The complaint and results of the investigation are to be documented in both the complaining parties and 

alleged harasser’s files. 
 

b. HA staff will treat the incident as a serious lease violation and proceed with progressive disciplinary action 
up to and including eviction if necessary for ongoing or serious violations: 
For example, if the allegation involves an isolated incident of a single derogatory statement, it may be 
appropriate to issue a 10-day warning notice to comply with a stern written warning that additional 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 46 

 
incidents could result in termination of tenancy. On the other hand, if the allegation involves a single 
incident of highly offensive language with threats, it may be appropriate to proceed with an eviction action. 
In the latter case, if threats are made to the physical safety of any person, HA staff should consult promptly 
with the Director of Housing Management. 
 

c. The complaining party will be informed of the results of the investigation and the actions taken. 
 

d. All parties must be reminded that retaliation against the complaining party or others involved in the 
investigation will not be tolerated and will be dealt with in the same manner as the original allegation of 
discriminatory harassment under this policy. 

 
3. Retaliation 

 
Retaliation by a tenant or HA staff against any tenant complaining of harassment will not be tolerated. 
 
The Area Manager must monitor the situation for retaliation against any person involved in the filing or 
investigation of a complaint of discriminatory harassment or intimidation. 

 
D. Receipt of a Letter or Notice from HUD Concerning Tenant Income Discrepancies 

 
1. If a public housing resident receives a letter or notice from HUD (under HUD’s Computer Income Matching 

program) concerning the amount or verification of family income, the letter will be brought to the person 
responsible for income verification within the time limits specified in the correspondence. 
 

2. If the public housing tenant fails to come forward, as requested by HUD, the Housing Authority will follow HUD 
guidelines established to ensure timely resolution of the reported income discrepancy. 

 
3. The Area Management Office will reconcile any difference between the amount of family income reported by the 

resident and the amount of income listed in the HUD communication. This will be done as promptly as possible. 
 

4. After the reconciliation is complete, the Housing Authority will adjust the resident’s rent beginning at the start of 
the next month unless the reconciliation is completed during the final five days of the month and then the new rent 
will take effect on the first day of the second month following the end of the current month. In addition, if the 
resident had not previously reported the proper income, the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority will do one of the 
following: 

 
a. Immediately collect the back rent due to the agency; 
b. Establish a repayment plan for the resident to pay the sum due to the agency; 
c. Terminate the Lease and evict for failure to report income; or 
d. Terminate the Lease, evict for failure to report income, and collect the back rent due to the agency. 

 
5. If the resident fails to respond to HUD’s or the Housing Authority requests for notification/clarification of the 

amount of family income the family will be determined to be in non-compliance with their dwelling lease. 

 
E. Inspections 

 
1. Types of Inspection 

 
a. Move-In Inspection 

An authorized representative of the Housing Authority and an adult family member will inspect the 
premises prior to commencement of occupancy. A written statement of the condition of the premises will 
be made, including all equipment provided, and the statement will be signed by both parties with a copy 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 47 

 
retained in the Housing Authority file and a copy given to the family member. An authorized Housing 
Authority representative will inspect the premises at the time the resident vacates and will furnish a 
statement of any charges to be made provided the resident turns in the proper notice under state law. The 
resident’s security deposit can be used to offset against any Housing Authority damages to the unit. 
 

b. Annual Inspections 
The Housing Authority will inspect each public housing unit annually to ensure that each unit meets the 
Housing Authority’s housing standards. Work orders will be submitted and completed to correct any 
deficiencies. 
 
In addition, this inspection will be used to ensure that the Tenant is maintaining the unit in a safe and 
sanitary manner. Special Inspections may be scheduled if the inspection results in a determination that 
closer monitoring of the Tenant’s housekeeping standards and upkeep of the unit is needed. 
 

c. Preventative Maintenance Inspections 
This is generally conducted along with the annual inspection. This inspection is intended to keep items in 
good repair. It checks weatherization; checks the condition of the smoke detectors, water heaters, 
furnaces, automatic thermostats and water temperatures; checks for leaks; and provides an opportunity to 
change furnace filters and provide other minor servicing that extends the life of the unit and its equipment. 
 

d. Emergency Inspections 
If any employee or agent of the Housing Authority have reason to believe than an emergency exists within 
the housing unit, the unit can be entered without notice. The person(s) that enters the unit will leave a 
written notice to the resident that indicates the date and time the unit was entered and the reason why it 
was necessary to enter the unit. 
 

e. Pre-Move-Out Inspections 
When a tenant gives notice that they intend to move, the Housing Authority will offer to schedule a pre-
move-out inspection with the family. The inspection allows the Housing Authority to help the family 
identify any problems which, if left uncorrected, could lead to vacate charges. This inspection is a 
courtesy to the family and has been found to be helpful both in reducing costs to the family and in 
enabling the Housing Authority to ready units more quickly for the future occupants. 
 

f. Move-Out Inspections 
After the tenant has vacated and returned keys to the unit, the Housing Authority will conduct an 
inspection to assess the condition of the unit and to determine responsibility for any needed repairs. The 
Tenant will be encouraged, whenever possible, to be present for the move-out inspection by arranging the 
date and time for the inspection with their Area Office. The move-out inspection becomes the basis for any 
claims for damage and repair that may be assessed against the security deposit. 
 

g. Special Inspections 
Special Inspections of a rental unit may be scheduled to (1) enable HUD, or HUD’s agent, to inspect the 
housing stock maintained by the Housing Authority in accordance with federal requirements; (2) enable an 
assessment of any charges that should be assessed against a Tenant’s Pet Deposit when the Housing 
Authority has been notified that the pet no longer resides in the unit and a refund of the deposit has been 
requested; (3) other reasons deemed necessary by the Housing Authority in order ensure proper upkeep 
and maintenance of the dwelling unit or to project future repair/improvement needs. 

 
2. Notice of Inspection 

For inspections defined as annual inspections, preventative maintenance inspections, and special inspections, the 
Housing Authority will give the tenant at least two days written notice or such notice as required by any annual 
HUD REAC inspection. When the date and time of the inspection is within the control of the Housing Authority, the 
Tenant may contact the Area Office and ask that the inspection be scheduled for a time that is mutually agreeable, 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 48 

 
in order to allow the Tenant or Tenant Representative to be present during the inspection. When the date and time 
of the inspection is controlled by HUD or the designated HUD agent, the Housing Authority will be unable to 
accommodate the Tenant’s need to reschedule. 

 
F. Transfers 
Transfers may be requested and will be reviewed and processed according to Exhibit P. 

G. Abandonment 
If personal property left by the Tenant is stored, the Housing Authority will mail a written notice to the Tenant at 

the address last known or provided to the Housing Authority notifying the Tenant that specified articles are being 

stored at a specific location and that said articles are deemed abandoned and will be disposed of without sale and 

without further notice 45 days after the date of the notice unless claimed and removed by the Tenant. 

H. Absence from Dwelling or Unit 
It will be the policy of the Housing Authority that, in order to remain living in a public housing unit, a family is 

expected to reside continuously in the dwelling unit and may be absent only for brief periods. Absence means that 

no member of the family is residing in the unit. This policy will be enforced utilizing the following requirements: 

1. The family must notify the Housing Authority of any absence from the dwelling unit including providing any 
information requested concerning the purpose of the family absences. 

2. The Housing Authority may verify family occupancy in the unit, or absence from the unit, by such techniques as 
visits, calls or letters to landlords, neighbors, etc. 

3. The following specific policies apply: 
a. Absence from the dwelling unit due to incarceration after being convicted of a crime will result in the 

immediate termination of housing assistance. 
b. Absence from the dwelling unit due to hospitalization or rehabilitation will be limited to a maximum period 

of 90 days in any 12-month period (extensions due to unforeseeable circumstances regarding 
hospitalization or rehabilitation may be granted up to 30 additional days); 

c. Absence from the dwelling unit due to vacations will be limited to a 30-day period in any 12-month period; 
d. Absence from the dwelling unit due to temporary relocation due to employment will be limited to 180 

days. 
4. If a family is absent for longer than the maximum period permitted above, the family will be served with a Notice to 

Terminate Tenancy. 
 

I. Return of Security Deposit 
After a family moves out, the Housing Authority will return the security deposit within 14 days or give the family a 

written statement of why all or part of the security deposit is being kept. The rental unit must be restored to the 

same conditions as when the family moved in, except for normal wear and tear. Deposits will not be used to cover 

normal wear and tear or damage that existed when the family moved in. 

The Housing Authority will be considered in compliance with the above if the required payment, statement, or 

both, are deposited in the U.S. mail with first class postage paid within 14 days. 

J. Return of Pet Deposit 
Generally, Pet Deposits will be returned to the Tenant within 30 days after verification that the Pet has been 

removed from the unit. Prior to the issuance of any refund of the pet deposit, the Housing Authority will inspect the 

unit to determine whether there are any damages to the unit caused by the pet. Any charges for damages caused 

by the Pet will be deducted from the Pet Deposit and the balance, if any, will be refunded to the Tenant within the 

time limit noted above. Any amounts for damages incurred above the amount of the Pet Deposit will be charged to 

the Tenant account and must be paid in accordance with the terms of the Dwelling Lease. 

When a Tenant and Tenant household vacates their leased unit, the Pet Deposit will be refunded, following the 

assessment of any charges for damages caused by the pet, within 14 days of the date the unit becomes vacant. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 49 

 
 
K. Lead-Based Paint Procedures 

 
1. Inspection of Pre-1978 Units 

Housing Administrators will conduct visual assessments annually during annual review inspections and all new 
housing inspections. These inspections will be maintained in each resident file. Common areas will be inspected 
quarterly by the Area Property Manager and Area Maintenance Supervisor. These inspections will be filed in the 
Area Management Office. All inspectors will have completed HUD Visual Assessment training. The annual review 
inspection form and quarterly inspection form and quarterly inspection forms will have designated areas for listing 
deteriorating paint. Any identified lead-based paint hazards will be addressed according to regulations detailed in 
the Federal Register. 
 

2. Children with Elevated Blood Level of Lead 
Within 15 days after being notified by a Public Health Department or other medical health care provider that a child 
under six years of age living in a public housing development has been identified as having an environmental 
intervention blood lead level, the Housing Authority will complete a risk assessment of the unit and common areas 
servicing the unit. The risk assessment is complete when the Housing Authority receives the risk assessment report. 
The risk assessment will be done whether the child is or is not still living in the unit when the Housing Authority 
receives the notification of the environmental intervention blood level. If the Public Health Department has 
conducted an evaluation of the unit, the Housing Authority does not need to do a risk assessment. 
 
After receiving information from someone who is not a medical provider that a child less than six years old living in 
public housing has an environmental intervention blood level, the Housing Authority will immediately verify the 
information with the Public Health Department or other medical provider. 
 
Within 30 days after receiving the risk assessment report, the Housing Authority will provide the name and address 
of a child identified as having an EBL to the Public Health Department within five working days of being notified. 
The Housing Authority will also report each known case of a child with environmental intervention blood level to 
the HUD field office. 
 
If the risk assessment conducted pursuant to this section identifies lead-based paint hazards and previous 
evaluations of the building did not, the PHA will conduct a risk assessment of the other units of the building. 

 
L. Eligibility of Over-Income Households 
 
Per federal regulations (24 CFR 960.507), families participating in the public housing program must not have 

incomes that exceed the over-income limit (see Section 1: Definitions) for more than 24 consecutive months. 

Families found to have income that exceeds the over-income limit are provided a 24-month grace. At the end of the 

grace period, if income remains above the over-income limit, the family must be determined ineligible for public 

housing. Such families may remain in occupancy as a non-public housing over-income household by executing a 

new non-public housing over-income lease with SWHA and paying the alternative non-public housing rent. 

If, at any time during the consecutive 24-month period following an initial over-income determination, SWHA 

determines the family’s income is below the over-income limit, the family is entitled to a new 24 consecutive 

month period of being over-income and the notification and review process described in this section restarts in full. 

1. Applicability: This provision applies to all families in the public housing program, including FSS families and 

all families with an earned income disregard (EID) for rent calculation purposes. 

a. Mixed families who are non-public housing over-income families pay the alternative non-public 

housing rent, as applicable (see Definitions, Section 1). 

2. Restrictions of non-public housing over-income families: Non-public housing over-income families are: 

a. Not eligible for participation in the public housing program; 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-IX/part-960/subpart-E/section-960.507


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 50 

 
b. Cannot participate in a public housing resident council. 

c. Cannot participate in programs that are only for public housing or low-income families. 

d. Cannot receive any federal assistance, including a utility allowance. 

3. Determination of over-income limit: The over-income limit is determined by multiplying the applicable 

income limit for a very low-income family as defined in § 5.603(b) of this title, by a factor of 2.4. 

4. Notifying over-income families: 

a. Initial Notification: Upon completion of an income review (full recertification, update, or interim 

review) that reveals a family’s income exceeds the over-income limit, SWHA must provide written 

notice to the family of the over-income determination no later than 30 days after the income 

examination. The initial notice must state that: 

i. the family’s income exceeds the over-income limit and continuing to do so for a total of 24 

consecutive months will result in SWHA following its continued occupancy policy for over-

income families in accordance with this section. 

ii. if the family disagrees with SWHA’s determination that the family exceeds the over-income 

limit, they may dispute this finding through SWHA’s established grievance policy. 

5. Action required following initial notification: 

a. Income Review 12 months after initial over-income determination: Unless a prior review showed 

the family’s income had fallen below the over-income limit, an income examination must be 

completed 12 months after the initial over-income determination. If the review shows the family 

has exceeded the over-income limit for 12 consecutive months, SWHA must, within 30 days, 

provide a written Second Notification to the family. The second notice must: 

i. Inform the family that they have exceeded the over-income limit for 12 consecutive 

months and continuing to exceed the over-income limit for a total of 24 consecutive 

months will result in the SWHA following its continued occupancy policy for over-income 

families in accordance with this section. 

ii. If applicable, the notice must include an estimate (based on current data) of the alternative 

non-public housing rent for the family’s unit; and 

iii. Inform the family that if they disagree with SWHA’s over-income determination, they may 

dispute this finding through SWHA’s established grievance policy. 

b. Income Review 24 months after initial over-income determination: Unless a prior review showed 

the family’s income had fallen below the over-income limit, an income examination must be 

completed 24 months after the initial over-income determination. If the review shows the family 

has exceeded the over-income limit for 24 consecutive months, SWHA must, within 30 days, 

provide a written third and final notice of this determination to the family. The must state: 

i. Inform the family that they have exceeded the over-income limit for 24 consecutive 

months. 

ii. Inform the family that SWHA must charge the family the alternative non-public housing 

rent in accordance with its continued occupancy policy for over-income families as detailed 

in item 6 below. 

iii. Inform the family that if they disagree with SWHA’s over-income determination, they may 

dispute this finding through SWHA’s established grievance policy. 

6. End of the 24 consecutive month grace period. A family has exceeded the over-income limit for 24 

consecutive months, may remain in the unit as a non-public housing over-income (NPHOI) household. 

When this occurs SWHA must: 

a. Require the family to execute a new non-public housing lease. The new lease must be executed no 

later than 60 days after the date of the third and final notice or at the next lease renewal, 

whichever is sooner. 

b. The non-public housing lease will be constructed in compliance with state and local law and meet 

the requirements of 24 CFR 960.509 

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-A/part-5/subpart-F/section-5.603#p-5.603(b)
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-24/subtitle-B/chapter-IX/part-960/subpart-E/section-960.509


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 51 

 
7. Status of families. An over-income family will continue to be a public housing program participant until the 

family executes a new non-public housing lease in accordance with paragraph (6) of this section. 

a. Following execution of the non-public housing lease, the family becomes classified as a non-public 

housing over-income (NPHOI) household. NPHOI families are NOT public housing program 

households and cannot participate in programs that are only for public housing or low-income 

families. SWHA cannot provide federal assistance, including any utility allowance, to a NPHOI 

household. See item L.2 of this section for additional restrictions. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 52 

 

EXHIBIT A. INCOME INCLUSIONS 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
A. Annual Income means all amounts, monetary or not, that: 

 
1. Go to (or on behalf of) the family head or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other family 

member, or 
 

2. Are anticipated to be received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period following 
admission or annual examination effective date; and 

 
3. Are not specifically excluded from annual income. 

 
B. Income includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 
1. The full amount, before any payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, 

tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services. (Except as excluded by Exhibit B). 
 

2. The net income from operation of a business or profession. Expenditures for business expansion or 
amortization of capital indebtedness may not be used as deductions in determining net income. An 
allowance for depreciation of assets used in a business or profession may be deducted, based on straight 
line depreciation, as provided in Internal Revenue Service regulations. Any withdrawal of cash or assets 
from the operation of a business or profession will be included in income, except to the extent the 
withdrawal is reimbursement of cash or assets invested in the operation by the Family. 
 

3. Interest, dividends, and other net income of any kind from real or personal property, except as outlined in 
Exhibit B. Expenditures for amortization of capital indebtedness may not be used as a deduction in 
determining net income. An allowance for depreciation is permitted only as authorized in paragraph 2 of 
this Exhibit. Any withdrawal of cash or assets from an investment will be included in income, except to the 
extent the withdrawal is reimbursement of cash or assets invested by the family. Where the Family has Net 
Family Assets in excess of $5,000, Annual Income will include the greater of the actual income derived from 
all Net Family Assets or a percentage of the value of such assets based on the Housing Authority 
established passbook savings rate. Asset income does not include amounts derived from checking accounts 
where the family maintains a nominal balance in the checking account in order to meet the normal day-to-
day needs (See Section 1, definition of Net Family Asset; and Exhibit C (I).C and C(II).A ). 
 

4. The full amount of periodic payments received from Social Security, annuities, insurance policies, 
retirement funds, pensions, disability or death benefits and other similar types of periodic receipts, 
including a lump-sum payment for the delayed start of a periodic payment, except SSI and Social Security. 
(See Paragraph 14 of Exhibit B). 
 

5. Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, worker’s compensation 
and severance pay (See Paragraph 3 of Exhibit B). 
 

6. Welfare Assistance.  
a. The actual amount of the TANF benefit paid to the family each month, or 
b. The Imputed Welfare Income, if the TANF amount has been reduced due to Fraud or Non-compliance 

with TANF requirements. Imputed Welfare Income is the amount of annual income not actually 
received by a family as a result of a specified welfare benefit reduction due to fraud or noncompliance 
with TANF requirements that is, nonetheless, included in the family’s annual income for purposes of 
determining rent. (See Exhibit C.I. (J). for clarification on Imputed Welfare Income). 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 53 

 
7. Periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child support payments, and regular 

contributions or gifts received from organizations or from persons not residing in the dwelling; 
  

8. All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces (See Paragraph 7 of Exhibit B) 
 
9. Adoption assistance payments up to $480.00 per adopted family member (See Paragraph 13 of Exhibit B). 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 54 

 

EXHIBIT B. INCOME EXCLUSIONS 
Revised 06/14/2023 
 

1. Income from employment of children (including foster children) under the age of 18 years. 
2. Payments received for the care of foster children, or foster adults (usually individuals with disabilities, unrelated to 

the tenant family, who are unable to live alone). 
3. Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritances, insurance payments, (including payments under health 

and accident insurance and worker’s compensation), capital gains and settlement for personal property losses (but 
see Paragraph B.5 of Exhibit A). 

4. Amounts received by the family that are specifically for or in reimbursement of the cost of medical expenses for 
any family member. 

5. Income of a Live-In Aide, as defined. 
6. The full amount of student financial assistance paid directly to the student or to the educational institution. 
7. The special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire. 
8. Amounts received from the following programs: 

a. Amounts received under training programs funded by HUD (see Exhibit C). A prime example is the 
Comprehensive Improvement Training Program (CITP). 

b. Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited time for purposes of 
Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because they are set aside for use under a Plan to 
Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS). 

c. Amounts received by a participant in other publicly assisted programs which are specifically for or in 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses (special equipment, clothing, transportation, child care, etc.) and 
which are made solely to allow participation in a specific program. Among the programs to which this applies 
are the Community Work Experience and Employment School Program. This provision would also apply to 
amount received to cover transportation costs of a Volunteer Firefighter. 

d. A resident service stipend (not to exceed $200.00 per month) received by a resident for performing a service 
for the owner (HA) on a part-time basis that enhances the quality of life in the development. Such services 
may include, but are not limited to, laundry room attendant, fire patrol, hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, 
and resident initiatives coordination, and serving as a member of the Housing Authority Board of 
Commissioners. No resident may receive more than one such stipend during the same period of time. 

e. Incremental earnings and benefits paid to any family member from participating in a qualifying state or local 
employment training programs (including training programs not affiliated with a local government) and 
training of a family member as resident management staff. Amounts excluded by this provision must be 
received under employment training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives and are excluded 
only for the period during which the family member participates in the training program (see also Exhibit C). 

f. For family members who enrolled in certain training programs prior to 10/1/99, the earnings and benefits 
resulting from the participation if the program provided employment training and supportive services in 
accordance with the Family Support Act of 1988, Section 22 of the 1937 Act (42 U.S.C. 1437t), or any 
comparable federal, state, or local law during the exclusion period. For purposes of this exclusion the 
following definitions apply: 

  
i. Comparable federal, state, or local law means a program providing employment training and 

supportive services that: (a) is authorized by a federal, state, or Local law; (b) is funded by the 
federal, state, or local law; (c) is operated or administered by a public agency; and, (d) has as its 
objective to assist participants in acquiring employment skills. 

ii. Exclusion period means the period during which the family member participates in a program 
described in this section, plus 18 months from the date the family member begins the first job 
acquired by the family member after completion of such program that is not funded by public 
housing assistance under the 1937 Act. If the family member is terminated from employment with 
good cause the exclusion period will end. 

iii. Earnings and Benefits means the incremental earnings and benefits resulting from a qualifying 
employment training program or subsequent job. 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2021-title42/pdf/USCODE-2021-title42-chap8-subchapI-sec1437t.pdf


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 55 

 
 
9. After admission, the incremental earnings due to employment during a cumulative 12-month period following date 

of the initial hire will be excluded. This exclusion will not apply for any family who concurrently is eligible for 
exclusion in 8.f above. Additionally, this exclusion is only available to the following families residing in public 
housing: 

 
a. Families whose annual income increases as a result of employment of a family member who was “previously 

unemployed” for one or more years prior to employment. “Previously unemployed” includes a person who 
has earned, in the 12 months previous to employment, no more than would be received for 10 hours of work 
per week for 50 weeks at the established minimum rent. 

b. Families whose income increases during the participation of a family member in any economic self-
sufficiency or other job training program. 

c. Families whose annual income increases, as a result of new employment or increased earnings of a family 
member, during or within six months after receiving assistance, benefits or service under any TANF program. 
The TANF Program is not limited to monthly income maintenance, but also includes such benefits and 
services as one-time payments, wage subsidies and transportation assistance, provided that the total amount 
over six months is at least $500. 

 
During the second cumulative 12-month period after the date of initial hire, 50% of the increased income will be 
excluded from income. 
 
The disallowance of increased income of an individual family member is limited to a lifetime 48-month period from 
the first time it is taken. It only applies for 12 months of the 100% exclusion and 12 months of the 50% exclusion. 
 
(NOTE: The Housing Authority will not offer an escrow account to a resident in lieu of excluding the earned income 
in this paragraph.) 

 
10. Temporary, non-recurring or sporadic income (including gifts). 
 
11. Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under the laws of that government by 

persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era (effective April 23, 1993). 
 
12. Earnings in excess of $480.00 for each full-time student 18 years old or older (excluding the Head of Household or 

spouse). 
 
13. Adoption assistance payments in excess of $480.00 per adopted child. 
 
14.  Deferred periodic payments of supplemental security income (SSI) and Social Security benefits that are received in 

a lump sum payment. 
 
15. Amounts received by the family in the form of refunds or rebates under state or local law for property taxes paid on 

the dwelling unit. 
 
16. Amounts paid by a state agency to a family with a developmentally disabled family member living at home to offset 

the cost of services and equipment needed to keep the developmentally disabled family member at home. 
 
17. Amounts specifically excluded by any other federal statute from consideration as income for purposes of 

determining eligibility or benefits under a category of assistance programs that includes assistance under the 
United States Housing Act of 1937. The following types of income are subject to such exclusions: 

 
a. The value of the allotment provided to an eligible household, regardless of the form of the allotment, under 

the Food Stamp Act of 1977 (7 U.S.C. 2017 (b)).  
b. Payments to volunteers under the Domestic Volunteer Services Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. 5044(f)(1), 5058). 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title7/chapter51&edition=prelim
https://www.govregs.com/uscode/expand/title42_chapter66_subchapterIV_section5044#uscode_2
https://www.govregs.com/uscode/expand/title42_chapter66_subchapterIV_section5044#uscode_16


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 56 

 
c. Payments received under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1626(c)). 
d. Income derived from certain sub-marginal land of the United States that is held in trust for certain Indian 

tribes (25 U.S.C 459e). 
e. Payments or allowances made under the Department of Health and Human Services’ Low-Income Home 

Energy Assistance Program (42 U.S.C. 8624(f)). 
f. Income derived from the disposition of funds of the Grand River Band of Ottawa Indians (Pub. L.94–540, 

section 6). 
g. The first $2,000 of per capita shares received from judgment funds awarded by the Indian Claims 

Commission or the Court of Claims (25 U.S.C. 1407–1408), from funds held in trust for an Indian tribe by the 
Secretary of the Interior (25 U.S.C. 117b, 1407), or from income received by individual Indians that is derived 
from trust or restricted lands held by the Secretary of the Interior for the benefit of individual Indians (25 
U.S.C 1408). 

h. Small Business Administration Programs, such as the National Volunteer Program to Assist Small Business 
and Promote Volunteer Service to Persons with Business Experience, Service Corps of Retired Executives 
(SCORE), and Active Corps of Executives (ACE). 

 
18. Amounts of scholarships funded under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, including awards under the 

Federal Work Study Program or under the Bureau of Indian Affairs Student Assistance Program (20 U.S.C. 1087uu).. 
Examples of Title IV programs include but are not limited to: 

a. Payments received from programs funded under Title V of the Older Americans Act of 1965 (42 U.S.C. 
3056(f)). 

b. Payments received after January 1, 1989 from the Agent Orange Settlement Fund or any other fund 
established pursuant to the settlement in the In Re Agent Orange product liability litigation, M.D.L. No. 381 
(E.D.N.Y.). 

c. Payments received under the Maine Indian Claims Settlement Act of 1980 (Pub. L. 96-420, 94 State 1785). 
d. Any earned income tax credit received on or after January 1, 1991 (26 U.S.C. 32 (j)). 
e. The value of any child care provided or arranged (or any amount received as payment for such care or 

reimbursement for costs incurred for such care) under the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 
1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858q).  

f. Payments for living expenses under the AmeriCorps Program. 
g. Payments to the Indian Claims Commission to the Confederated Tribes and Bands of Yakima Indian Nation or 

the Apache Tribe of Mescalero Reservation. 
h. Basic Educational Opportunity Grants (Pell Grants), Supplemental Opportunity Grants, State Student 

Incentive Grants, College Work Study, and Byrd Scholarships. 
i. Any amount of crime victim compensation (under the Victims of Crime Act) received through crime victim 

assistance (or payment or reimbursement of the cost of such assistance) as determined under the Victims of 
Crime Act because of the commission of a crime against the applicant under the Victims of Crime Act. 

j. Allowances, earnings, and payments to individuals participating in programs under the Workforce 
Investment Act of 1998. 

k. Any amount received under the School Lunch Act and Child Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1780(b)), 
including reduced-price lunches and food under the Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, 
and Children (WIC). 

l. Payments, funds, or distributions authorized, established, or directed by the Seneca Nation Settlement Act of 
1990 (25 U.S.C. 1774f (b)). 

m. Payments from any deferred Department of Veterans’ Affairs disability benefits that are received in a lump 
sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts as provided by an amendment to the definition of annual 
income in the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437) by Section 2608 of the Housing and Economic 
Recovery Act of 2008. 

n. Compensation received by or on behalf of a veteran for service-connected disability, death, dependency, or 
indemnity compensation as provided by an amendment by the Indian Veterans Housing Opportunity Act of 
2010 to the definition of income applicable to programs authorized under the Native American Housing 
Assistance and Self Determination Act of 1966 (25 U.S.C. 4101) and administered by the Office of Native 
American Programs. 

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-2000-title43-section1626&num=0&edition=2000
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-1999-title25-section459e&num=0&edition=1999
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter94&edition=prelim
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/STATUTE-94/pdf/STATUTE-94-Pg3197.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/STATUTE-94/pdf/STATUTE-94-Pg3197.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title25/USCODE-2021-title25-chap16-sec1407/context
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title25/USCODE-2021-title25-chap4-subchapII-sec117b/context
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title20-section1087uu-2&num=0&edition=prelim
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title42/USCODE-2021-title42-chap35-subchapIX-sec3056
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title42/USCODE-2021-title42-chap35-subchapIX-sec3056
https://law.justia.com/cases/federal/appellate-courts/F2/818/187/96767/
https://www.congress.gov/96/statute/STATUTE-94/STATUTE-94-Pg1785.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title26/USCODE-2021-title26-subtitleA-chap1-subchapA-partIV-subpartC-sec32/context
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title42/USCODE-2021-title42-chap105-subchapII-B-sec9858q
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title42/USCODE-2021-title42-chap13A-sec1780
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/STATUTE-104/STATUTE-104-Pg1292
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title42/USCODE-2021-title42-chap8-subchapI-sec1437
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4405/housing-and-economic-recovery-act-of-2008/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resource/4405/housing-and-economic-recovery-act-of-2008/
https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/USCODE-2021-title25/USCODE-2021-title25-chap43-sec4101


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 57 

 
o. A lump sum or a periodic payment received by an individual Indian pursuant to the Class Action Settlement 

Agreement in the case entitled Elouise Cobell et al. v. Ken Salazar et al., United States District Court, District 
of Columbia, as provided in the Claims Resolution Act of 2010. 

 
The Housing Authority will not provide exclusions from income in addition to those already provided by HUD. 

  

https://www.congress.gov/111/plaws/publ291/PLAW-111publ291.pdf


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 58 

 

EXHIBIT C. CLARIFICATIONS ON INCOME, ASSETS AND 
ALLOWANCES 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 

I. Annual Income 
 
A. General Rule 

Annual Income is the gross income anticipated to be received by the Family from all sources during the 12 months 

following the effective date of admission or reexamination. (See Exhibits A and B of this policy for the listing of 

income inclusions and exclusions.) 

To compute the Annual Income, the HA will: 

 Use current family circumstances to anticipate income unless the verification forms indicate an imminent 

change. 

 Annualize all income, including income that may not last the full 12 months (such as unemployment 

benefits). When circumstances change, an Interim or Special Reexamination may be processed. 

To annualize full-employment, the HA will multiply: 

 Hourly wages by 2080 

 Weekly wages by 52 

 Bi-weekly wages by 26 

 Semi-monthly wages by 24 

 Monthly amounts by 12 

 

B. Income of Dependents 

Count any benefit income or other non-earned income paid to minors or on behalf of minors. Income in excess of 

$480.00 for each full-time student 18 years or older is not counted as well as any earned income of minors (family 

members age 17 and under). Income for the care of foster children or foster adults is never counted. 

C. Income from Assets 

To compute income from assets: 

 Use actual income from assets if the family’s assets are $5,000 or less. 

 When the family has assets of more than $5,000, use the greater of: 

o Actual income from assets or 

o Imputed income from assets based on the Housing Authority established passbook rate. The passbook 

must be within a safe harbor range of 75 basis points (plus or minus 0.75%) of the Savings National 

Rates. The Housing Authority will review the established passbook rate annually if it is still within the 

safe harbor range. See Exhibit E for current SWHA rate. 

Where the family maintains a nominal balance (defined as an average 6 month balance of $1,000 or less) in a 

checking account in order to meet normal living expenses, neither the value of the checking account or the actual 

or imputed income derived therefrom will be used in the calculation of Income from Assets. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 59 

 
 
D. Income from Temporarily Absent Family Members 

Count all of the income of every family member who is on the lease including those who are temporarily absent. In 

addition, count the income of the spouse of the head of household if that person is temporarily absent, such as 

away at college or in the Armed Forces, even if that person is not on the lease (see Exhibit B for Income Exclusions). 

E. Income of Persons Confined to a Hospital or Nursing Home 

If a household member is confined to a nursing home or hospital on a long-term basis, allow the family to remove 

that family member’s name from the lease, exclude the income, and do not allow any deductions for the individual 

removed from the lease. The family member would be considered to permanently absent and the Family would be 

placed on the waiting list for a transfer to a smaller bedroom size unit at their next annual review (if applicable). 

F. Regular Contributions and gifts 

Count as income regular contributions and gifts from persons outside the household. This may include rent or utility 

payments regularly paid on behalf of the family, and any other cash or non-cash contributions provided to the 

family on a regular basis. In determining whether contributions should be counted, consider whether these 

contributions make up a regular portion of the family’s annual income or whether they are sporadic or casual 

contributions, which should not be counted. Bartering in lieu of cash payment is to be counted as income. 

G. Alimony or Child Support 

Count amounts awarded as part of a divorce or separation agreement unless the applicant certifies that the income 

is not provided and documents that the required efforts have been made to collect these amounts (see Verification 

Requirements, Exhibit G). This also applies to situations where an applicant states they are receiving less than 

specified in the court judgment or settlement agreement. 

H. Earned Income Tax Credit 

Earned income tax credits will not be used in calculating annual income. 

I. Lump-Sum Payments Counted as Income 

Generally lump-sum amounts received by a family are considered assets, not income (inheritances, insurance 

settlements, proceeds from the sale of property, etc.). Lump-sum payments made because of a delay in processing 

unemployment or welfare benefits are counted as income. 

However, a lump-sum payment for the delayed start of a periodic payment from SSI and Social Security is not 

counted as income. 

J. Imputed Welfare Income/Welfare Benefit Reduction 

The Imputed Welfare Income is the difference between the welfare payment the Family receives and the welfare 

payment the Family would have received had it not been reduced and is based on information presented by the 

welfare agency. The imputed welfare income is to be included in the calculation of the Family Income along with 

the Family’s other income.  

The reduction of welfare benefits by the welfare agency, in whole or in part for a family member, is determined by 

the welfare agency because of fraud by a family member in connection with the welfare program; or because of 

welfare agency sanction against a family member for noncompliance with the agency’s requirement to participate 

in an economic self-sufficiency program. 

However, “Imputed Welfare Income” does not include a reduction or termination of welfare benefits: 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 60 

 
1. At the expiration of a lifetime or other time limit on the payment of welfare benefits 

2. Because a family member is not able to obtain employment, even though the family member has complied 

with welfare agency economic self-sufficiency or work activities requirements; or 

3. Because a family member has not complied with other welfare agency requirements. 

The Housing Authority will work with the welfare agency in order to receive written information regarding the 

amount and term of any welfare benefit reduction for a family member, and the reason for such reduction, as well 

as information which will also inform the Housing Authority of any subsequent changes in the term or amount of 

such specified welfare benefit reduction. 

The Housing Authority will only include Imputed Welfare Income in annual income if the family was an assisted 

resident at the time of the sanction. 

If the family is not satisfied that the Housing Authority has calculated the amount of Imputed Welfare Income 

correctly and if the Housing Authority denies the family’s request to modify such amount, the Housing Authority 

will give the resident written notice of such denial, with a brief explanation of the basis for the determination of the 

amount of Imputed Welfare Income. The notice will also state that if the resident does not agree with the 

determination, the resident may file for a grievance hearing in according with the Authority’s Grievance Procedure. 

The resident is not required to pay an escrow deposit for the portion of the resident’s rent attributable to the 

Imputed Welfare Income in order to obtain a grievance hearing. 

The Housing Authority is responsible for determining the amount of Imputed Welfare Income that is included in the 

family’s annual income as a result of a welfare benefits reduction as determined by the welfare agency. 

The Housing Authority is not responsible for determining whether a reduction of welfare benefits by the welfare 

agency is correctly determined by the welfare agency, nor for providing the opportunity for review or hearing on 

such welfare agency determinations. 

K. Income from a Business (Includes Self-Employed, Rental of Real Property, etc.) 

Consider business expenses in computing the family’s net income from a business. Generally, net income equals 

gross income less: 

1. Depreciation (computed on a straight-line basis), 
2. Interest payments on loans and  
3. Other business expenses, except expenses related to business expansion or capital improvements. 

 
Count as income any withdrawals of cash or assets by the family from the business unless the withdrawal is for 

reimbursement of amounts the family invested in the business. 

 
L. Income of Foster Children 

Income for care of foster children or foster adults is excluded and no dependent deduction is allowed. 

 
M. Income of a Live-in Aide 

Income received by a live-in aide is excluded and no deduction is allowed. While a relative is not prohibited from 

serving as a live-in aide (and thus, having their income excluded), they must prove that: 

1. They are essential to the care and well-being of the family member (for an elderly person, person with 

disabilities or a near-elderly person) and not obligated for their support; and 

2. They must be one who would not be living in the unit except to provide the necessary supportive services. 

N. Student Financial Assistance 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 61 

 
Student financial assistance paid directly to the student or to the educational institutions will not be counted as 

income. 

O. Resident Stipend 

A resident stipend is an amount received by a resident for performing a service for the owner (HA) on a part-time 

basis that enhances the quality of life in the development. Such services may include, but are not limited to, laundry 

room attendant, fire patrol, hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, and resident initiatives coordination. It should be 

emphasized that if an owner (HA) pays a resident more than $200.00 per month, then the entire amount received is 

counted as income. There is no limit as to the number of stipends a family may receive, however, each family 

member may only exclude one stipend at a time. 

P. Payments awarded to Vietnam Veterans Affected by “Agent Orange” 

Payments awarded to Vietnam Veterans affected by “Agent Orange” are to be treated as follows: 

1. Lump-sum payments would not be counted as annual income, but would affect total assets. 

2. Periodic payments would be counted as annual income. 

 

Q. Zero Rent/Credit Rent 

If at any time the family reports it has zero income, or whose rent is zero or a credit rent, Special Reviews must be 

clearly set for definite times and controls (i.e., monthly budgets) established to assure compliance. If a family is 

eligible for certain sources of income but claims they do not have any income, the family will be required to 

document that they are not receiving income to which they are entitled. 

  
R.  State or Local Employment Training 

 
 This exclusion exempts the incremental increase in compensation received from qualifying employment training 

programs and training of resident management staff. To qualify, the compensation must be a component of a state 

or local employment training program with clearly defined goals and objectives. This exclusion only covers 

compensation received while the resident participates in the employment training program, and, the duration of 

participation must be for a limited period determined in advance. Please note, only the incremental change in 

income resulting in participation in such a training program is exempted from annual income.  

For example: 

A Public Housing resident enrolls in a qualified state-funded training program. Prior to enrolling in the program, the 

resident receives $350 per month in TANF funds. While enrolled in the qualifying state program, the resident 

receives $450 per month in training income. The TANF benefits cease. The incremental amount excluded from the 

Family’s income would be $100, the “incremental” difference between what the resident received prior to 

enrollment in the training program and what is received while enrolled in the training program. 

 
S. Exclusion of Income Received Under Training Programs Funded by HUD 

Exclusion of income received under training programs funded by HUD includes amounts received such as stipends, 

wages, transportation payments, and child care vouchers received pursuant to the training program. Income 

received as compensation for employment is excluded only if the employment is a component of a training 

program. The exclusion of income earned is allowed only during the job training program, or training oriented 

employment, but not during employment secured or maintained once all training has been completed. 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 62 

 
To qualify as acceptable training-oriented employment for the purposes of excluding income the training must have 

clearly defined goals and objectives and is for a pre-determined, limited time period, and initially, not to exceed one 

year. It is acceptable that the program use both HUD funds and non-HUD funds, but HUD funding must be material 

portion of the total funding designated for the training programs. This provision excludes all income received under 

the training program during the time that the resident is participating in the training program. 

T. Exclusion of Income Received from Programs providing Employment Training and Support Services 
 
For Public Housing Only: This exclusion is for the incremental differences in earning and benefits that result from 

the participation in a qualified employment training program.  

  

II. Assets 
 
 A. Valuing Assets 
  
 Because of the requirement to impute income if the total value of all assets is greater than 

$5,000.00, the value of assets may affect the family’s Total Tenant Payment or eligibility 
 Since the cash value of assets is used in this computation, consideration must be given to 

expenses involved in selling or converting assets to cash. Cash value is the market value of the 
asset minus reasonable costs that were or would be incurred in selling or converting the asset to 
cash, such as: 

  
  1. Penalties for premature withdrawal of funds (for IRA, Keogh, time deposits, etc.); 
   
  2. Broker and legal fees for selling or converting assets to cash; and 
   
  3. Settlement costs for real estate transactions. 
  The cash value of the following are examples of assets that are to be considered in the calculation 
  of income: 
   
  1. Current amounts in savings accounts and the average balance of the last six months in 

checking accounts, where such average balance has exceeded $1,000; (includes amounts 
deposited in credit unions) 

   
  2. Stocks, bonds, savings certificates, money market funds and other investment accounts; 
   
  3. Equity in real property or other capital investments. Equity is the estimated current market 

value of the asset less the unpaid balance on all loans secured by the asset and reasonable 
costs (such as broker fees) that would be incurred in selling the asset. Do not include equity in 
an owner-occupied cooperative or manufactured housing unit if the family intended to 
continue living in the cooperative unit or manufactured housing home after being admitted to 
the Section 8 program. For real estate, have tenant certify the estimated Fair Market Value 
(no appraisal needed) and subtract mortgage and established costs (i.e., attorney’s fees, 
closing costs, etc.). 

   
  4. The cash value of any trusts available to the family. Do not include the value of trusts that no 

family member of the family or household can control. The value of the trust fund will not be 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 63 

 
considered an asset so long as the fund continues to be held in trust. However, any income 
distributed from the trust will be counted when determining the family’s annual income. 

   
  5. IRA, Keogh, and similar retirement savings accounts. These are included because participation 

is voluntary and the family has access to them, even though withdrawal would result in a 
penalty. 

   
  6. Company retirement/pension funds. 
   

a. While the family member is employed, include amounts the family can withdraw without  
retiring or terminating employment. 

 b. At retirement or termination or employment, count as an asset any amount the member 
elects to receive as a lump sum. If the benefits will be received through a periodic 
payment, include the benefit in annual income. 

  
  7. Assets disposed of for less than Fair Market Value. 
   
 a. For any assets the family has disposed of for less than Fair Market Value during the two 

years prior to the effective date of the admission or reexamination being processed, count 
the difference between the market value and actual amount received. 

 b. Assets disposed of as a result of foreclosure or bankruptcy are not considered assets 
disposed of for less than Fair Market Value. 

 c. Small amounts, such as charitable contributions, under $1,000 will not be counted. If 
value of the disposed assets is over the $1,000, the entire amount will be counted. 

 d. Assets disposed of as a result of a divorce or separation agreement are not considered 
disposed of for less than Fair Market Value if family has received consideration not 
measurable in dollar terms. 

 e. Verification of assets disposed of for less than Fair Market Value will be verified by 
applicant certification. Only those certifications that warrant it will be verified. 

  
8. Business assets are not considered in determining the value of net family assets; however, if 

business assets have been disposed of for less than Fair Market Value in the past two years 
preceding the effective date of the reexamination or move-in, the difference between the 
amount realized and the Fair Market Value is included in the net family assets. In this regard, 
business assets are treated the same as any other family asset. 

 
  9. Assets Owned Jointly 
   
  If assets are owned by more than one person and the Applicant/Tenant has unrestricted 

access to the asset, the full value of the asset is counted. 
   
  10. Lump-Sum Receipts 
   
  Includes inheritances, capital gains, one-time lottery winnings, settlements on insurance and 

other claims, etc. 
 
 11. Personal Property Held as an Investment 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 64 

 
Includes gems, jewelry, coin collections, or antique cars held as an investment. If the family 
does not know the Fair Market Value, verification is required. An applicant’s wedding ring and 
other personal jewelry are considered necessary personal property and not assets. 

   
 12. Cash Value of Life Insurance Policies. 
  
 13. “Loaning” of Family Assets 
  
  In situations where the family claims to have “loaned” assets to other private parties 

(relatives, friends, neighbors, etc.), the HA will continue to count the asset as under the 
family’s control and continue to count the net cash value of the asset, letting the family deal 
with actually recovering the money at some time in the future. 

   
  If the family claims they gave the asset away, however, the HA would consider it an asset 

“disposed of for less than Fair Market Value” and calculate the income based on that 
procedure. 

   
 B. Items Not Counted as Assets 
  
  1. Necessary personal property (furniture, clothing, cars, etc.). 
   
  In distinguishing necessary personal property from assets, consider the following: 
  a. Necessary personal property usually is not expected to increase in value, and 
 b. Necessary personal property is usually used by the owner. 
  
  2. Vehicles especially equipped for the handicapped. 
   
  3. Assets not accessible to the family and which provide no income for the family. 
   
  4. Interest in Indian trust lands. 
  5. Assets that are a part of an active business or farming operation. 
   
  6. The equity in owner-occupied cooperatives and manufactured homes in which an assisted 

family lives. 
   

III. Adjusted Income - Allowances 
 
 A. Dependent Allowance 
  
 A dependent allowance of $480 per dependent is provided and covers any household member 

who is: 
  
 1. Under 18, 
  
 2. Disabled, or 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 65 

 
  3. A full-time student. (The institution defines what subject load constitutes full-time and an 

educational institution includes a vocational school with a diploma or certificate program, as 
well as an institution offering a college degree.) 

   
 The Head of Household, Spouse, Foster Child or Live-In Aide are never counted as dependents. 
  
 B. Elderly Household Deduction 
  
  Families in which the Head of Household or Spouse is at least 62, or disabled, are entitled to a 

$400 household deduction. Only one deduction per family is permitted even if both the head of 
household and spouse are elderly. A family may not designate a family member as head of 
household solely to become eligible for this deduction. 

  
C. Child Care Allowance 

 
 Reasonable Child care expenses for the care of children, including foster children, under age 13 

are permitted when such care is needed to enable a family member to work or to further their 
education (academic or vocational). In order to qualify for the child care allowance, the Family 
must demonstrate that: 

  
  1. No adult household member capable of providing child care during the hours needed is 

available; 
   
  2. The amount submitted for deduction is reasonable in terms of costs, number of hours and 

type of care; 
   
  3. The amount of child care expense which enables a family member to work does not exceed 

the employment income earned because the care is available; 
   
   When more than one family member works, assume that the child care expense enables the 

lowest paid individual to work, unless this is obviously not the case; 
  4. The amount is not paid to a family member living in the household; 
   
  5. The amount is not paid or reimbursed by an agency or individual outside the household. The 

applicant’s written certification is needed as to whether any of the child care payments have 
been or will be reimbursed by outside sources. If only a portion of the child care expense is 
reimbursed, the remainder would be considered for deduction. 

   
  6. If the child care provider also cares for other family members, the amount for the care of 

children under 13 must be prorated. 
   
 Child support payments for children who do not live in the unit are not considered child care 

payments and, therefore, are not included in this allowance. 
  
 D.  Disability Assistance Allowance 
  
  Families may deduct anticipated expenses for attendant care and auxiliary apparatus for a family 

member who is a person with disabilities (according to the HUD definitions) if such expenses:  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 66 

 
  1. Are needed to enable a family member (including the person with disabilities) to be 

employed, 
   
  2. Exceed three percent of Annual Income, and 
   
  3. The amount deducted does not exceed the employment income received by Family members 

(including the person with disabilities) 18 years or older who are able to work as a result of the 
assistance to the person with disabilities. 

   
 Any family with a handicapped or disabled family member may qualify for this allowance even if 

neither the Head of Household nor spouse is handicapped or disabled. 
  
 Auxiliary apparatus includes items such as wheelchairs, ramps, adaptations to vehicles, special 

equipment to enable a blind person to read or type, etc. which directly relate to permitting the 
handicapped/person with disabilities or other family member to work. If the apparatus is a 
specially-equipped van, the expense is to be based on the difference between it and the cost of a 
regular, moderately priced car. 

  
 Care attendant expenses may be paid to a relative only if it is determined that the relative is not a 

member of the family. 
  
 When a child care provider takes care of children under age 13 and a handicapped/disabled 

member 13 years or older, expenses must be prorated appropriately since the way in which child 
care and handicap expenses are computed differ. 

  
 A family whose head of household or spouse is elderly or is a person with disabilities is also 

permitted to deduct medical expenses using a special calculation. 
  
 E. Medical Expenses 
  
 Allowances for medical expenses (expenses that exceed three percent of annual income) are 

permitted only for households in which the head of household or spouse is at least 62, or 
disabled. If the family is eligible for a medical expense deduction: 

  
1. Count medical expenses of all family members, and 

  
2. Include expenses that are not covered by outside sources, such as insurance, and that are 

anticipated to be incurred during the next 12 months following the family’s 
examination/reexamination. Additionally, include the portion of expenses that were incurred 
during the 12 months prior to the annual review but were paid prior to the currently 
scheduled reexamination. Expenses such as the following would be allowed: 

 a. Services of doctors and health care professionals. 
 b. Services of health care facilitators. 
 c. Medical insurance premiums, including premiums paid for long-term care insurance. 
 d. Prescription medicines. 
 e. Transportation to and from treatment facilities. 
 f. Dental expenses (including the costs of obtaining/repairing dentures). 
 g. Eyeglasses, hearing aids, batteries. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 67 

 
 h. Live-in attendant or periodic medical assistance. 
 i. Monthly payment(s) on accumulated medical bills. 
 j. Costs associated with the use of a service animal trained to assist persons with physical 

disabilities. Grooming parlor expenses associated with luxury-type care, and costs incurred 
for boarding an animal when not in use are excluded. 

  
  If a family is eligible for a deduction for both medical expenses and handicap assistance expenses, the 

three percent of annual income must first be deducted from the handicap assistance expenses. Any 
remainder is then deducted from total medical expenses. 

  
IV. Guidelines for imputing income from assets 
 
 These guidelines are to be used only if the total family assets are greater than $5,000. If assets are 

$5,000 or less, imputed income is not considered. 
  
 STEP I.    Determining Whether Imputing Income is Necessary 
  

 A. Multiply the total assets by 0.75% (.0075).1 
 B. Calculate the actual income received from all assets. 
 C. Compare the totals from A and B above and follow the applicable instructions below: 

   

 If A is less than B, STOP HERE, add the actual income from assets to calculate total family 
income, NO FURTHER CALCULATIONS ARE NEEDED. 

 If A is greater than B, CONTINUE TO STEP II to determine if you must impute income from 
assets. 

   
 
 STEP II.  Calculating Disposal Costs 
  
 Use the following guidelines to determine the disposal cost of each family asset: 
  
 Type of Asset    Disposal Cost 
  
 a. Real Estate    10% of the assessed value 
 b. Mobile Homes    10% of the assessed value 
 

c. Time Deposits or CD’s: 
   
  7-31 Days All of the interest earned, or 1/2 of the interest that 

could have been earned, whichever is greater 
  
  32-364  Days One month’s interest 
  
  12-59  Months Three months’ interest 
  
  60-120  Months Six months’ interest 

                                                           
1 .75% is the SWHA established Passbook Savings Rate. By regulation this amount is reviewed annually and set within 0.75% of 
the National Savings rate. As of 8.21.23 National Rate was .43, therefore no change needed - amount within threshold. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 68 

 
  
 d. Stocks, Bonds, Annuities Brokerage rates vary, contact the 
  Mutual Funds, etc. agent listed on the verification for a written estimate of 

disposal costs. 
  
 e. Savings, Checking, Money Markets Generally, no disposal costs 
 
  STEP III.  Calculating a Net Asset Value 
  
 a. Deduct any applicable disposal cost found in STEP II above from the value of the 

corresponding asset. This is the Net Value of the Asset. (If an asset has no disposal costs, its 
Net Asset Value is the Actual Value of the asset). 

  
 b. Calculate the family’s TOTAL NET ASSET VALUE* 
  
 * If the family’s total net asset value is LESS THAN or EQUAL TO $5,000 then STOP HERE. The 

actual income from the assets is used to determine total family income. 
  
 * If the family’s total net asset value is GREATER THAN $5,000, CONTINUE to STEP IV. 

Imputed income must be considered when calculating total family income. 
  
 STEP IV.  Calculating Imputed Income from Assets 
  
 a. Multiply the figure found in Step III. b. above (Total Net Assets) by 0.75% (.0075). This is the 

IMPUTED INCOME FROM ALL ASSETS. 
  
 STEP V.  Comparing Imputed and Actual Income from Assets 
  
 a. Compare the Imputed income found in STEP IV above to the total actual income from assets 

(from STEP I. b.) 
  

b. The amount added to the family’s annual income is the greater of the imputed income found 
in STEP IV or the actual income from assets. 

 
     STEP. VI.   Disallowance of Earned Income 
  

 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 69 

 

EXHIBIT D. SCHEDULE OF FLAT RENTS 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

Effective January 1, 2023 

 

Bedroom Size 1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom 4 Bedroom 

2023 FMR $1,111 $1,407 $2,000 $2,322 

80% FMR  $889 $1,126 $1,600 $1,858 

Flat Rent  $889 $1,126 $1,600 $1,858 

 
 

A Family choosing the Flat Rent option will pay rent equal to the amount above (for their corresponding sized unit) 

less the applicable utility allowance for the respective dwelling.  

Flat Rent amounts will be updated annually based on revisions to the HUD published FMR.  

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 70 

 

EXHIBIT E. INCOME LIMITS 
Revised 08/30/2023 
 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

Public Housing Program 
Skagit County 

 
Income Limits for 

 
Housing Authority of Sedro Woolley 

 
Effective - May 15, 2023 

Family 
Composition 

Extremely Low-Income 
Very Low-

Income 
Low-

Income 

Over-
Income 

Limit 

1 Person 19,150 31,900 51,050 76,560 

2 Person 21,900 36,450 58,350 87,480 

3 Person 24,860 41,000 65,650 98,400 

4 Person 30,000 45,550 72,900 109,320 

5 Person 35,140 49,200 78,750 118,080 

6 Person 40,280 52,850 84,600 126,840 

7 Person 45,420 56,500 90,400 135,600 

8 Person 50,560 60,150 96,250 144,360 

9 Person 55,700 63,800 102,100 153,120 

10 Person 60,840 67,450 107,900 161,880 

11 Person 65,980 71,100 113,750 170,640 

 
ASSET LIMITS 

 
Included in the eligibility income is the dollar amount derived from assets. If the assets exceed $5,000.00, the initial 

eligibility income would include the income derived from the assets, or 0.75% 2 of the total family assets, whichever 

is greater. 

  

                                                           
2 2 .75% is the SWHA established Passbook Savings Rate. By regulation this amount is reviewed annually and set within 0.75% of 
the National Savings rate. As of 8.21.23 National Rate was .43, therefore no change needed - amount within threshold. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 71 

 

EXHIBIT F.  INCOME TARGETING GUIDELINES 
Revised 06/14/2023 

     
Applicants for the Public Housing program will only be considered eligible if their income is at or below 80% of the 

area median income for their family size. However, selection will be made according to income where at least 40% 

of families selected will have annual incomes that do not exceed 30% of the area median income for their family 

size. The HA reserves the right to bypass higher income families in order to meet these income targeting guidelines. 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 72 

 

EXHIBIT G. ACCEPTABLE FORMS OF VERIFICATION 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 

I. Income Verification 
Up-front verification of income through EIV will be used when possible to verify or validate tenant reported income 

for both annual and interim reviews of family income and composition. When EIV is not available or disputed, or 

when verifying data for initial housings or to determine applicant eligibility, verification from other sources will be 

used as described in Section 8 of this policy and as outlined below: 

A. Employment Verification 

All employment verification forms must provide the following information: 

1. Date of hire; 

2. Frequency of pay and effective date of the last pay increase; 

3. Probability and effective date of any increase during the next 12 months; 

4. Bonus, commission, and tip amounts, if applicable; and, 

5. Manager signature and telephone number 

Forms of verification, in order of acceptability, include: 

 
1. Up-Front Income Verification through a HUD system 

The verification of income before or during a family reexamination, through a HUD system (i.e., EIV) that 

systematically and uniformly maintains income information in computerized form for a number of 

individuals. 

 

2. Up-Front Income Verification through a Non-HUD system 

The verification of income before or during a family reexamination, through a Non-HUD system (i.e., 

Employment Security) that systematically and uniformly maintains income information in computerized 

form for a number of individuals. 

 

3. Written Third Party 

An original or authentic document generated by a third party source dated within the 60-day period 

preceding the reexamination or HA request date. Such documents may be in the possession of the tenant 

(or applicant) and are commonly referred to as tenant-provided documents. Examples include but are not 

limited to: pay stubs, payroll summary report, employer notice/letter of hire/termination, SSA benefit 

verification letter, bank statements, child support payment stubs, welfare benefit letters or printouts, and 

unemployment monetary benefit notices. Two current and consecutive pay stubs are required when 

determining income from wages. 

 

4. Written Third Party Verification Form 

A standardized form to collect information from a third party source. The form is completed by the third 

party by hand (written or typed). Usually, HA’s send the form directly to the third party source by mail, fax, 

or email. 

 

5. Third Party Oral 

Independent verification of information by contacting the individual income/expense source(s), as 

identified through the UIV technique or identified by the family, via telephone or in-person visit. 

Documentation of the contact including the date and time of the telephone call (or visit to the third party), 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 73 

 
the name of the person contacted and telephone number, along with the confirmed information should be 

placed in the tenant’s file. 

 

6. Non-Third Party Documentation 

Tenant Declaration – The tenant submits an affidavit or notarized statement of reported income or 

expenses to the HA. This verification method should be used as a last resort when the HA has been 

unsuccessful in obtaining information via all other verification techniques. Documentation must be included 

in the tenant file as to why other forms were not available. This form of verification cannot be used for the 

convenience of the applicant/participant nor in a situation where an applicant/participant claims to be 

unable to remember necessary information. 

 
B. Social Security, Pensions, Supplementary Security Income (SSI), Disability Income. 

 
1. Benefit verification form completed by agency providing the benefits (or computer print-out or other 

format provided directly from the agency or through HUD’s computer matching program.) 

 

2. For Social Security benefits due to age, apply the cost of living factor to the benefits reported on the 

previous determination of Total Tenant Payment. Re-verify the income of all Social Security benefits under 

the age of 62 and recipients of Supplemental Security Income (SSI). 

 

3. Award or benefit notification letters prepared and signed by the authorizing agency. 

 

4. For Social Security or SSI payments, bank statements showing the amounts deposited directly into the 

applicant/tenant account may be used when award letters or benefit verification forms cannot be obtained. 

However, caution should be taken to ensure that the actual amount calculated as income includes the 

addition of amounts deducted for Medicare/Medicaid which is not listed on the bank records. 

 

5. If Social Security or SSI cannot be verified as listed above, the applicant/tenant may be asked to present the 

next benefit check received to the Housing Authority for viewing. The office would then make a notation 

listing the amount of the check, payee, date, etc., for the file as verification of the income source. DO NOT 

photocopy any check issued by a federal agency. 

 

6. For Social Security and SSI only, if none of the above listed verification sources exist, the amount of income 

received may be verified by a signed certification from the applicant/tenant attesting to the amount. In 

such instances the applicant/tenant must be informed that a retro rent may apply if subsequent verification 

indicates the benefit amount was incorrectly reported. 

 
C. Unemployment Compensation 

Computer print-out from the unemployment office stating payment dates and amounts or monetary determination 

form. 

D. Public Assistance Payments 

 
1. HA Verification Form completed by Public Assistance Agency 

 

2. Welfare agency’s written statements as to type and amount of assistance family is now receiving, and any 

changes in assistance expected during the next 12 months. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 74 

 
 

3. Oral or Computer verification by HA personnel through use of the DSHS 1-800 hotline or similar data 

verification system established by DSHS for such purposes. 

 

E. Alimony or Child Support Payments 

 
1. Copy of a separation or settlement agreement or a divorce decree stating amount and type of support and 

payment schedules. 

 

2. If an applicant/tenant who is eligible for child support states they are not receiving it or they are receiving 

less than the total amount they are entitled to receive, third party verification is required to support this. 

The entire amount indicated in the court papers is to be used to calculate income unless documentation 

indicates otherwise. 

 

3. Acceptable documentation includes: 

a. a letter from the applicant’s attorney stating they are not receiving the amount they are entitled to 

receive or 

b. a letter for Support Enforcement stating the above, or  

c. a copy of any revised court documents. 

 
F. Net Income from a Business 

The following documents show income for the prior years. Consult with tenants and use this data to estimate 

income for the next 12 months. 

 
1. IRS Tax Return; Form 1040, if any: 

a. Schedule C (Small Business) 

b. Schedule F (Farm Income) 

c. Schedule E (Rental Property Income) 

2. Audited or unaudited financial statement(s) of the business. 

3. Loan Application listing income derived from the business during the previous 12 months. 

4. Applicant’s notarized statement or affidavit as to net income realized from the business during previous 

years. 

 
G. Recurring Gifts 

1. Notarized statement or affidavit signed by the person providing the assistance. Must give the purpose, 

dates and value of gifts. 

2. Applicant’s notarized statement or affidavit that provides the information in G.1. above. 

 
H. Scholarships, Grants, and Veterans Administration Benefits for Education 

These are excluded from income. 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 75 

 

II. Asset Verification 
 
A. Family Assets Now Held. 

For non-liquid assets, collect enough information to determine the current cash value: the net amount the family 

would receive if the assets were converted to cash. 

  
1. Verification forms, letters, or documents from a financial institution, broker, real estate agent, etc. 

indicating current value of the asset and penalties or reasonable costs to be incurred in order to convert 

non-liquid assets into cash. 

   

2. Passbooks, checking account statements, certificates of deposit, bonds, or financial statements completed 

by a financial institution or broker. Use current balance in savings account and average monthly balance in 

checking account for the last 6 months, when the average balance of the checking account is greater than 

$1,000. Verification requirement does not apply where only a nominal balance is maintained in the 

checking account in order to meet the family’s day-to-day living expenses – defined as an average 6 month 

balance of $1,000 or less.  

   

3. Quotes from attorneys, bankers, stock brokers, or realty agents as to net amount family would receive if 

they liquidated securities or real estate.   

 

4. Real estate tax statements if tax authority uses approximate market value. 

   

5. Copies of closing documents showing the selling price, the distribution of the sales proceeds, and the net 

amount to the borrower. 

   

6. Appraisals of personal property held as an investment. 

 

7. Applicant’s notarized statements or signed affidavits describing assets or to verify cash held at the 

applicant’s home or in safe deposit boxes. 

   
B. Assets Disposed of For Less Than Fair Market Value (FMV) During Two Years Preceding Effective Date of 

Certification or Recertification. 

1. For all certifications and recertifications, family’s certification as to whether any member has disposed of 

assets for less than FMV during the two years preceding effective date of the certification or recertification. 

 

2. If the family certifies that they did dispose of assets for less than FMV -- a certification that shows: 

a. all assets disposed of for less than FMV, 

b. the date they disposed of the assets, 

c. the amount the family received, and  

d. the assets’ market value at the time of disposition. 

  
C. Savings Account Interest Income and Dividends. 

1. Account statements, passbooks, certificates of deposit, etc., if they show enough information and are 

signed by the financial institution. 

a. Current interest amount can be obtained by contacting the source by phone and properly 

documenting the Verification Form. 

2. Broker’s quarterly statements showing value of stocks or bonds and the earnings credited the applicant.  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 76 

 
3. If an IRS Form 1099 from the financial institution is acceptable, adjust the information to project earnings 

expected for the next 12 months. 

   
D. Interest Income from Sale of Real Property Pursuant to a Purchase Money Mortgage, Installment Sales 

Contract, or Similar Arrangement. 

  
1. A letter from an accountant, attorney, real estate broker, the buyer, or a financial institution 

stating interest due for next 12 months. (A copy of the check paid by the buyer to the  
applicant is NOT sufficient since appropriate breakdowns of interest and principal are not 
included.) 

   
  2. Amortization schedule showing interest for the 12 months following the effective date of the 

certification or recertification. 
 E. Rental Income from Property Owned by Applicant. 
  
 (Owners must adjust these amounts for changes expected during the next 12 months.) 
  
  1. IRS Form 1040 with Schedule E (Rental Income). 
   
  2. Copies of latest rent checks, leases, or utility bills. 
   
  3. Documentation of applicant’s income and expenses in renting the property (tax statement, 

insurance premiums, receipts for reasonable maintenance and utilities, bank statements or 
amortization schedules showing monthly interest expense.) 

   
  4. Lessee’s written statement identifying monthly payments due the applicant and applicant’s 

affidavit as to net income realized. 
   

III.   Verification of Deduction/Allowances 
 
 A. Full-time student status 
  
  1. Written verification from the registrar’s office or appropriate school official. 
   

2. School records indicating enrollment for sufficient number of credits to be considered a full-
time student by the school. 
 

     B.  Child Care Expenses 
  

1. Written verification from the person who receives the payments.  

a.  If child care is provided by a licensed business, verification on its letterhead stationery 
will be acceptable.  

b. If child care is provided in a private home (i.e. friend, relative), written notarized 
verification will be required. 

c. If verification required in (a) or (b) above is not available, copies of tax returns or actual bills 
and receipts indicating amount paid may be used. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 77 

 
   
  2. Verifications must specify the hours and days during which the care is provided, the names of 

the children cared for and the frequency and amount of compensation received. 
   
 a. Need to determine “reasonable hours” and “reasonable costs for the jurisdictions” (as 

costs may often vary by seasons.) 
   
 C. Medical Expenses.  
 
  1. Written verification by a doctor, hospital or clinic personnel, dentist, pharmacist, etc., 

including: 
 a. The estimated medical costs to be incurred by the applicant and of regular payments due 

on medical bills 
  
 b. Extent to which those expenses will be reimbursed by insurance or a government agency. 
  
  2. The insurance company’s or employer’s written confirmation of health insurance premiums to 

be paid by the applicant plus a copy of a receipt, canceled check or pay stub. 
   
  3. Social Security Administration’s written confirmation of Medicare premiums to be paid by the 

applicant over the next 12 months. 
   
  4. For Attendant Care. 
   
 a. Doctor’s certification that the assistance of an attendant is medically necessary. 
  
 b. Attendants written confirmation of hours of care provided and amount and frequency of 

payments received from the family (or copies of canceled checks the family used to make 
those payments). 

  
 c. Applicant’s certification as to whether any of those payments have been or will be 

reimbursed by outside sources. 
  
  5. Receipts, canceled checks or pay stubs that indicate health insurance premium costs, etc., that 

verify medical and insurance expenses also likely to be incurred in the next 12 months. 
   
  6. Copies of payment agreements with medical facilities or canceled checks that verify payments 

made on outstanding medical bills that will continue for all or part of the next 12 months. 
   
  7. Receipts or other records of medical expenses incurred during the past 12 months that can be 

used to anticipate future medical expenses. Use this approach for “general medical expenses” 
such as non-prescription drugs and regular visits to doctors or dentists, but not for one-time, 
non-recurring expenses from the previous year. 

    
 D. Assistance to Persons with a Disability  
  1. Attendant care: In all cases, written certification from a doctor or a rehabilitation agency that 

the person with disabilities requires the services of an attendant or the use of auxiliary 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 78 

 
apparatus to permit the person with disabilities to be employed or to function sufficiently 
independently to enable another family member to be employed. 

   
 a. Attendant’s written certification as to amount received from the applicant/tenant, 

frequency of receipt, hours of care provided or copies of canceled checks applicant/tenant 
used to make those payments. 

  
  2. Auxiliary apparatus: in all cases, written certification from a doctor or a rehabilitation agency 

that the person with disabilities requires the services of an attendant or the use of auxiliary 
apparatus to permit the person with disabilities to be employed or to function sufficiently 
independently to enable another family member to be employed. 

   
 a. Receipts for purchases of, or evidence of monthly payments for, auxiliary apparatus. 
  
 b. In the case where the person with disabilities is employed, a statement from the employer 

that the auxiliary apparatus is necessary for employment. 
  
 c. Family’s written certification as to whether they receive reimbursement for any of the 

expenses in Paragraphs 1 and 2 above and the amount of any reimbursement received. 
  

IV. Other General Verification 
 
 A. Family Type and Membership in Family. 

1. For an elderly household age may be verified by: 
 

a. a copy of a birth certificate, baptismal certificate, census record, or 
b. receipt of SSI Old Age benefits or Social Security retirement benefits. 
 

2. For Disabled Head or Spouse, an applicant or Participant/Tenant receiving Social Security 
benefits or Supplemental Security Income (SSI) disability benefits will be considered to be 
disabled under HUD’s definition, (an applicant receiving veteran disability benefits, however, 
does not necessarily qualify as disabled under HUD’s definition). A family who is not receiving 
either of the above benefits may still qualify by providing verification from a health or service 
professional. 

a. After admission, a family must continue to qualify as a disabled family at the time of 
their annual reexamination in order to get the benefit of the disabled deduction and in 
order to have medical expenses considered in determining the rent. However, a 
person with disabilities who “recovers” can remain in subsidized housing but is no 
longer considered disabled for deduction purposes. 

 
3. For family membership of persons younger than age 18 - birth certificate, adoption papers or 

custody agreements. 
 

4. Medical need for larger unit. Certification from a reliable medical source that such 
arrangements are medically necessary. 

 

V. Verification for Tenant Selection Preferences 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 79 

 
A. Local Preference 1: 

 
1. Involuntarily Displaced. Applicants will be considered involuntarily displaced if they are 

currently displaced and are not living in standard permanent replaced housing, or provide 
verification that displacement will occur within the next six months. Required verification 
includes: 

  
(a) Written certification from a unit of government concerning displacement due to a 

disaster; 
 

(b) Written certification from a unit of government concerning displacement due to code 
enforcement or public improvement/development; 

 
(c) Certification from an owner concerning displacement due to Owner action 

(1) An applicant will not be considered displaced unless there was a prior rental 
agreement between the owner and the applicant. Verification must include a 
rental agreement and canceled checks or money orders showing rental payment 
for not less than 90 days. 

 
(2) The individual serving the notice of displacement must legally own the property in 

which the applicant resides. (Renters can’t displace.) 
  

(d) Certification from local police, social service agency, court of law, physician or 
public/private shelter/counseling facility concerning displacement due to domestic 
violence (verification must indicate that instances of violence are of a recent or a 
continuing nature). An applicant who qualifies for a Federal Preference based on 
domestic violence must certify that the abuser will not reside with the applicant 
without prior HA approval. 

   
(e) For displacement due to reprisals, certification from a law enforcement agency 

indicating that family members provided information on a criminal activity and that 
the agency recommends relocating the family to avoid or minimize the risk of violence 
due to retaliation. 

 
(f) For displacement due to hate crimes of a recent or continuing nature, certification 

from a law enforcement agency stating that the family member has been a victim of a 
hate crime and has vacated the housing unit because of such a crime. 

 
(g) For displacement due to inaccessibility, certification by a health care professional that 

a family member has a mobility or other impairment that makes the current unit 
inaccessible and a statement by the owner that they are not legally obligated to make 
the necessary changes to the unit. 

(h) For displacement due to HUD disposition of a multifamily project, certification by HUD 
of the disposition. 

   
 
 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 80 

 
2. Substandard Housing. Required verification includes: 

   
(a) Written certification from a unit of government that the unit’s condition meets the 

federal definition of substandard; 
 

(b) Written certification from an applicant’s current landlord that the unit’s condition 
meets the federal definition of substandard; 

 
(c) For “homeless families,” written certification of their status from a public/private 

facility providing shelter to the family, from local police or a social service agency. (This 
includes applicants receiving HOPWA funding.) 

3. Paying more than 50% of Income for Rent and Utilities. Applicants will be considered to be rent 
burdened if they are (a) paying more than 50% of their income for rent and utilities, and, have been 
paying this amount for more than 90 days.  Applicants will not qualify for this preference if the 
reason they are paying more than 50% of their income is because their housing assistance under 
the Section 8, Public Housing, Rent Supplement, or Section 236 program was terminated for refusal 
to comply with applicable program policies and procedures.  
 

Required verification to document eligibility includes: 
   

(a) Third party verification of all income sources, as required by the HA; 
 

(b) For rent, an applicant is required to produce a copy of either a lease (rental 
agreement) or rent receipts showing the applicant has been paying over 50 % of their 
income for rent for the previous 90 day period. If the submitted documentation is not 
satisfactory, however, further information will be requested. 

 
(c) For utility allowances, an applicant can choose to either: 

   Use the HA’s Section 8 Utility Allowance (if the applicant provides documentation 
showing the bedroom size of their current unity); or 

 
(1) Provide information (copies of bills, receipts, etc.) of all utility payments made for 

the prior 12 month period, or if information is not obtainable, for the entire period 
of an appropriate recent period (such period will be no less than six consecutive 
months). 

  
B. Local Preference 2: 

 
Local Preference 2 applicants are determined to have no preference on the waiting list and 
need only to document their eligibility/suitability for the program to which they apply. 

 

VI. Social Security Disclosure and Documentation 
 
 A. Disclosure and Documentation Requirements 
  
  All tenants and applicants to the HA’s Public Housing Program must disclose and document (as 

listed in VI.B below) the complete and accurate Social Security Numbers (SSNs) assigned to the 
applicant/tenant and to each  member of the household, including live-in attendants and foster 
children. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 81 

 
1. A family is required to disclose and document the proper SSN for each household member. 

However, the HA may not deny assistance to a Mixed Family (see Section 1) due to non-
disclosure of an SSN by an individual who does not contend to have eligible immigration 
status.   

2. Rules for Applicants:  Submission of SSNs and acceptable documentation must be provided 
during the applicant’s final determination of program eligibility.  Applicants may not be 
housed in a unit prior to the submission of required information for ALL household 
members, except as those included as members of a Mixed Family who do not contend to 
have eligible immigration status (see item VI.A.1 above). 

3. Rules for Current Tenants as of January 31, 2010:  Excluding persons age 62 or over as of 
January 31, 2010, disclosure and documentation of a complete and valid SSN is required no 
later than the date of the next regularly scheduled recertification or interim review of 
income, family composition and program eligibility for all occupants who: 

a. Have not previously disclosed a SSN; 

b. Previously disclosed an SSN that HUD or the SSA determined was invalid; or 

c. Have been issued a new SSN. 

Current occupants over age 62 as of January 31, 2010 are not required to provide 
additional verification.  This exemption continues in the current unit, or in any future 
assisted unit in which the occupant may reside. 

4.   Rules regarding the addition of NEW Household members:   

a. Addition of family members under the age of 6 who have not previously been assigned 
a SSN:  Such children may be added to the Lease, however, the family must disclose and 
document a valid SSN within 90 calendar days of the child being added to the 
household; 

1. At the HA’s discretion, an additional 90 days may be granted where failure to 
comply was due to circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen 
and were outside the control of the participant.   

b. Addition of family members age 6 and over or who are under age 6 and have an assigned 
SSN:  The family must disclose and document the assigned SSN upon requesting to add the 
new family member, or at the time of processing the interim and recertification of family 
composition that includes the new member(s). 

c. In accordance with procedures outlined in item C.2 below, the HA must terminate the 
tenancy of any tenant (and the tenant’s household) for failing to meet applicable SSN 
disclosure and documentation requirements for all household members, including live-
in attendants and foster children.  

 
 
 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 82 

 
 B. Acceptable Forms of Documentation 
  
  Documentation accepted to verify the Social Security Number of an individual will include the 

following: 
  
  1. A valid Social Security card issued by the Social Security Administration of the Department of 

Health and Human Services; 
   
  2. An original document issued by a federal or state government agency, which contains the 

name of the individual and the SSN of the individual, along with other identifying information 
of the individual.  For example, a state driver’s license that displays the Social Security 
Number; 

   
  3. Such other evidence of the SSN as HUD may prescribe or approve. 
   
 Note: Photo copies or plastic replicas of an individual’s Social Security card cannot be accepted. 
 C. Inability to provide Social Security Number Documentation 
  
 If a family member can disclose their Social Security Number, but documentation to verify the 

number is unavailable at the time, the following will apply: 
  

1. Denial of Eligibility for Applicants.  The HA must deny the eligibility of any applicant 
household who has not meet the SSN disclosure and documentation requirements for each 
household member, including live-in attendants and foster children.  However, if the 
family is otherwise eligible, they may retain their place on the waiting list for 90 calendar 
days in order to allow the applicant time to provide the required documentation for all 
household members. If the applicant fails to comply with applicable SSN disclosure and 
documentation requirements within the time period specified their application will be 
cancelled and removed from the waiting list.  

a. The HA may defer the cancellation, and provide the household an additional 90 
calendar days to disclose and document a SSN only if the HA determines (in its 
discretion):   

1. The failure to meet the requirement was due to circumstances that could not have 
reasonably been foreseen and were outside the control of the applicant; and, 

2. There is reasonable likelihood that the applicant will be able to disclose and 
document the missing SSN data within the 90 day extension period.   

b. In no case can the applicant be housed until SSN disclosure and documentation 
requirements have been met for all members of the household, including live-in 
attendants and foster children. 

   
2. Termination of Tenancy for current Residents.  The HA must terminate the tenancy of any 

tenant (and the tenant’s household) for failure to meet applicable SSN disclosure and 
documentation requirements for each household member, including live-in attendants and 
foster children.    



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 83 

 
a. The HA may defer the termination, and provide the household an additional 90 

calendar days to disclose and document a SSN only if the HA determines (in its 
discretion):   

1. The failure to meet the requirement was due to circumstances that could not have 
reasonably been foreseen and were outside the control of the participant; and, 

2. There is reasonable likelihood that the tenant will be able to disclose and document 
the missing SSN data within the 90-day extension period. 

 
   
  
 

VII.  Verification of Restrictions on Assistance to Noncitizens 
  

A. Each family member, regardless of age, must submit the following evidence to the Housing 
Authority: 

1. For citizens, the evidence consists of a signed declaration of U.S. Citizenship; 
2. For noncitizens who are 62 years of age or, the evidence consists of a signed 

declaration of eligible immigration status and a proof of age document; 
3. For all other noncitizens, the evidence consists of a signed declaration of 

immigration status, the eligible USCIS documents (see section F of this Exhibit), 
and a signed verification consent form. 

4. Family members who choose not to contend they are a U.S. Citizen or have 
eligible immigration status, are not required to sign the declaration, however, 
the family must identify to the Housing Authority which member(s) have 
elected not to contend. 

    
B. The declaration is a form signed under penalty of perjury whereby each family member 

declares whether they are a U.S. citizen or have eligible immigration status. The verification 
consent form allows the Housing Authority to verify  declared immigration status with the 
USCIS. Each adult must sign both the declaration and consent forms. For each child, the 
declaration and consent forms must be signed by an adult residing in the assisted dwelling 
unit who is  responsible for the child. 

 
C.     The Housing Authority will require evidence of eligible status be submitted at the following 

times: 
1. For applicants, the evidence must be submitted at the time of original 

application. 
 
2. For new occupants of assisted units, the evidence will be submitted at the first 

interim or regular reexamination following the person’s occupancy.  
    
 
 
   D. Extensions 

1.    The Housing Authority must extend the time for applicants and residents to submit 
the required evidence if the family member: 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 84 

 
a. Submits the declaration certifying eligible immigration status; and, 
b. Certifies that the evidence needed to support the claim is temporarily 

unavailable, additional time is needed to obtain the evidence, and prompt and 
diligent efforts will be made to obtain the evidence. 

2. The Housing Authority’s decision to deny or grant an extension must be issued 
to the family by written notice. If the extension is granted, the notice will 
specify the extension period granted, not to exceed a maximum limit of 30 
days. If the extension is denied, the notice will explain the reasons for the 
denial. 

    
E. For each family member, the family is required to submit evidence of immigration or  

citizenship status only once during continuously assisted occupancy under any covered 
program. 
 

F. Acceptable evidence of eligible immigration status are as follows: 
1. Form I-551 Alien Registration Card 
2. Form I-94 Arrival Departure Record annotated with one of the following: 

 Admitted as Refugee Pursuant to Section 207 

 Section 208 or Asylum 

 Section 243(h) or Deportation stayed by Attorney General 

 Paroled Pursuant to Section 212(d)(5) of the INA 
3. Form I-94 Arrival Departure Record not annotated, must be accompanied by one of 

the following: 

 A final court decision granting asylum 

 A letter from the USCIS asylum officer, or from the USCIS district director granting 
asylum 

 A court decision granting withholding or deportation 

 A letter from an USCIS asylum officer granting withholding of deportation 
4. Form I-688 Temporary Resident Card annotated with Section 245A or Section 210 
5. Form I-688B Employment Authorization Card annotated with Provision of Law 

274a.12(11) or Provision of Law 274a.12 
6. A receipt from the USCIS indicating the application for issuance of a replacement 

document for one of the above. 
 
 

G. When the eligible evidence is submitted, the Housing Authority must verify the families  
eligibility status in the following manner: 

 
  1. Primary Verification: The Housing Authority must contact the USCIS automated 

verification system (SAVE) to re-verify the documents. The SAVE system provides 
access to names, file numbers, and admission numbers of noncitizens. Should the 
SAVE system confirm eligibility, the family will be eligible for assistance. Should the 
SAVE system not confirm eligible immigration status of the family, the Housing 
Authority must institute Secondary Verification. 

  2. Secondary Verification: This is a manual search of the USCIS records requested by the 
Housing Authority in writing within 10 days of receiving the results from the SAVE 
system. The manual search is initiated by forwarding copies of the original USCIS 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 85 

 
documents provided by the family, attached to the USCIS document G-845S, to the 
designated USCIS office for review.  

  
H. If a family fails to submit the required evidence within the time period specified, or if the 

evidence is submitted, but fails to establish eligible immigration status as described in 
paragraph G.2. of this section, the Housing Authority will determine the family or family 
members ineligible and notify them of their options under the program (See Exhibit K). 

 
 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 86 

 

EXHIBIT H. VERIFICATION INSTRUCTIONS FOR TENANT 
SELECTION PREFERENCES 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
I. RENT BURDEN - Paying More Than 50% of Income for Rent: 
 
For purposes of this preference, Rent is defined as the actual monthly amount due under a lease or 
occupancy agreement, plus the monthly amount paid for tenant supplied utilities. An applicant qualifies 
for this preference if they (a) they are currently paying more than 50% of their income for rent and 
utilities and (b) have been paying more than 50% of their family income for rent and utilities for at least 
the previous 90 days. An applicant will not qualify for this preference if the reason they are paying more 
than 50% of their family income for rent is because their housing assistance under the Section 8, Public 
Housing, Rent Supplement, or Section 236 program was terminated for refusal to comply with applicable 
program policies and procedures on the occupancy of under-occupied and over-crowded units. 
 
 Required Verification Procedures: 
 
(1) Third party verification of all income sources, as required by the Authority; 
 
(2) For rent, copies of the current lease or rental agreement, or, copies of recent rental receipts or 

canceled checks or money orders. 
 
(3) For utility expenses, an applicant may choose either: 
 

a) To use the allowance amount provided under the Authority’s Section 8 Utility Allowance schedule 
(the applicant must provide documentation showing the bedroom size of their current unit); or 

 
b) Provide information (copies of bills, receipts, etc.) or all utility payments made for the prior 12 

month period, or if information is not obtainable, for the entire period of an appropriate recent 
period (such period will be no less than six consecutive months) to enable the Housing Authority 
to accurately calculate a 12 month average. 

 
II. SUBSTANDARD HOUSING: A family qualifies for this preference if they meet either (A) or (B) as follows: 
 
(A) Are a “Homeless Family”. A Homeless family is any person or family that lacks a fixed, regular and 

adequate nighttime residence and has a primary nighttime residence that is: 
 

1. A supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary living 
accommodations (including welfare hotels, congregate shelters, and transitional housing); 

 
2. An institution that provides temporary residence for individuals intended to be institutionalized, 

or 
3. A public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping 

accommodation for human beings. 
 

NOTE: A “Homeless Family” does not include any person imprisoned or otherwise detained 
pursuant to an Act of Congress or state law; nor does it include an individual residing in a drug or 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 87 

 
alcohol treatment center which provides a subsidy and a certain amount of time to locate housing 
upon completion of the treatment program. 

 (B) Live in a unit that meets one or more of the following conditions: 
 

1) Is dilapidated (does not provide safe, adequate shelter and in its present condition endangers 
the health, safety, or well-being of the family; or has one or more critical defect or a combination 
of defects requiring considerable repair.); 

 
2) Does not have operable indoor plumbing; 
 
3) Does not have a usable flush toilet in the unit; 
 
4) Does not have a usable bathtub or shower in the unit; 
 
5) Does not have adequate, safe electrical service; 
 
6) Should, but does not, have a kitchen; 
 
7) Does not have a safe or adequate source of heat; 
 
8) Has been declared unfit for habitation by an agency or unit of government. 
 

Required Verification Procedures: 
 
(A) Homeless Family - Written certification of their status from a public/private facility currently providing 
shelter to the Family, or, written certification from local police or a social service agency who is 
knowledgeable about the family’s current living situation. 
 
(B) Condition of Unit - Written certification from a unit of government or the applicant’s current landlord 
that the unit meets the definition of substandard. 
 
III. INVOLUNTARY DISPLACEMENT: 
An applicant qualifies for a preference in this category if they (a) have already vacated a unit and are not 
living in standard, permanent replacement housing, or (b) within no more than six months from the date 
of preference certification by the family or verification by the Housing Authority, will be forced to vacate 
their unit for any of the following reasons: 
 
1) Displacement by Disaster. An applicant’s unit is uninhabitable because of a disaster, such as a fire or 

flood. 
 
2) Displacement by Government Action. Action carried on by an agency of the United States or by any 

state or local governmental body or agency in connection with code enforcement or a public 
improvement or development program. 

 
3) Displacement by Action of a Housing Owner. Action by a housing owner that results in an applicant 

having to vacate their unit, where: 
a) The reason for the owner’s action is beyond an applicant’s ability to control or prevent; 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 88 

 
b) The action occurs despite an applicant’s having met all previously imposed conditions of 

occupancy; and, 
 
c) The action taken is other than a rent increase.  

 
Examples of such action by a housing owner include: 

 

 Conversion of an applicant’s housing unit to non-rental or nonresidential use; 
 

 Closure of an applicant’s housing unit for rehabilitation or for any other reason; 
 

 Notice to an applicant that they must vacate a unit because the owner wants the unit for the 
owner’s personal or family use or occupancy; 

 

 Sale of a housing unit in which an applicant resides under an agreement that the unit must be 
vacant when possession is transferred; 

 

 Any other legally authorized act that results or will result in the withdrawal by the owner of the 
unit or structure from the rental market. 
 

4) Displacement by Domestic Violence. An applicant is involuntarily displaced if (a) the applicant has 
vacated their dwelling unit, because of domestic violence; or, (b) they are living in a unit with a person 
who engages in domestic violence. Domestic Violence is defined as the actual or threatened physical 
violence directed against one or more members of the applicant family by a spouse or other member 
of the applicant’s household. 
 

5) Displacement to Avoid Reprisals. Applicants qualify for this category when an applicant’s family 
member provided information on criminal activities to a law enforcement agency, and, based on a 
threat assessment, the family is being forced to move to avoid reprisals. 

 
6) Displacement by Hate Crimes. An applicant is displaced where an applicant’s family has been the 

victim of one or more hate crimes and has vacated their unit because of such a crime, or fear 
associated with such a crime. Hate Crimes are defined as actual or threatened physical violence or 
intimidation that is directed against a person or his or her property and that is based on the person’s 
race, color, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, or familial status. 

 
7) Displacement by Inaccessibility of Unit. Applicants qualify for this preference when an applicant’s 

family member has a mobility or other impairment that makes the person unable to use critical 
elements of the unit, and where the owner is not legally obligated to change the unit so that these 
critical elements are accessible to the disabled person as a reasonable accommodation. 

 
8) Displacement because of HUD Disposition of Multifamily Project. An applicant’s family is displaced 

due to disposition of a multifamily project by HUD under Section 203 of the Housing and Community 
Development Amendments of 1978. 

 
NOTE: An applicant evicted from their unit (regardless of the reason) does not qualify for an Involuntarily 
Displaced preference. Additionally, an applicant who was previously displaced, but now lived in Standard, 
Permanent Replacement Housing does not qualify for this preference. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 89 

 
 
 
Required Verification Procedures: 
 
1) Displacement by Disaster: Written certification from a unit of government concerning displacement 

due to a disaster; 
 
2) Displacement by Government Action: Written certification from a unit of government concerning 

displacement due to code enforcement or public improvement/development; 
 
3) Displacement by Action of a Housing Owner: Certification from the applicant’s owner concerning 

displacement due to owner action. An applicant will not be considered displaced unless there was a 
prior rental agreement between the owner and the applicant. Verification must include a rental 
agreement and canceled checks or money orders showing rental payment for not less than 90 days. 

 
4) Displacement by Domestic Violence: Certification from local police, social service agency, court of law, 

physician, or public/private shelter/counseling facility concerning displacement due to domestic 
violence. Verification must indicate that instances of violence are of a recent or continuing nature. An 
applicant who qualifies for this preference must certify that the abuser will not reside with the 
applicant in the assisted unit without the prior written approval of the Housing Authority. 

 
5) Displacement to Avoid Reprisals: For displacement due to reprisals, certification from a law 

enforcement agency indicating that family member(s) provided information on a criminal activity and 
that the agency recommends relocating the family to avoid or minimize the risk of violence due to 
retaliation. 

6) Displacement by Hate Crimes: For displacement due to hate crimes of a recent or continuing nature, 
certification from a law enforcement agency stating that the family member has been a victim of such 
a hate crime and has vacated their housing unit because of such a crime. 

 
7) Displacement by Inaccessibility of Unit: Certification from a health care professional that a family 

member has a mobility or other impairment that makes the current unit inaccessible and a statement 
by the owner that they are not legally obligated to make the necessary changes to the unit. 

 
8) Displacement because of HUD Disposition of Multifamily Project: Certification by HUD regarding the 
disposition of the unit. 
 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 90 

 

EXHIBIT I. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
Revised 06/14/2023 
 

Purpose 

The purpose of this document is to set forth the requirements, standards and procedures for 
handling and review of Tenant Grievances presented to the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority, 
Washington (“Housing Authority”), to assure the Housing Authority Tenant a reasonable review 
and, if requested, a hearing on Tenant complaints regarding the Housing Authority’s action or 
failure to act in such a way that affects that Tenant’s rights under the lease with the Housing 
Authority or Housing Authority application of its regulations or policies which the Tenant believes 
to adversely affect the individual Tenant’s rights, duties, welfare or status. The Grievance 
Procedure set forth herein has been adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing 
Authority and is incorporated by reference in all dwelling leases between the Housing Authority 
and its Tenants. 

 
Copies of the Grievance Procedure will be furnished to each Tenant and to all resident 
organizations. The Housing Authority will provide at least 30 days’ notice to Tenants and Resident 
Organizations setting forth any changes to the Housing Authority’s Grievance Procedure and 
providing opportunity to submit written comments. Comments submitted will be considered by 
the Housing Authority before adoption of any Grievance Procedure Changes. 

 
Definitions 

For the purpose of handling and reviewing all individual Tenant complaints, the following 
definitions are applicable: 
 

A. “Grievance” means any complaint or dispute which an individual Tenant (residing in a Housing 
Authority owned dwelling unit assisted under the U.S. Housing Act of 1937) may have with respect 
to a Housing Authority action or failure to act which affects that Tenant’s lease or with respect to 
Housing Authority regulations which a Tenant believes adversely affect that tenant’s rights, duties, 
welfare or status. Examples include, but are not limited to, a proposed lease termination, transfer 
of the Tenant to another unit, or imposition of charges for maintenance and repair or for excess 
consumption of utilities. 
 

B. “Complainant” means any Tenant presenting a complaint or dispute to the Housing Authority, or 
at one of the Area Offices, to be handled or reviewed in accordance with the procedures set forth 
below. 

 
C. “Hearing Officer” means a person appointed in accordance with Section 6 hereunder to hear a 

Grievance and render a decision. 
 

D. “Resident Organization” includes a resident management corporation or a resident council. 
 

E. “Tenant” means the adult person(s) (other than live-in attendants): 
 

1. Who resides in the unit, and who executed the lease with the Housing Authority, or, if 
no such person now resides in the unit, 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 91 

 
2. Who resides in the unit, and who is the remaining head of household of the tenant 

family residing in the dwelling unit. 
Applicability  

This procedure will be applicable to all individual Tenant Grievances as defined in Section 2, except as 
stated below: 
 
A. The Grievance Procedure will not be applicable to disputes between Tenants or to class grievances 

against the Housing Authority. 
 

B. The Grievance Procedure is not be to be used as a forum for initiating, negotiating, or reviewing 
policies established by the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners. 
 

Informal Settlement of Grievance 

 

Any Grievance must first be presented, either orally or in writing, to the appropriate Area Office of the 
Housing Authority so that the Grievance may be discussed informally by the Complainant and the 
Manager of the Area Office involved and settled, if possible, without a hearing. All Grievances must be 
presented to the appropriate office within 10 business days of the date of the receipt of the notice of 
the Housing Authority’s proposed adverse action (or of the date of the Housing Authority’s alleged 
failure to act), except in the case of a 14-day notice for termination of a tenancy for nonpayment of 
rent or a three-day notice for any criminal activity that threatens the health, safety, or right to 
peaceful enjoyment of the premises of other residents or employees of the Housing Authority, or a 
three-day notice for any drug-related criminal activity in which event the Grievance must be 
presented within three business days of the receipt of the notice to forestall service of a Summons 
and Complaint.  
 
Failure to request the informal review with the Manager within the above time limits will result in the 
Complainant forfeiting any further rights to have their grievance heard within the Housing Authority’s 
internal grievance procedure; provided, however, that if the Complainant establishes to the 
satisfaction of the Hearing Officer that the failure to comply with this requirement was for good cause 
the hearing Officer may elect to proceed with a formal grievance hearing. 
 
The Complainant and the Manager will attempt to resolve the complaint or dispute at this informal 
discussion. The Complainant and the Manager may each have a maximum of three other persons in 
attendance at the informal discussion. After the meeting, the Manager will write a detailed account of 
the meeting, will send the original account to the Tenant with a copy to the Tenant’s representative, if 
requested, and place a copy in the Tenant’s file stating: (1) the date of the meeting; (2) the pertinent 
facts discussed; (3) the names of the participants; (4) the proposed disposition of the complaint; and 
(5) the procedures by which a hearing may be obtained, including the date by which a written request 
for a hearing must be received, if the Complainant is not satisfied with the Housing Authority 
proposed disposition.  
 
This account of the proceedings, along with a copy of the Grievance Procedure will be sent to the 
Complainant within three business days after the meeting. The procedures for obtaining the formal 
grievance hearing are set forth in Section 5 below. 
 

Procedure to Obtain a Hearing 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 92 

 
 

A. Request for a Hearing. The Complainant must submit a written request for a hearing to the Area 
Office within five business days after the receipt of the Manager’s account of proceedings 
prepared pursuant to Section 4 above. Receipt is defined as the earlier date of actual delivery to a 
member or tenant household, or eight days from the date of proper mailing (properly addressed, 
postage prepaid) of the Manager’s account of the proceedings. The written request will specify: (1) 
the Grievance; (2) the reasons for the Grievance; and (3) the action or relief sought. 
 
The Tenant’s request for a grievance hearing will be dated immediately upon receipt at the 
appropriate Area Office and filed with a copy of the account of the informal discussion and a copy 
of the letter to the Tenant in the Tenant’s file. After the hearing is completed, a copy of these 
documents, along with the written decision of the Hearing Officer, will be placed in a separate 
grievance hearing file marked with the date of hearing. All names and identifying references will 
be deleted from said file. 

 
B. Failure to Request a Hearing. If the Complainant does not request a hearing in the manner 

provided in Subsection 5.A. above, the Housing Authority’s disposition of the Grievance under 
Section 4 will become final; provided, however, that the failure to request a hearing will not 
constitute a waiver by the Complainant of the right thereafter to contest the Housing Authority’s 
action in disposing of the complaint in an appropriate judicial proceeding. 
 

C. Amounts Owing. No grievance hearing may be scheduled on any grievance involving rent which 
the Housing Authority claims is past due until the Complainant pays to the Housing Authority an 
amount equal to the undisputed part of the rent that is the subject of the dispute. If a grievance 
does not involve rent, payment of the rent must be made in the normal manner without regard to 
the pending grievance hearing. In all cases, the undisputed portion of the rent must remain 
current until the decision of the Hearing Officer is announced and the Tenant will be obligated to 
continue paying rent until the rented premises are vacated as set forth in the Tenant’s lease with 
the Housing Authority. 

 
D. Scheduling of Hearings. When Tenant has satisfied the requirements of Subsections A and C of 

this Section, a hearing will be scheduled by the Hearing Officer no sooner than seven calendar 
days but no later than 15 business days after receipt by the Area Office of the request for hearing 
specified in Section 5 above, the time and place of the hearing to be convenient both to the 
Complainant and to the Housing Authority. Extension of this time limit must be agreed to in 
writing by both parties. The Tenant and the Housing Authority will be given written notice of the 
time, the place and the procedures governing the hearing, such notices to be delivered to both the 
Housing Authority and to the Tenant personally, or sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, 
properly addressed to the Housing Authority Area Office and to the Tenant at the premises. 

 
Selection Of Hearing Officer 

 

A. For grievances involving a charge under $100, the Hearing Officer will be an impartial employee of 
the Housing Authority who was not involved in the original decision. 
 

B. For all other grievances, The Hearing Officer will be an impartial person who may not be an officer, 
employee, agent or tenant of the Housing Authority. In these cases, the following applies: 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 93 

 
 

1. The Hearing Officer will be selected from a list of qualified individuals established by the 
Housing Authority in response to a request for services bid proposal. Said list will have 
previously been presented to residents and resident organizations for their review and 
comment. Individuals selected for this list of rotating Hearing Officers will have successful prior 
experience as a hearing officer, an arbitrator approved by the American Arbitration Association 
or Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service, a judge or chair of quasi-judicial hearings as well 
as proven experience in effectively communicating findings and conclusions both orally and in 
writing. 
 

2. The Housing Authority reserves the right to pay the Hearing Officer a stipend for their services 
and to provide training on such areas as the grievance procedure, dwelling lease requirements, 
and other related policies. 

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PERSON WITH DISABILITIES 

 

A. At any time during the Grievance process, a Complainant may request reasonable 
accommodation of a handicap/disability of a household member, including reasonable 
accommodation so that the Complainant can meet lease requirements or other requirements 
of tenancy. 
 

B. The Housing Authority will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities to 
participate in the Grievance process. Reasonable accommodation may include: qualified sign 
language interpretation, readers, and accessible locations. 

 
C. If the Complainant is visually impaired, any notice to the Complainant which is required as part 

of the Grievance procedure will be in an accessible format. 
 
PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE HEARING 

 

A. The Complainant will be afforded a fair hearing providing the basic safeguards of due process 
which will include: 

 
1. The opportunity to examine before and during the hearing and, at the expense of the 

Complainant, to copy all documents, records and regulations of the Housing Authority 
directly relevant to the grievance hearing. Any document not identified and made available 
to the Complainant upon reasonable request may not be used by the Housing Authority at 
the hearing; 

2. The right to be represented by counsel or any other person designated by Complainant as 
Complainant’s representative, and to have such person make statements on the 
Complainant’s behalf; 
 

3. The right to a private hearing unless the Complainant requests a public hearing; 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 94 

 
4. The right to present evidence and argue in support of the complaint, to contest evidence or 

information relied on by the Housing Authority and to confront or cross examine all 
witnesses upon whose testimony or information the Housing Authority relies; and 

 
5. A written decision based solely and exclusively upon the facts presented at the hearing and 

that includes a statement of the reasons for the determination. 
 

B. The Hearing Officer may render a decision without proceeding with the hearing if the Hearing 
Officer determines that the issue raised by the Grievance has been the subject of a decision in 
a previous proceeding which provided the Complainant procedural safeguards at least equal to 
those required herein. 
 

C. If either the Complainant or the Housing Authority fails to appear at a scheduled hearing, the 
Hearing Officer may continue the hearing for a period not to exceed five business days for 
documented good cause or may determine that the non-appearing party has waived the right 
to a hearing. Both the Complainant and the Housing Authority will be notified of the decision 
of the Hearing Officer; provided, however, that a determination that the Complainant has 
waived the right to a hearing will not constitute a waiver of any right the Complainant may 
have to contest the Housing Authority’s disposition of the Grievance in an appropriate judicial 
proceeding. 

 
D. At the hearing, the Housing Authority will present its reason for taking or failing to take the 

action that is in dispute followed by the Tenant’s explanation for why they think that the 
Housing Authority action or failure to act was incorrect. 

 
E. All hearings will be conducted informally by the Hearing Officer, and both oral and 

documentary evidence pertinent to the facts and issues raised by the Grievance may be 
received without regard to whether such evidence would be admissible under the rules of 
evidence applicable to judicial proceedings. Irrelevant and unduly repetitive evidence will be 
excluded. Challenges to the admissibility of evidence will be determined solely by the Hearing 
Officer in its reasonable discretion. The Hearing Officer will require the Complainant, the 
Housing Authority, counsel and other participants or spectators to conduct themselves in an 
orderly fashion. Failure to comply with the directions of the Hearing Officer may result in 
exclusion from the proceedings, in a decision adverse to the interests of the disorderly party or 
in such other relief as the Hearing Officer will reasonably determine. 
The Complainant or Housing Authority may arrange in advance and at the expense of the party 
making the arrangement, for the reporting or recording of all or any part of the proceedings at 
a hearing. If proceedings at a hearing are reported or recorded, the record so made will be 
made reasonably available to either party with the expense of reviewing or copying the record 
of a hearing to be paid by the party requesting the review or copy. 
 

Decision Of The Hearing Officer 

 

A. The Hearing Officer will prepare a written decision, stating the findings of fact and conclusions 
upon which the result is based, within a reasonable time after the hearing, but not exceeding 
10 business days. A copy of the decision will be sent to the Complainant and to the Housing 
Authority in the same manner as in Section 5. The Housing Authority will retain a copy of the 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 95 

 
decision in the Tenant’s folder. A copy of such decision with all names and identifying 
references deleted may also be kept in a file maintained by the Housing Authority and made 
available for inspection by prospective Complainants, their representatives, or by subsequently 
appointed Hearing Officers. 
 

B. The decision of the Hearing Officer will be binding on the Housing Authority which will take all 
actions, or refrain from any actions, necessary to carry out the decision unless the Housing 
Authority’s Board of Commissioners determines within a reasonable time, not to exceed 30 
days, and promptly notifies the Complainant in writing of its determination, that; 

 
1. The Grievance does not concern the Housing Authority’s action or failure to act in 

accordance with or involving the Complainant’s lease or Housing Authority regulations, in a 
way which adversely affected the Complainant’s rights, duties, welfare or status; 
 

2. The decision of the Hearing Officer is contrary to federal, state, or local laws, to the United 
States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, to Department of Housing and Urban 
Development regulation and requirements, to the Housing Authority’s regulations and 
policies, or to the Annual Contributions Contract in effect on the date of the hearing. 
 

C. A decision by a Hearing Officer in favor of the Housing Authority, or which denies the relief 
requested by the Complainant in whole or in part, or a determination by the Housing Authority 
Board of Commissioners under Subsection 9.B., paragraphs 1. and 2. will not constitute a 
waiver of, nor affect in any manner whatever, any rights the Complainant may have to a trial 
de novo or judicial review in any judicial proceedings, which may thereafter be brought in the 
matter. 
 

Proposed Adverse Actions/Eviction Actions 

 

A. In the case of proposed adverse actions other than a proposed lease termination, the Housing 
Authority will not take the proposed action until the time for the Tenant to request a grievance 
hearing has expired, and (if a hearing was timely requested by the Tenant) the grievance 
process has been completed. 
 

B. If the Grievance involves a Housing Authority notice of termination of tenancy (including any 
concurrently served notice to vacate required under state or local law), the tenancy will not 
terminate until the time for the Tenant to request a grievance hearing has expired, and (if a 
hearing was timely requested by the Tenant) the grievance process has been completed. 

 
C. After completion of the grievance procedure, an unlawful detainer action will commence if the 

Tenant does not voluntarily vacate in accordance with the decision of the Hearing Officer. 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 96 

 

EXHIBIT J - HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY - DWELLING LEASE 

Revised 08/30/2023  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 97 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 98 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 99 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 100 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 101 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 102 

 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 103 

 

EXHIBIT K. CALCULATION OF ASSISTANCE FOLLOWING 
IMMIGRATION VERIFICATION 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 
 I. Families with all eligible family members (i.e., U.S. citizens, eligible noncitizens) will have their 

assistance calculated based on 30% of the family’s total income. 
  
 II. Families with no eligible family members have the following options: 
  A. Applicants 
   1. Must be denied assistance in accordance with Section 5. 
   
  B Participants housed on or before June 19, 1995 
   1. Must be terminated, but may be eligible for a temporary deferral. 
   
  C. Participants housed after June 19, 1995 
   1. Must have their assistance terminated in accordance with Section 5. 
    
 III. Families whose members include those with citizenship or eligible immigration status and 

those without (mixed families) have the following options: 
  A. Applicants 
   1. The family may choose to remove themselves from the waiting list or prorate 

their assistance at the time of housing.  
   
  B. Participants housed on or before June 19, 1995 
   1. The family may choose to: 
    a. Remove themselves from the program immediately; or 
    b. Prorate their assistance; or 
    c. Continue their assistance (if eligible); or 
    d. Defer their termination temporarily. 
   
  C. Participants housed after June 19, 1995 
   1. The family may choose to: 
    a. Remove themselves from the program immediately; or 
    b. Prorate their assistance. 
  
 IV. The options described above are defined as follows:  
  A. Prorated Assistance is determined as follows: 
    

1. Step 1: Determine the Total Tenant Payment (TTP) in accordance with Section  
8 and Section 9 and related requirements of this ACOP using annual income from all 
family members including those that have not established eligible immigration 
status. 

 
2. Step 2: Subtract the family’s TTP from the Unadjusted Flat Rent applicable to the 

family’s unit size as shown on the Flat Rent Table in Exhibit D. The result is the 
“Family Maximum Subsidy” amount.  

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 104 

 
 Note: Public Housing Flat Rents are set annually and are based on 80% of the HUD 

established Fair Market Rent for the Housing Authority’s service area. 
 

3. Step 3: Divide the Family Maximum subsidy (found in Step 2) by the total number of 
family members (including those determined ineligible). The result is the “Member 
Maximum Subsidy”. 
 

4. Step 4: Multiply the Member Maximum Subsidy (found in Step 3) by the number of 
members in the family that have been determined to be eligible for housing 
assistance. The result is the total amount of subsidy for which the family is eligible. 

 

5. Step 5: Subtract the amount of eligible subsidy (as determined in Step 4) from the 
Public Housing Maximum Rent applicable to the family’s unit size. The result is the 
family’s new Total Tenant Payment. Subtract from this TTP any associated Utility 
Allowance (UA) to get the Monthly Tenant Rent due. 

 
   Exception: Method of prorating assistance when the mixed family’s total tenant 
   payment (TTP) is greater than the public housing flat rent. When the mixed family’s 
   TTP is greater than the flat rent, use the calculated TTP as the new Total Tenant 
   Payment. Subtract from this TTP any established Utility Allowance (UA) to get the 
   Monthly Tenant Rent due. 
   
  B. For Continued Assistance families must: 
   1. Have been receiving housing assistance on or before June 19, 1995; and 
   2. Have a head of household or spouse who has eligible immigration status; and 
   3. Not have any person (who does not have eligible immigration status) other 
    than the head of household, any spouse of the head of household, any parents 
    of the head of household, any parents of the spouse, or any children of the 
    head of household or spouse.  
   4. Have been receiving continued assistance prior to November 29, 1996. 
 
  C. Temporary deferral of termination permits the family additional time for the orderly 

 transition of those family members with ineligible status, or any other family members 
involved, to find other affordable housing. 
1. Other affordable housing refers to housing that is not substandard, that is of 

appropriate size for the family and can be rented for an amount not exceeding the 
amount that the family pays for rent, including utilities, plus 25 percent. 

2. Families choosing this option will be granted an initial period of deferral not to 
exceed six months. The initial period may be renewed for additional periods of six 
months, but the total deferral period will not exceed a period of 18 months. For 
families qualifying as a refugee under Section 207 of the Immigration and 
Nationality Act, individuals seeking asylum under Section 208 of that Act, or 
families granted a termination deferral prior to November 29, 1996, the deferral 
period may not exceed 36 months. 

3. The Housing Authority must offer the family information concerning, and referrals 
to assist in finding, other affordable housing.  

4. Before the end of each deferral period, the Housing Authority must: 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 105 

 
a. Make a determination on the availability of affordable housing of 

appropriate size for the family; and 
b. Notify the family in writing at least 60 days in advance of the expiration 

of the deferral period, that termination will be deferred again due to 
lack of affordable housing; or 

c. Notify the family in writing at least 60 days in advance of the expiration 
of the deferral period, that termination will not be deferred because 
either granting another deferral will exceed the limits described in 
Section C.2 of this Exhibit, or a determination was made that affordable 
housing was available. 

5. A family who is eligible for and who receives temporary deferral of termination 
of assistance, may request, and the Housing Authority must provide proration 
of assistance at the end of the deferral period if the family has made a good 
faith effort to locate other affordable housing during the deferral period. 

    
 V. Prohibition of assistance to noncitizen students 

A. The provisions of continued assistance, prorated assistance or temporary deferral of 
termination of assistance for certain families, do not apply to any person who is 
determined to be a noncitizen student or the family of a noncitizen student, described 
below. 

1. Noncitizen Student: A noncitizen who: 
a. Has a residence in a foreign country, that the person has no intention of 

abandoning; and 
b. Is a bona fide student qualified to pursue a full course of study; and 
c. Is admitted to the United States temporarily and solely for purposes of 

pursuing such a course of study at an established institution of learning      
or other recognized place of study in the United States, particularly 
designated by such person and approved by the Attorney General after 
consultation with the Department of Education of the United States, which 
institution or place of study will have agreed to report the Attorney 
General the termination of attendance of each nonimmigrant student. 

2. Family of a Noncitizen Student: The prohibition of assistance also extends to the 
noncitizen spouse of the noncitizen student and minor children of any noncitizen 
student if the spouse or children are accompanying the student or following to join 
such student. The prohibition does not extend to the citizen spouse of the 
noncitizen student and the children of the citizen spouse and noncitizen student. 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 106 

 

EXHIBIT L. POLICY/PROCEDURES REGARDING REASONABLE 
ACCOMMODATION 
Revised 06/14/2023 
 

A. REGULATORY BACKGROUND 
 
The Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA) complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the 
Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1968 (as amended by the Community Development Act of 1974 and the 
Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1968), Executive Order 11063, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Washington Law Against Discrimination, 
R.C.W. 49.60 et seq. SWHA will comply with any legislation, implementing rules and regulations, 
protecting the rights of applicants, residents or staff that may subsequently be enacted. 
 
Although the above-cited anti-discrimination laws vary from each other in their wording, their 
prohibitions against discrimination are similar and well summarized by the following excerpts: 
 
The Fair Housing Act regulations state: “It shall be unlawful for any person to refuse to make reasonable 
accommodations in rules, policies, practices, or services, when such accommodations may be necessary 
to afford a handicapped person equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling unit, including public and 
common use areas.” 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 provides that “no otherwise qualified individual with 
handicaps in the United States… shall, solely by reason of his or her handicap, be excluded from the 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 
receiving federal financial assistance.” 
 
Anti-discrimination laws require the Housing Authority to make reasonable accommodation in the rules, 
policies, practices or services in order to give a person with disability an equal opportunity to apply for 
housing and use and enjoy a dwelling unit or common space – unless doing so: 
 

 Would result in a fundamental alteration in the nature of the housing program; or, 
 

 Poses an undue financial or administrative burden. 
 
B. DEFINITIONS 
 
Person with Disability: A person has a disability if they have any one of the following: 

 
1. Has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 

 A physical impairment that includes but is not limited to a physiological disorder, 
contagious disease, cosmetic disfigurement or anatomical loss in one or more systems. The 
disability could be neurological, musculoskeletal, respiratory, cardiovascular, digestive, 
reproductive, genito-urinary, hemic, lymphatic, skin or endocrine. 

 A mental impairment or psychological disorder. The disability includes, but is not limited to, 
mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, or specific 
learning disorders. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 107 

 
 Major Life Activities includes caring for oneself, performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, 

hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, 
and working. This is not an exhaustive list; other life activities can also be major. 

 
2. Has a record of such impairment (which means the individual has a history of impairment or a 

record of having been misclassified as having an impairment.) 
 

Is regarded as having such an impairment (which means the individual has an impairment not 
limiting major life activity, but is treated as disabled by an agency that is a qualified medical, 
rehabilitation, or other non-medical service agency professional. 

 
Furthermore, the Washington State Law Against Discrimination (WLAD) defines disability to 
mean the presence of a sensory, mental, or physical impairment that: 

 
o Is medically cognizable or diagnosable, or 
o Exists as a record or history, or 
o Is perceived to exist, whether or not it exists in fact. 

 
   Under the WLAD, a disability exists whether it is temporary or permanent, common or 
   uncommon, mitigated or unmitigated. 

 
   The definition of disability used may vary depending upon the request. 

 
          Note: Although some state and federal laws may use the terms “handicap” or “impairment”,      
          the preferred term is “disability”. 
 
C. RESTRICTIONS ON QUESTIONS ASKED OF PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 
 
The HA may ask all applicants questions that relate to their ability to meet the requirements of the lease. 
However, the HA cannot ask certain questions only of people with disability or people it believes may 
have a disability. As an example, the HA can only ask applicants if they currently use illegal drugs if it asks 
all applicants the same question. The question cannot be asked only to people with disabilities or to 
individuals the HA thinks has a disability. 
 
The general rule is that the HA cannot ask a person if they have a disability, about the nature or severity 
of a disability, or any question that would require the person to waive or disclose a medical condition or 
medical history. Nor can the HA ask whether any member of the applicant’s family or any friend or 
associate has a disability. For example, the HA cannot ask any of the following questions: 
 
 “Have you ever been treated by a psychiatrist?” 
 “Have you ever been hospitalized for a psychiatric disability?” 
 “Can you live independently?” 
 
However, there are exceptions to this general rule: 
 

 If during the screening process negative information is revealed about a person’s past tenancies, 
the HA can ask the person to explain the negative information. The explanation may then require 
the person to reveal information about the existence, nature, or severity of their disability. The 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 108 

 
applicant may still decide not to say anything about their disability. That is the person’s right. The 
HA, however, has the right to reject a person for unexplained negative information. 
 

 If an applicant or tenant requests the HA provide reasonable modifications or accommodations, 
the HA may ask the person to verify that they have a disability and the need for the requested 
accommodation. 

 

 If an applicant is applying for housing that is designated for persons with disabilities, the HA may 
ask the person to document that they have a qualifying disability. Unless the person is applying for 
housing designated for individuals with a particular type of disability, the HA cannot inquire about 
the nature of a person’s disability as long as the Housing Authority has sufficient information to 
determine eligibility according to the program’s guidelines (a person is not obligated to reveal that 
they have a disability; however, a person who chooses not to reveal their disability would not be 
able to establish their eligibility.) 

 

 If the applicant is applying for housing designated for individuals with a particular disability, the HA 
can ask them if they have that particular disability and if so, the applicant can be requested to 
document it. The HA may not ask about the person’s health status, or any other medical 
information, except in types of housing that include services as part of the housing package. 

 
D. VERIFICATION OF DISABILITY 
 
An applicant may not be required to give the housing provider their medical records as proof that they 
have a disability or a particular disability. A letter from the person’s doctor or other qualified professional 
stating that they have disability that satisfies the eligibility requirement is sufficient documentation 
(standard form SWHA 412). It is not required that this form be completed by a physician. Other 
professionals, such as rehabilitation centers, service agencies, social workers or similar professionals, may 
be able to provide such verification. 
 
E. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DISABILITY INFORMATION 
 
All information that is obtained in a confidential manner, such as medical information, must be kept 
confidential. The HA can only reveal this information to others with the applicant or tenant’s permission. 
 
F. GENERAL POLICY GUIDELINES ON REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 
 
The requirement to provide reasonable accommodation is intended to provide, for persons with 
disabilities, equal opportunity to participate in housing programs through modification of policies, 
procedures, or structures. This policy is not intended to provide greater program benefits to persons with 
disabilities than to non-disabled residents or applicants. It may mean, however, that persons with 
disabilities will sometimes be treated differently in order to ensure equal access to programs and services. 
 
The HA is committed to providing accommodations to qualified persons with disabilities so that the choice 
of living arrangements is, as a whole, comparable to other persons eligible for housing assistance under 
the same program -- as long as the accommodation is reasonable (i.e., does not cause undue financial or 
administrative burden or cause a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program.) 
In seeking an accommodation, a qualifying applicant/tenant may request: 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 109 

 
 A structural change or repair in their apartment; 

 A change or repair in some other part of the housing development; 

 A change in the HA’s rules, policies, or procedures (e.g., how the HA communicates with a tenant) 
SWHA will work with an applicant/resident to make an accommodation that is reasonable to them and 
that suits their needs, giving priority to those methods that offer programs and activities in the most 
appropriate integrated setting. 
 
Information regarding the availability of reasonable accommodations will be made available to applicants 
and residents during the admission and occupancy cycle. Specifically, at time of application; during initial 
housing; with any notice of lease violation or lease termination; and at the time of annual review. This 
type of information will also be provided at other times the HA deems appropriate. Forms and other 
documents used for applicants and residents will, as much as is feasible, be written in plain, intelligible 
language. The HA will present documents in alternative formats, provide auxiliary aids, or communicate 
with a third party designated by the applicant or resident. 
 
Reasonable accommodations will be made in response to individual requests from a qualified person with 
disabilities. The request may be made in any manner that is convenient for the person with disabilities; 
individuals with the same disability may not need, or desire, the same level of accommodation. There is 
no standard approach and what works for one person may not work for another in the same situation. 
 
SWHA cannot provide supportive services (e.g. counseling, medical, or social services) that fall outside the 
scope of services offered to residents. Also, while the HA will make modifications in order to enable a 
qualified applicant/resident with disabilities to live in the housing, it is not required to offer housing of a 
fundamentally different nature. The test is whether, with appropriate modifications, the 
applicant/resident can live in the housing that the Housing Authority offers; not whether the 
applicant/resident could benefit from some other type of housing that the Housing Authority does not 
offer. 
 
G. VERIFICATION OF NEED FOR REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 

If a reasonable accommodation is requested, the HA may require the applicant/tenant to provide reliable 
documentation (not medical records) that they have a disability and documentation of the need for the 
particular accommodation. The HA will not ask any questions about the nature or severity of the disability 
except as specifically related to the requested accommodation. The type of verification the 
applicant/tenant will need to provide depends on the specifics of the situation. 
 
H. EXAMPLES OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS/AUXILIARY AIDS 
 
Communications 
 
To facilitate communication with persons with disabilities, SWHA will furnish auxiliary aids. Auxiliary aids 
means services or devices that enable persons with impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills to have an 
equal opportunity to participate in, and to enjoy the benefits of programs and activities. However, the HA 
is not required to provide individually prescribed devices, such as readers for personal use or study, or 
other devices of a personal nature. In determining what auxiliary aids are necessary, the HA will give 
primary consideration to the request(s) of the individual with disabilities. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 110 

 
Aids and services, to be equally effective, are not required to produce identical results for individuals with 
disabilities and non-disabled persons, but to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to 
obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit, or to reach the same level of achievement.  
 

 Making arrangements to take an application or conduct an interview elsewhere if the office is not 
accessible. 
 

 Providing individual or additional explanation of program rules and requirements. 
 

 Sending mail or making phone calls to a person designated by the individual with disabilities as a 
contact person. 

 

 Offering information in accessible formats (e.g., large type) and in plain language. 
 

 Providing pencil and paper for those with speech difficulties, a sign language interpreter or a 
reader, telecommunication device for the deaf (TTY), and Assisted Listening Device (ALD.) 

 

 Providing visual alarms and tactile signs. 
 

 Providing stoves with controls on the front. 
 

 Providing roll in showers or shower benches or raised toilets/toilet seats. 
 

 Providing written information that gives the name, address and telephone number of the HA’s 
Section 504 coordinator, as well as the TDD number. 

 

 Permitting the use of a service animal. 
 

 Extending a Voucher term past 120 days. 
 
General Accommodations 

 

 Permitting an additional bedroom to accommodate a member of the family or a person associated 
with that household.  
 

 Approving a higher utility allowance if documentation is provided showing why it is needed. 
 

 Adding to the household a live-in aide who will reside in the unit and provide necessary support 
services. 

 Reinstating an application to its original place on the waiting list if an applicant shows that their 
disability prevented them from checking in as required or providing required paperwork in a 
timely manner. 

 
Other Disability Specific Types of Reasonable Accommodations  

 
Physical Disabilities: 

 Widening doorways. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 111 

 
 Building a ramp. 

 Providing grab bars in the bathroom. 

 Allowing a single tenant a two-bedroom apartment to accommodate a live-in aide. 
 
 
Visual Disabilities: 

 Allowing a service animal. 

 Reading notices to the tenant or providing notices in Braille, large print or audio tape. 

 Providing extra lighting outside next to the front door of the apartment. 

 Providing large print or Braille numbers on the front door or other common use areas of the 
building. 

 Removing protruding objects from outside pathways. 

 Providing a nonslip, color contrasting strip to outside stairs. 
 
Hearing Disabilities 

 Providing a door bell flasher. 

 Providing a visual alarm system on smoke detectors throughout the complex. 

 Providing an interpreter for the screening interview and other tenant meetings. 

 Allowing a service or companion animal. 

 Installing a telecommunications text phone in the main office. 

 Amplifying a communications system. 
 
Cognitive Disabilities 

 Providing the rental agreement and other notices in clear and simple terms. 

 Explaining what is in the agreement and what the rules of the housing complex are. 

 Showing the tenant where the water shut off valve is and when to use it. 

 Showing the tenant how to use the appliances as well as other common use areas, such as the 
laundry room. 

 Making outside door locks or security locks simpler. 

 Providing a reminder at the beginning of the month that the rent is due. 
 
Psychiatric Disabilities 

 Allowing a companion or service animal. 

 Moving a tenant to another part of the building where it is quieter if requested. 

 Placing an application back on the waiting list if they missed their intake interview or were late 
with their paperwork because of their disability. 

 Clearing shrubs away from pathways and trimming to eye level. 

 If requested, intervening with another tenant if the tenant is being harassed. 
 
HIV/AIDS 

 Moving a tenant to another floor or to the ground floor for easier mobility. 

 Allowing a live-in aide to live with the tenant in a two-bedroom unit. 

 Providing appropriate intervention if the tenant is being harassed. 

 Providing or allowing a person from the community to educate other tenants about the disease. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 112 

 
Environmental Disabilities 

 Using a non-chemical or non-toxic fertilizers on the landscape areas of the complex. 

 Removing carpet from the floors of the apartment, if needed. 

 Using low odor, non-toxic paint when repainting an apartment. 

 Removing the ballast or fluorescent lights from the kitchen and bathroom. 

 Posting “No Smoking” signs in common use areas such as the office, hallways, lobby, and laundry 
room. 

I. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR REVIEWING REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS 
 
In most instances the judgment of the person with disabilities, that the requested accommodation is the 
most appropriate for them will be accepted. However, the HA retains the right to investigate alternatives 
to the requested accommodation, or alternative methods of providing the requested accommodation. 
 
If a number of potential accommodations will satisfy the needs of the person with disabilities (and are 
equally effective), the HA retains the right to select the accommodation that is most convenient and cost-
effective. This includes the option to select a change in procedure or policy, rather than to make a 
structural change, when the procedure changes would be equally effective. 
 
If the requested accommodation creates an undue financial or administrative burden, the request will be 
denied. If so, the request will be accommodated up to the extent that it can be met without creating 
undue burdens. 
 
If the request constitutes a fundamental alteration in the nature of the program, the request will be 
denied. However, the HA may take any action that would not result in a fundamental alteration but would 
nevertheless ensure that a person with disabilities has an equal opportunity to receive the program 
benefits and services. The HA’s determinations with respect to fundamental alterations will be made on a 
case-by-case basis. 
Types of actions considered to be a fundamental alteration include but are not limited to: 
 

 Actions that require substantial modifications to, or elimination of, essential lease provisions or 
program eligibility or screening requirements based on the obligations of tenancy. Essential 
obligations of tenancy include: 

 
1. To pay rent and other charges under the lease in a timely manner. 

 
2. To care for and avoid damaging the unit and common areas; to use facilities and 

equipment in a reasonable way; to create no health or safety hazards, and to report 
maintenance needs; 

 
3. Not to interfere with the rights and enjoyment of others and not to damage the property 

of others. 
 

4. Not to engage in criminal activity that threatens the health, safety or right to peaceful 
enjoyment of other residents or staff; not to engage in drug related criminal activity; 

 
5. To comply with necessary HUD and SWHA reasonable rules and program requirements and 

to comply with health and safety codes. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 113 

 
 Actions that require the Housing Authority to add supportive services (e.g. counseling, medical, or 

social services) that fall outside the scope of existing services offered by the HA to 
applicants/residents in the program. 

 

 Actions that require the Housing Authority to offer housing or benefits of a fundamentally 
different nature from the type of housing or benefits that the HA does offer. 

 Actions that substantially impair the HA’s ability to meet its essential obligations as a landlord, as 
defined in the Lease Agreement. HA obligations under the Lease Agreement include management, 
administration, maintenance, or other services required for the operation of the program or 
upkeep of the property. 

 
J. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PROCESSING REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION REQUESTS 
 
A Request for Reasonable Accommodation begins with the completion of the Housing Authority’s 
Reasonable Accommodation Request Form.  If the family needs assistance, the Housing Authority will 
assist in completing the form. Once completed and received at the Area Office (with documentation), the 
Housing Authority will provide the family with an answer within 30 days, unless there is a problem 
verifying the information needed, or unless the family and the Housing Authority agree to a longer period 
of time. 
 
Once received, the following guidelines will be used to evaluate the Request for Reasonable 
Accommodation: 
 
Step 1. Is the disability documented? 

 If the disability is not documented, the HA must obtain third party verification that the individual is 
a person with a disability. 
 

 If NO, the HA is not obligated to make a reasonable accommodation, and may deny the request. 
 

 If YES, go to step 2 
If more information is needed, it will be requested and the applicant/resident will be notified of this 
request, using the standard Notification of Additional Information per Reasonable Accommodation 
Request form, or a meeting or discussion will be held to obtain additional information. 
Step 2. Is the requested accommodation related to the disability? 

 

 If NO, the HA is not obligated to make the accommodation, and may deny the request. 
 

 If YES, go to step 3. 
 

 If more information is needed to determine that the accommodation request is related to the 
disability, either write for more information and notify the applicant/resident, using the standard 
Notification of Additional Information Request form, or request a meeting or discussion. 

 
Step 3. Is the requested accommodation reasonable? 

 

 If YES, the HA will approve the request for reasonable accommodation. A written description of 
the accommodation will be included in the approval letter. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 114 

 
 

 If NO, the HA may deny the request or suggest/offer an alternative accommodation. The denial or 
suggestion/offer will be made in writing (in an accessible format.)  

 

 If more information is needed, the HA will either write for more information and notify the 
applicant/resident, using the SWHA standard form, or request a meeting or discussion. 

 

 Applicants and residents who have been denied reasonable accommodations are entitled to the 
Informal Hearing procedure for applicants or the Grievance Procedure for residents. 

 
K. DISAGREEMENT WITH TYPE OF ACCOMMODATION 
 
If the applicant/tenants subsequently requests a different accommodation because they believe that a 
wrong accommodation was made, or that the accommodation that was made wasn’t sufficient, the HA 
will decide whether to provide a different accommodation on the same basis using the same 
process/verification as was made on the initial accommodation. 
 
The law does not set a limit on the number of accommodations the HA must provide. All requests for 
accommodation must be considered and provided if it does not fundamentally alter the nature of the 
housing program or result in an undue financial administrative burden. The HA will, however, require 
additional documentation that the person needs the requested accommodation and that it is likely to be 
effective. 
 
If there is a significantly less burdensome accommodation available, the HA may offer it instead of the 
requested accommodation as long as the proposal effectively addresses the problem. It is the HA’s 
burden, however, to establish that the alternative accommodation it proposes is effective in fully 
removing the barrier to the person’s equal participation, full use and enjoyment of the dwelling unit and 
common areas. 
 
 
L. DISCONTINUANCE OF REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 
 
SWHA will not unilaterally change or discontinue a particular method of providing a reasonable 
accommodation, without giving notice. Notice of change or discontinuation of a reasonable 
accommodation will be given to the resident with disabilities, including the resident’s right to appeal the 
decision to change or discontinue the accommodation. 
 
M. SERVICE ANIMAL POLICY 
 
General Information:  
 
Service animals are animals trained to assist people with disabilities in the activities of independent living. 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) defines service animals as any animal individually trained to do 
work or perform tasks for the benefit of an individual with a disability. If an animal meets this broad 
definition, it is considered a service animal. It does not have to be licensed or certified by a state or local 
government or a training program. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 115 

 
federal, state and local fair housing laws require that a modification be made to a “No Pet” policy to permit 
the use of a service animal by an individual with a disability, unless doing so would result in an unreasonable 
financial or administrative burden. 
 
This policy differentiates “service animals” from “pets,” describes types of service animals, provides 
guidelines for staff and tenants for the acceptance of service animals, and sets behavioral guidelines for 
service animals. 
Definitions: 
 
Pet:     A domestic animal kept for pleasure. 
 
Service/Companion Animal: Any animal individually trained to do work or 

perform tasks for the benefit of a person with a disability. A companion animal 
with good temperament and disposition and who has reliable, predictable 
behavior, may assist a person with a disability as a therapy tool. The animal 
may be incorporated as an integral part of a treatment process. Service 
animals are usually dogs, but may be any animal designated by the tenant and 
his or her treatment provider. 
 

Service animals are not considered to be pets. A person with a disability uses a service animal as an auxiliary 
aid similar to the use of a cane, crutches or wheelchair. Examples include: 
 

 A guide animal, trained to serve as a travel tool by a person who is legally blind. 
 

 A hearing animal, trained to alert a person with significant hearing loss or who is deaf when a sound 
occurs, such as a knock on the door. 

 

 A service animal, trained to assist a person who has a mobility or health disability. Duties may include 
carrying, fetching, opening doors, ringing doorbells, activating elevator buttons, steadying a person 
while walking, helping a person up after a fall, emotional support, etc. Service animals sometimes are 
called assistance animals. 

 

 A seizure response animal, trained to assist a person with a seizure disorder. The animal’s service 
depends on the person’s needs. The animal may go for help, or may stand guard over the person 
during a seizure. Some animals have learned to predict a seizure and warn the person. 

 

 A companion animal or emotional support animal that assists persons with psychological disabilities. 
Emotional support animals can help alleviate symptoms such as depression, anxiety, stress and 
difficulties regarding social interactions, allowing tenants to live independently and fully use and 
enjoy their living environment. 

 
Request for Service Animal Accommodation: 
 
The tenant must submit a request for Reasonable Accommodation in writing on SWHA Form 443 to have a 
service/companion animal approved as an accommodation for the tenant’s disability. As part of the written 
documentation, the tenant must provide verification of disability and need for a service animal along with 
the Request for Reasonable Accommodation form. 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 116 

 
Guidelines for Residents Using Service Animals: 
 
 The resident must: 
 

1. Supervise the animal at all times. The animal should exhibit behavior that meets with tenancy rules 
(animal behaves appropriately around other people, does not damage property, does not cause undue 
noise, etc.). 

 
2. Never allow the service animal to defecate or urinate on any property, public or private (except the 

resident’s own property), unless the resident immediately removes the waste. 
 

3. Always carry equipment sufficient to clean up the animal’s feces whenever the service animal is in the 
common areas or off the resident’s property. 

 
4. Properly dispose of waste and litter. 

 
5. If the resident needs assistance with cleanup, they may arrange for such help through family, friends or 

advocates. 
 

Guidelines for Staff: 
 
FEES: 
 
A service animal is not a pet. Regardless of whether the development allows pets or not, the tenant is not 
required to make a pet deposit or pay a pet-related move-in cleaning fee. (The tenant may be charged a 
general cleaning or damage deposit charged to all tenants.) The tenant is liable for any damage the animal 
actually causes. 
 
AWARENESS GUIDELINES: 
 

 Allow a service animal to accompany the tenant at all times and everywhere on the property except 
where animals are specifically prohibited. 

 

 Do not pet or touch a service animal. Petting a service animal when the animal is working distracts the 
animal from the task at hand. 

 

 Do not feed a service animal. The service animal may have specific dietary requirements. Unusual food or 
food at an unexpected time may cause the animal to become ill. 
 

 Do not deliberately startle a service animal. Do not separate or attempt to separate a tenant/handler 
from her or his service animal. Avoid making noises at the animal (barking, whistling, etc.). 
 

 Avoid initiating conversation about the service animal, the tenant’s disabilities or other service animals 
one has known. If you are curious, you may ask if the tenant/handler would like to discuss it, but be 
aware that many persons with disabilities do not care to share personal details. 

 

 Remember, not all disabilities are visible. The nature of the person’s disability is a private matter, and you 
are not entitled to inquire for details. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 117 

 
 

 If other tenants complain about the fact that they are not allowed to have a pet and want to know why 
you have made an exception, simply explain that the Housing Authority complies with the fair housing 
laws. You can also refer tenants to the fair housing laws or the local fair housing agency for further 
details. 

 

 Service animals do not need to wear any special identifying gear such as tags, harnesses or capes. 

 A tenant may train his or her own service animal and is not required to provide any information about 
training or the specific tasks the animal performs. 
 

REMOVAL OF A SERVICE ANIMAL: 
 
If a service animal is unruly or disruptive (jumping on people, excessive noise, biting, or other harmful 
behavior), the Housing Authority Manager may ask a tenant to remove the animal from the area. If the 
improper behavior happens repeatedly, the Area Property Manager may tell the tenant not to bring the 
animal into any area of the property except the tenant’s rental unit, until the Housing Authority receives 
satisfactory documentation that significant steps have been taken to mitigate the behavior. 
 
AREAS OFF LIMITS TO SERVICE ANIMALS: 
 
The Housing Authority may designate certain areas off limits to service animals, where significant health or 
safety hazard may exist. Such designations should not infringe upon the right of a person with disabilities to 
fully enjoy the amenities of the community. 
 
N. REQUESTS FOR A DESIGNATED PARKING SPACE 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority recognizes that many of its public housing developments have 
limited parking spaces which are less in number than the total housing units in the building or 
development. In many cases, the number of resident-owned vehicles in some developments exceeds the 
number of parking spaces. Often, the space for additional parking is limited by amount of land, building 
codes, zoning, and environmental limitations. The Housing Authority recognized that because there are so 
many variables system-wide, the designated parking space reasonable accommodation policy must be 
flexible enough to meet resident needs, enforcement challenges and the physical limitations of 
properties. 
 
The Housing Authority is committed to providing designated accessible parking spaces to qualified 
persons with disabilities so that their disability-related needs for parking are met as long as the 
accommodation is reasonable (i.e., does not cause undue financial or administrative burden or cause a 
fundamental alteration in the nature of the program). 
 
REQUEST FOR RESERVED ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE 
 
A parking accommodation request may be made in any manner that is convenient for the person with a 
disability, including a verbal to a housing management staff member (property manager, housing 
assistant) or resident services coordinator. When a verbal request is made by the resident, the housing 
management staff member who receives the verbal request will send a letter summarizing the request to 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 118 

 
the resident within 14 days. Although completion of a form is not required to make a request, all 
accommodation requests should be documented in writing by the person making the request or by HA 
staff. 
 
Along with the request, the resident must submit copies of the following: 
 

 Current driver’s license 
 Proof of insurance 
 Proof of vehicle ownership 
 Proof of current vehicle registration 
 Proof of current state disabled parking permit 

 
If a reserved accessible parking space is requested as a reasonable accommodation, the Housing Authority 
will request that the applicant/resident provide reliable documentation (not medical records) that they 
have a disability and that they have a need for a designated parking space. Generally, proof of current 
state disabled parking permit, along with the additional documentation noted above will be sufficient to 
review a request for a designated parking space. If proof of current state disabled parking permit is not 
available, the Housing Authority may request verification of disability from a third party provider. Upon 
review and approval, applicant/resident will be advised if a wait is required due to lack of existing 
available parking spaces. They will also be advised of other options that may be available to them. 
 
ANNUAL REVIEW OF RESERVED PARKING SPACE REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 
 
Because some physical conditions change over time and parking is limited, the Housing Authority must 
establish a continued need for designated parking by all of those who have had prior approvals for this 
reasonable accommodation. 
 
Generally, if a disability is permanent, we only need to know that the resident continues to possess a 
registered, insured vehicle and a valid driver’s license. This paperwork should be submitted by the 
resident to their property management office. If the disability is not permanent, the resident will be asked 
to provide verification of continued need which will be forwarded to the Section 504 Coordinator for 
review. 
 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
Where reserved accessible parking spaces have been approved, the Housing Authority’s role in enforcing 
these spaces may include: 
 

 Towing of vehicle, if staff is available on-site, according to Housing Authority policies. 
 Upon receipt of complaints from residents, the Housing Authority will serve lease violation notices 

to residents or others who are in violation. 
 The housing authority will post signs stating “no vendor or visitor parking” in accessible spaces at 

their mixed population buildings. 
 
If you have questions about reasonable accommodations, you may contact the Housing Authority Section 
504 Coordinator. 
  

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 119 

 

EXHIBIT M. CONFIDENTIALITY OF TENANT RECORDS 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
A. General Policy  
 

It will be the policy of the HA to comply with the federal Privacy Act of 1974, particularly as it 
relates to the protection of both Applicant and Tenant records. Implementation of this policy will 
be in accordance with the rules set forth in 24 CFR Part 16 and 42 CFR Part 2. All HA employees, 
commissioners, officers, and consultants will be bound by the requirement that all 
Tenant/Applicant information will be kept strictly confidential. Any requests for information which 
are not clearly defined below are to be referred to the Housing Authority’s Office for review and 
approval. 
 

B. Data Collection and Disclosure 

 

All Applicant or Tenant records in a HA sponsored program must be stored in a confidential 
manner and will be made available to HA employees, (or authorized persons) upon a “need to 
know” basis. The following lists specific examples of when information may be released: 
 

1. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed pursuant to a written request signed by all 
individuals to whom the records pertain. 

 

2. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed to employees within the Housing Authority 
who need the records to perform their duties. 

 

3. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed to other public housing authorities to whom 
the tenant applies for tenancy. 

 

4. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed to the United States Department of Housing 
and Urban Development. 

 

5. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed to other federal and state agencies with a right 
to know. 

 

6. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed pursuant to a lawfully issued subpoena or court 
order or as otherwise required by law. 

 

7. Tenant/Applicant records may be disclosed to another agency or governmental entity for a 
civil or criminal law enforcement purpose if the agency or governmental entity has made a 
written request specifying the information desired and the law enforcement activity 
involved. 

 

The HA requires that records be kept of any disclosure that it does make. The record must show (at a  
minimum) the date, nature and purposed of each disclosure, as well as the name and address of the 
person or agency to whom the disclosure was made. 
 

C. Special Privacy and Confidentiality Rules Relating to Criminal Records 

In determining eligibility/suitability for housing assistance, the HA will require that all adult family 
members declare any previous criminal history and to sign a consent form authorizing the release 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 120 

 
of criminal records to the HA. The HA will complete a Criminal History background check through 
the Washington State Patrol and, where appropriate, the FBI’s NCIC record bank for all adults for 
which a determination of eligibility/suitability for housing assistance is being made.  
 

The HA will ensure that all criminal records obtained for this purpose are maintained in a manner 
that is strictly confidential, allowing access to the information only to those employees, officers, or 
HA representatives who have a job-related “need to know”. Such information will not be misused 
or improperly disseminated and will be destroyed once the purpose for which it was obtained is 
accomplished. In the case of the receipt of adverse information, HA will provide a copy of the 
criminal record directly to the person for whom it was obtained and the applicant and provide the 
applicant with an opportunity to dispute the accuracy or relevancy of the record. 
 

D. HA Guidelines on Release of Information 

 

1. Information Requested Regarding Current HA Participants/Applicants 
 

a. Requests must be specific as to the information sought and must be in writing. 
Documentation must include: date, nature and purpose of such disclosure, and the 
name and address of the person or agency to whom the disclosure is made. 

 

b. Any requests for information made by journalists must be referred to the Central 
Office unless otherwise directed. 

 

c. For statistical research, information may be given by the Area Office as long as the 
information/data is transferred in a form that does not identify individuals. 

 

2. Information Requested Regarding Former HA Participants/Applicants 
 

a. Requests must be specific as to the information sought and must be in writing. 
 

b. Released information must be provided in short, specific terms that can be easily 
supported by proper file documentation. Narrative comments, especially opinions, 
are to be avoided. 

 

c. Regarding rental delinquencies, the number of “valid” delinquencies may be given, 
however, it is the Manager’s responsibility to ensure that proper consideration is 
given to those delinquencies where an agreement had been reached or where 
there were mitigating circumstances. 

 

d. Regarding inquires about complaints lodged against the family, negative 
information about the family is not to be given out unless it has previously been 
thoroughly evaluated by the management staff and efforts had been made to assist 
the family in correcting the problem area(s). 

 

e. Always keep in mind that anything negative put down in writing goes out with the 
Managers signature, making the Manager liable for any inaccuracies or charges that 
cannot be supported. If in doubt, always give a positive response. 

 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 121 

 

EXHIBIT O. THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-
WOOLLEY 
 
SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE CHARGES/CHARGE POLICY 
 
In order to standardize charges to tenants for similar maintenance services, this uniform charge schedule 
will be used. All other charges not specifically included in the schedule will be based on the actual cost of 
materials plus labor at the current labor pay rate. 
 
Tenant will pay reasonable charges (as outlined herein) for the repair of damages to the dwelling unit or 
to the project (including damages to buildings, facilities, or common areas) caused by the tenant, a 
member of the household or a guest; whenever repair or replacement is necessitated for reasons other 
than normal wear and tear. 
 
In cases where the cost of repair is greater than the cost of replacement, the replacement cost will apply. 
In instances where items have an established life cycle, the tenant will be charged for the unused portion 
of the life cycle. 
 
Whenever referred to in this policy “Actual Costs” will be the actual cost of materials and labor needed to 
repair or replace each item. Labor charges will be assessed for the actual time worked, and do not include 
travel time by the maintenance staff member. The minimum time charged for work completed during 
normal business hours will be one-half hour. Any repairs required after normal working hours will have a 
minimum charge of one hour whenever damages are due to reasons other than normal wear and tear. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Any maintenance work to be charged to a tenant will be plainly marked with the word “Charge” across 
the front of the work order. This will be done by the Area Foreman before assigning the work to the 
worker, or in some cases by the worker. The Area Foreman will enter all charges and forward a copy of all 
work orders to the Area Manager for review. The Area Management Office will post all applicable charges 
to the tenant’s account and file the work order. 
 
I. CHARGES FOR EXTRA PAINTING, CLEANING, AND WALLPAPER OR DECAL REMOVAL 
 

A. Extra Painting Charge: 
 
Where the need for painting all or part (including “touch-up”) of a unit exists within a two-year 
charge period, due to reasons other than normal wear and tear, the tenant will be charged a pro-
rated share of the direct cost of the painting. The prorated cost will be based on the unexpired 
portion of the painting cycle calculated to the nearest quarter year. In cases of severe damage, 
actual costs will be charges to the tenant and justification of the costs will be attached to the work 
order. 
 
 
 
 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 122 

 
 
 
CHARGE SCHEDULE FOR PAINTING 
 
# Months Occupied 0-3 4-6 7-9 10-12 13-15 16-18 19-21 22-24 
__________________________________________________________________ 
Percent Payable 100% 90% 80% 70% 60% 50% 40% 20% 
by Tenant 
__________________________________________________________________ 
LIVING ROOM  49.00 44.00 40.00 35.00 30.00 25.00 19.00 10.00 
(Walls Only) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
LIVING ROOM  62.00 56.00 50.00 43.00 37.00 31.00 25.00 12.00 
(Complete) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
BEDROOM/DINING 41.00 37.00 32.00 29.00 24.00 20.00 17.00 8.00 
(each)(complete) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
BEDROOM/DINING 34.00 30.00 26.00 24.00 20.00 17.00 13.00 7.00 
(each)(walls only) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
KITCHEN/UTILITY 58.00 52.00 45.00 41.00 25.00 29.00 23.00 12.00  
(complete) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
BATHROOM  26.00 24.00 22.00 18.00 16.00 13.00 11.00 5.00  
(complete) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
HALLS   24.00 22.00 19.00 17.00 14.00 12.00 10.00 5.00 
(per floor)  
__________________________________________________________________ 
STAIRWELLS  24.00 22.00 19.00 17.00 14.00 12.00 10.00 5.00 
(townhouse only) 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
B. Extra Cleaning Charge (Wall Washing) 
 
All charges for wall washing will be calculated based on the actual time involved at the current 
labor pay rate, plus the actual cost of materials used. 
 
C. Cleaning of Ranges: 
 

1. Cleaning   Charge 
 
 a. Light (less than 1/2 hr.) $10.00 
 b. Moderate (1/2 - 1 hr.)  20.00 
 c. Excessive (1 - 2 hrs.)  35.00 
 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 123 

 
Cleaning in excess of 2 hours will be charged based on the actual cost of labor/materials used. 
All labor costs will be calculated using the current labor pay rate. 
 

D. Cleaning of Refrigerators 
 
1. Cleaning    Charge 

a. Light (less than 1/2 hr.)  $10.00 
b. Moderate (1/2 - 3/4 hr.)   15.00 
c. Excessive (3/4 - 1 hr.)   20.00 
 

Cleaning in excess of one hour will be charged based on the actual cost of labor/material 
used. All labor costs will be calculated using the current labor pay rate. 
 

E. Extra Cleaning - Janitorial 
 

Any charges for janitorial work necessitated by reasons other than normal wear and tear that 
are not covered in the Authority’s policy, or that require an amount of time in excess of that 
listed in the policy charged based on the actual maintenance time involved at the current labor 
pay rate. 
 

F. Removal of Wallpaper/Decals 
 

All charges for removal of wallpaper or decals will be calculated based on the actual time 
involved and the current labor pay rate. 
 

II. CHARGE SCHEDULE FOR GLASS REPLACEMENT 
 

Window glass replacement charges will be based on the actual cost of the glass plus the cost of the 
labor required for replacement. All labor costs will be calculated using the current labor pay rate. 
 

III. CHARGE SCHEDULE FOR DRAPE REPLACEMENT AND CLEANING 
 

When Authority-supplied drapes must be cleaned, the tenant will be charged an amount equal to the 
amount the Authority incurs in cleaning the drapes. 
 
When Authority-supplied drapes must be replaced, costs charged to the tenant for drape replacement 
will be based on the replacement cost of the drapes and a prorated life cycle of six years. 
 

IV. CHARGES FOR DAMAGE TO DWELLING EQUIPMENT 
(Ranges, Hot Water Tanks, Refrigerators, Heaters, etc.) 
 
Because of the great variety of replacement parts and variation in the extent of damages that are 
possible, all charges for damages to dwelling equipment will be based on the actual cost of the part(s) 
needed for repair and the actual labor involved at the current labor rate. 
 

V. CHARGES FOR DAMAGE TO BUILDINGS AND FIXTURES 
For each incident, the total charge to repair the damage will be based on the total costs of material and 
labor required to repair the damage. All labor charges will be calculated using the current pay rate. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 124 

 
Examples of charges for damages within this category include glass replacement for light fixtures, floor 
tiles, holes in walls, damaged/defaced doors, jams, etc. 

 
VI. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMIZED CHARGES 
 
 SERVICE    WHEN CHARGED     CHARGE 
KEY CHARGE All instances when a key, 

including mailbox keys, is lost, 
not returned at the time of 
vacate, or an additional key is 
requested 
Bow Key for Hi-rises 
 

$1.00 
 
 
 
 
$3.00 

REMOVAL OF TENANT 
PROPERTY TO DUMP 

All cases when left by tenant 
for removal (does not include 
garbage/items left for pick-up 
on scheduled garbage days); 
 
Small (kitchen)chair, small 
end table or similar small 
items 
 
Table-type TV; boxes of books 
or similar weight items 
 
Mattress, box springs, over-
stuffed chair 
 
Davenport, washer, dryer, 
couch, etc. 
 
*All labor will be calculated 
based on current labor pay 
rate. 
 

$3.00 
 
 
 
 
 
$2.00 ea. plus labor* 
 
 
 
$4.00 ea. plus labor* 
 
 
 
$8.00 ea. plus labor* 
 
 
$12.00 ea. plus labor* 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEMS COPIED FROM 
TENANT FILE 

All cases when tenant 
requests copied information 
from tenant file. (The Housing 
Authority will not copy non-
file items for tenants.) 
 

No charge for 5 copies 
or less 
 
10 cents/copy for over 
the 5 copy minimum 

RETURN EMPTY GARBAGE 
CANS/LIDS TO UNIT 

All cases when garbage 
cans/lids are not returned to 
unit after garbage pick-up. 
 

$5.00/occurrence 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 125 

 
LOCK OUT All instances where assistance 

is rendered: 
 
During working hours 
 
After working hours 
 

 
 
 
$10.00 
 
$25.00 

TOILET STOPPAGE All instances where the 
tenant is responsible: 
 
Lifting of bowl not required 
 
Bowl lifting required 
 

 
 
 
“Actual Cost” 
 
 
“Actual Cost” 

TOILET BOWL 
REPLACEMENT 

All cases where tenant is 
responsible for breakage 
 

“Actual Cost” 

FLUSH TANK AND LID 
REPLACEMENT 

All cases where the tenant is 
responsible for breakage 
 

“Actual Cost” 
 

SINK, TUB OR BASIN 
STOPPAGE 

All cases where the tenant is 
responsible 
 

“Actual Cost” 

CLEANING YARDS All cases where cleaning must 
be done due to tenant 
neglect 
 

“Actual Cost” 

LAWN MOWING Whenever a non-exempted 
tenant does not cut and rake 
grass and the work is 
completed by the Authority 
 
Front Lawn 
 
Back Lawn 
 

 
 
 
 
 
$9.00 
 
$9.00 

LAWN TRIMMING AND 
WEEDING 

Whenever an able bodied 
tenant does not trim/clip 
grass and the work is done by 
the Authority 
 

“Actual Cost” 
 
 
 

GARDEN TOOL & 
EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT 

All instances where the 
tenant lost equipment or it 
has been damaged beyond 
repair 
 

“Actual Cost” 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 126 

 
LATE RETURN FEE OF 
GARDEN 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT 

All instances where the 
tenant has failed to return 
garden tools/equipment on 
time 
 

$2.00/day/item 

GARBAGE & DEBRIS 
REMOVAL 

All cases when garbage or 
debris is left by tenant: 
 
Small amount (less than 1 
can) 
 
Considerable amount (1-2 
cans) 
 
Large amount (more than 2 
cans) 
 
*Based on 32-gallon size 
container 
 

 
 
 
$7.50/Can* 
 
 
$7.50/Can* 
 
 
$7.50/Can* 
 
 
 

RESCHEDULED PEST 
CONTROL SERVICES 

When tenant is not properly 
prepared for extermination 
services 

$25.00 

   

 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 127 

 

EXHIBIT P. Unit Transfers 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
I. Objectives of the Transfer Policy 

 
 The objectives of the Transfer Policy include the following: 
 

A. To address emergency situations. 
 
B. To fully utilize available housing resources while avoiding overcrowding or under 

occupancy of units by insuring that each family occupies the appropriate size unit. 
 
C. To facilitate the relocation of a family when required for modernization or other 

management purposes. 
 
D. To facilitate relocation of families with inadequate housing accommodations, such as the 

need for accessibility features not found in the current dwelling unit. 
 
F. To eliminate vacancy loss and other expense due to unnecessary transfers. 

 
II. Categories of Transfers 

 
Category 1: Emergency transfers. These transfers are necessary when conditions pose an 
immediate threat to the life, health, or safety of a family or one of its members. Such situations 
may involve the need to move a tenant due to: 
 

 defects of the unit or the building in which it is located which render the current unit 
uninhabitable; 

 the health condition of a family member which results in a determination that the need for the 
transfer is an “urgent medical necessity”; 

 acts of retaliation or a hate crime against a tenant or household member; or, 

 the request of a local law enforcement agency in order to protect the safety of a witness to a 
crime;  

 documented evidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking or the 
threat of physical violence against the resident or member of the resident’s household, as 
defined under the Violence Against Women and Department of Justice Reauthorization Act 
(VAWA) of 2013.  Residents seeking protection under VAWA will be required to provide 
certification of their qualification as a victim of domestic violence as defined under the law 
prior to approval of any transfer request.  Acceptable forms of certification include:  

1. A completed of a HUD-approved certification form;  

2. A statement, which you must sign, along with the signature of an employee, agent, or 
volunteer of a victim service provider, an attorney, a medical professional or a mental 
health professional (collectively, “professional”) from whom you sought assistance in 
addressing domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or the effects of 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 128 

 
abuse, and with the professional selected by you attesting under penalty of perjury that 
he or she believes that the incident or incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking are grounds for protection.;  

3. A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial, or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency that documents the incident of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking.  Examples of such records include police reports, protective 
orders, and restraining orders, among others. 

SWHA’s  Emergency Transfer Plan for Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 
Assault, or Stalking (see Section XIII of this Exhibit P) provides information, including how to 
request an emergency transfer, confidentiality protections, how an emergency transfer may occur 
and guidance to tenants on safety and security.  This plan is based on a model emergency transfer 
plan published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Federal 
agency that oversees that KCHA is in compliance with VAWA. 
 
Category 2: Immediate administrative transfers. These transfers are necessary in order to: 
 

 Permit a family needing accessible features to move to a unit with such a feature; or  

 Enable modernization work to proceed. 
 
Category 3: Regular administrative transfers. These transfers are approved in order to:  
 

 offer incentives to families willing to help meet certain Housing Authority occupancy goals 
when: 
 
1. the family requests and qualifies for participation in one of the Authority’s established 

Resident Incentive Transfer programs as described in Exhibits W, X, Y, and Z of this policy; 
 

 correct occupancy standards where the unit size is inappropriate for the size and composition 
of the family (unit is under or over housed); 

 

 allow a family to move closer to the head or spouse’s place of employment or education when 
the following criteria are met: 

 
1. if to be closer to employment, the tenant has been employed at the existing job for a 

minimum of three months and documentation indicates the likelihood that such 
employment will continue to be ongoing; and, 
 

2. if to be closer to school, the tenant is currently enrolled in and attending classes, and 
documentation indicates the education program is projected to continue for a minimum of 
one year; and, 

 
3. in both instances, documentation is provided which indicates that the move will 

substantially reduce the mileage or travel time or costs of the tenant. 
 

 allow the family to move closer to a specialized school where one or more of the children in 
the family must attend such a school and documentation is provided to demonstrate that 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 129 

 
attendance at the school is essential to the child’s physical or mental development. 

 
1. Such a transfer would not be approved when the attendance at the special school is due to 

a matter of “choice” rather than documented need. 
 

 allow a Senior Citizen to move closer to children or family members for a specific stated reason 
that will improve or eliminate the detrimental effects of the current living situation.  
 

 other transfers approved by the Housing Authority when a transfer is the only or best way of 
solving a serious problem. (requires approval of the Executive Director) 

 
III. TENANT INITIATED TRANSFER REQUESTS 

 
When the transfer request is initiated by the Family (rather than due to the need of the Housing 
Authority), the following minimum criteria must be met: 
 
1. The family must have been a resident for a minimum of one year prior to the date of the 

transfer request; and, 
 

2. the family will be required to provide third party verification that documents the need for the 
transfer. 

 

IV. PROCESSING TRANSFERS 

 
Transfers on the waiting list will be sorted by the above categories and within each category by 
date and time. Exceptions may be made when approved by the Executive Director in cases of 
documented urgent need. 
 
Transfers in category 1 and 2 will be housed ahead of any other families, including those on the 
applicant waiting list. Transfers in category 1 will be housed ahead of transfers in category 2. 
 
Transfers in category 3 will be housed along with applicants for admission at a ratio of one transfer 
for every seven admissions.  
 
Upon offer and acceptance of a unit, the family will execute all lease up documents and pay any 
rent or security deposit within two days of being informed the unit is ready to rent. The family will 
be allowed seven days to complete a transfer. The family will be responsible for paying rent at the 
old unit as well as the new unit for any period of time they have possession of both in excess of 
the 7 day window allowed to complete the move to the new unit. The prorated rent and other 
charges (key deposit and any additional security deposit owing) must be paid at the time of lease 
execution. 
 
The following is the policy for the rejection of an offer to transfer: 
 
A. If the family rejects with good cause any unit offered, they will not lose their place on the 

transfer waiting list. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 130 

 
 
B. If the transfer is being made at the request of the Housing Authority and the family rejects 

two offers without good cause, the Housing Authority will take action to terminate their 
tenancy. If the reason for the transfer is that the current unit is too small to meet the 
Housing Authority’s optimum occupancy standards, the family may request in writing to 
stay in the unit without being transferred so long as their occupancy will not exceed two 
people per living/sleeping room. 

 
C. If the transfer is being made at the family’s request and the rejected offer provides 

deconcentration incentives, the family will maintain their place on the transfer list and will 
not otherwise be penalized. 

 
D. If the transfer is being made at the family’s request, the family may, without good cause 

and without penalty, turn down one offer that does not include deconcentration 
incentives. After turning down a second such offer without good cause, the family’s name 
will be removed from the transfer list. 

 

V. Cost of the family’s move 

 

The cost of the transfer will be the responsibility of the family except when approved under the 
following circumstances:  
 

A. When the transfer is needed in order to carry out rehabilitation or modernization activities; 
or 

 

B. When action or inaction by the Housing Authority has caused the unit to be unsafe or 
inhabitable. 

 

Where it is determined that the costs of the transfer is the responsibility of the Housing Authority, 
the Housing Authority will reimburse the tenant for the reasonable costs associated with the 
move, as determined by the Housing Authority.  
  

VI.  Tenants in good standing 

 

When the transfer is at the request of the family, it will not be approved unless the family is in good 
standing with the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority. This means the family must be in compliance 
with their lease, current in all payments to the Housing Authority, and must pass a housekeeping 
inspection.  

 

VII. Transfer Requests 

 

A tenant may request a transfer at any time by completing a transfer request form. In considering 
the request, the Housing Authority may request a meeting with the tenant to better understand 
the need for transfer and to explore possible alternatives. The Housing Authority will review the 
request in a timely manner and if a meeting is desired, it will contact the tenant within 10 business 
days of receipt of the request to schedule a meeting. 
 

The Housing Authority will approve or deny the transfer request in writing within 10 business days 
of receiving the request or holding the meeting, whichever is later. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 131 

 
 

If the transfer is approved, the family’s name will be added to the transfer waiting list. 
 

If the transfer is denied, the denial letter will advise the family of their right to use the grievance 
procedure. 

 
 

VIII. Right of the Housing Authority in transfer policy  

The provisions listed above are to be used as a guide to insure fair and impartial means of assigning units for 
transfers. It is not intended that this policy will create a property right or any other type of right for a tenant 

to transfer or refuse to transfer.IX.      EMERGENCY TRANSFER PLAN FOR VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING 

A. Emergency Transfers 

In accordance with the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA),3 the Sedro Woolley Housing Authority 
(SWHA) allows tenants who are victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking to request an emergency transfer from the tenant’s current unit to another unit.  The ability 
to request a transfer is available regardless of sex, gender paidentity, or sexual orientation.4  The 
ability to honor such request for tenants currently receiving assistance, however, may depend upon a 
preliminary determination that the tenant is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and on whether SWHA has another dwelling unit that is available 
and is safe to offer the tenant for temporary or more permanent occupancy. 
 
This plan identifies who may be eligible for an emergency transfer, the documentation needed to 
request an emergency transfer, confidentiality protections, how an emergency transfer may occur, 
and guidance to tenants on safety and security.  This plan is based on a model emergency transfer 
plan published by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Federal 
agency that oversees that SWHA is in compliance with VAWA. 

 
B. Eligibility for Emergency Transfers 

A tenant who is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as provided 
in HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 5, subpart L is eligible for an emergency transfer, if the: 

 
(1) tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence if 

the tenant remains within the same unit; or 
(2) tenant is a victim of sexual assault that occurred on the premises within the 90-calendar-day 

period preceding a request for an emergency transfer. 
 

A tenant requesting an emergency transfer must expressly request the transfer in accordance with 
the procedures described in this plan.  Tenants who are not in good standing may still request an 
emergency transfer if they meet the eligibility requirements in this section. 

 

                                                           
3 Despite the name of this law, VAWA protection is available to all victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking, regardless of sex, 
gender identity, or sexual orientation. 
4 Housing providers cannot discriminate on the basis of any protected characteristic, including race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, 

disability, or age.  HUD-assisted and HUD-insured housing must be made available to all otherwise eligible individuals regardless of actual or perceived sexual 

orientation, gender identity, or marital status. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 132 

 
C. Emergency Transfer Request Documentation 

To request an emergency transfer, the tenant shall notify their management office and submit a 
written request for a transfer. SWHA will provide reasonable accommodations to this policy for 
individuals with disabilities.  The tenant’s written request for an emergency transfer should include 
either: 
 

(1) A statement expressing that the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent 
harm from further violence if the tenant were to remain in the same dwelling unit assisted 
under SWHA’s program; or 

(2) A statement that the tenant was a sexual assault victim and that the sexual assault occurred 
on the premises during the 90-calendar-day period preceding the tenant’s request for an 
emergency transfer. 

 
D. Confidentiality 

SWHA will keep confidential any information that the tenant submits in requesting an emergency 
transfer, and information about the emergency transfer, unless the: 
 

(1) tenant gives SWHA written permission to release the information on a time limited basis, or  
(2) disclosure of the information is required by law or required for use in an eviction proceeding 

or hearing regarding termination of assistance from the covered program.  
 
This includes keeping confidential the new location of the dwelling unit of the tenant, if one is 
provided, from the person(s) that committed an act(s) of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking against the tenant.  See the Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence 
Against Women Act For All Tenants for more information about SWHA’s responsibility to maintain 
the confidentiality of information related to incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking. 

 
E. Emergency Transfer Timing and Availability 

SWHA cannot guarantee that a transfer request will be approved or how long it will take to process a 
transfer request.  SWHA will, however, act as quickly as possible to move a tenant who is a victim of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to another unit, subject to availability 
and safety of a unit.  If a tenant reasonably believes a proposed transfer would not be safe, the 
tenant may request a transfer to a different unit.  If a unit is available, the transferred tenant must 
agree to abide by the terms and conditions that govern occupancy in the unit to which the tenant has 
been transferred.  SWHA may be unable to transfer a tenant to a particular unit if the tenant has not 
or cannot establish eligibility for that unit. 
 
If SWHA has no safe and available units for which a tenant who needs an emergency transfer is 
eligible, SWHA will assist the tenant in identifying other housing providers who may have safe and 
available units to which the tenant could move.  At the tenant’s request, SWHA will also assist 
tenants in contacting local organizations offering assistance to victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking that are attached to this plan. 

 
F. Safety and Security of Tenants 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 133 

 
Pending approval and during processing of the transfer, the tenant is urged to take all reasonable 
precautions to be safe.  The following resources are provided for informational purposes to assist in 
increasing client safety and security.  However. IN CASES OF EMERGENCY, dial 9-1-1. 
 
Victims of domestic violence are encouraged to contact the National Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-
800-799-7233. For persons with hearing impairments, the hotline may be reached by calling 1-800-
787-3224 (TTY).  In addition, tenants may contact a local domestic violence shelter, for assistance in 
creating a safety plan.   
 
Victims of sexual assault may call the Rape, Abuse & Incest National Network’s National Sexual 
Assault Hotline at 800-656-HOPE, or visit the online hotline at https://ohl.rainn.org/online/ 
 
Victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center for Victims of Crime’s Stalking 
Resource Center at https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-programs/stalking-resource-center 
 

(1) Additional Resources:  
 
Local organizations assisting victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking include: 

 
 Lifewire at 425-746-1960 or 1-800-827-8840 (Helpline available 24 hours daily) 
 Domestic Abuse Women’s Network (DAWN) at 425-656-7867  (Helpline available 24 

hours daily) 
 New Beginnings at 206-522-9422  (Helpline available 24 hours Daily) 
 Washington Statewide Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-800-562-6025 (Daily 8am to 5pm). 
 SKAGIT Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault Services (Skagit DVSAS) at 1-888-336-9591. 

(Resource Helpline is available 24 hours daily) 
 

For referral to SWHA Resident Services staff, who may be able to provide additional resources, please 
contact your Property Manager.  

 

EXHIBIT R. REJECTION of APPLICANTS/REVIEW PROCESS  
Revised 08/30/2023 

    
A. Upon the receipt by the Area Office of unfavorable information about an applicant for housing or 

any information which individually or in conjunction with other information could result in the 
denial of the applicant’s application, a letter will be sent to the applicant that will accomplish the 
following: 

 
1. Notify the applicant of the receipt of unfavorable information; 

a) If the proposed denial is based upon information received through a criminal history 
search, the subject of the record and the applicant will be provided with a copy of the 
record (See Section 5 for additional information) along with such notification; 

 
2. Briefly describe the nature of the unfavorable information.  
 

https://ohl.rainn.org/online/
https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-programs/stalking-resource-center


S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 134 

 
3. Advise the applicant of their rights, personally or through a representative, to inspect the 

information at the office where it is held.   
 
4. Inform the applicant that they have the opportunity to submit explanations, evidence of 

rehabilitation or current fitness as a tenant or other comments about the unfavorable 
information within a reasonable time period before a final decision is made on their 
application; 

 
5. Advise the applicant that if no information is submitted within the stated time period, the 

decision on the application will be made based on the available information. 
 

B. If the applicant does not respond within the 10 days provided, the application can be canceled 
with the letter (and appropriate notes) attached to it; 

 
C. If the applicant does respond within the 10 days provided, a meeting is to be scheduled between 

the applicant and the Manager to discuss the information relevant to their application. 
 
D. If the discussion has occurred and the Manager still determines to reject the application, a second 

letter must be sent informing the applicant of the reasons for the rejection and that they have a 
right to an Informal Hearing. 

 
1. If the applicant does not respond within 30 days, an Informal Hearing is to be scheduled 

with the Authority Housing Officer within 10 days of the receipt of the request. 
 

a. The applicant may have legal or lay representation at the hearing, but may not 
bring more than two additional people to the hearing. 

 
 In addition, the applicant or representative must be advised of the right to review 

the information on which the decision to deny the application was based. The 
applicant or representative may review this information either at the hearing or 
prior to the hearing. 

 
b. Results of the Hearing 
 
 The Hearing Officer has the authority to affirm, reverse or amend the original 

decision to deny the application. Or, if he chooses, he may continue the hearing for 
the purpose of obtaining additional information from either party. 

 
 The applicant must be notified in writing of the Hearing Officer’s determination 

within 10 days of the completion of the hearing. 
 
  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 135 

 

EXHIBIT S. DISPOSITION OF RECORDS POLICY 
Revised 08/30/2023 

 
I. TENANT/PARTICIPANT FILES 
 
A. Vacate Files 
 
Dispose six years after tenant/participant vacates in cases where no balance is owing the Housing 
Authority or where the balance owing the Housing Authority is $500 or less. Dispose of EIV reports in the 
tenant file no longer than six years following the date of end of program participation. 
 
B. Current Files 
 

1. Original Application for Admission and Supporting Data and Lease 
 

Do not dispose. 
 

2. Tenant supplied documentation of assigned SSN for family members. 
 
Do not dispose. 

3. General Correspondence with Tenants/Participants and Local Records Which May be Important 
Basis for Future Action 

 
Do not dispose. 

 
4. Leases and Riders Other Than Original 

 
Dispose five years after being superseded for existing tenants/participants. 

 
5. Applications for Continued Occupancy and Supporting Data 

 
Dispose five years after being superseded for existing tenants/participants. 
 

II. APPLICATION FILES 
 
A. Withdrawn/Ineligible/Canceled Applications 
 
Dispose of three years from date the application was classified withdrawn, ineligible or canceled - 
unless applicant or family member filed an USCIS appeal of their approved citizenship in 
conjunction with the application for housing assistance. In such cases, retain the documentation 
relating to the appeal for a period of five years from the date the determination of the appeal. 
 
 
 

III. Maintenance Work Orders, Service Requests, and Related Papers Involved In Repair and 
Maintenance Work) 

 
Dispose Maintenance copies three years after date of last audit. 



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 136 

 
 

IV. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Do not dispose of correspondence relating to matters of policy and procedure or memos from the 
Central Office relating to matters of policy or procedure. 
 
Dispose after five years, correspondence relating to routine management and maintenance 
matters. 
 

V. SWHA/HUD MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 
Dispose Area Office copies five years after date of report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



S W H A  A d m i s s i o n  a n d  C o n t i n u e d  O c c u p a n c y  P o l i c y  ( A C O P )             P a g e  | 137 

 

Exhibit U. LEAD-BASED PAINT NOTICE 
Revised 06/14/2023 

 



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
7 



 SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

Date:  October 12, 2023 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Saeed Hajarizadeh, EVP Administrative Services (KCHA) 
 
Subject: Resolution No. 493:  Acceptance of CohnReznick LLC Report on Financial Statements 

Audit for the Period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 
 
Sedro Woolley Housing Authority financial audits are generally done by the Washington State 
Auditor’s Office (SAO). However, we had ran into difficulties with timeliness and repeated change in 
auditors who had to be trained each year. The law allows SWHA to use a private CPA firm to conduct 
the audit and submit it to SAO for acceptance.  
 
KCHA conducted an RFP in early 2023 and received three proposals, with CohReznick receiving the 
highest score and selected to conduct audits.  
 
The Financial Statements Audit Report covers the Authority’s financial statements and related 
disclosures. A federal “Single Audit” was not required this year.  
 
There were no findings in this year’s Financial Statements Audit and there were no management letter 
items.  
 
The auditors expressed in their written opinion that the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley.  
 
When the Board formally accepts the SAO reports via the attached resolution.  
 



THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 493 

 

ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

EXAMINATIONS AND ATTESTATIONS FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 1, 2022 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
  

WHEREAS, CohnReznick LLC has conducted a fiscal audit of the Housing Authority of 

the City of Sedro-Woolley for the period January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022, and has 

transmitted same to the Housing Authority; and 

WHEREAS, a formal acceptance of the Audit is required by the Board of Commissioners; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-

WOOLLEY; as follows: 

 Receipt of the official examination, Financial Statements for the period January 1, 2022 

through December 31, 2022, and is hereby acknowledged and formally accepted by the Board of 

Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley. 

  ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY THIS 19th DAY OF OCTOBER, 

2023.      

 
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE  

CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY, WASHINGTON 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

        LAURIE FELLERS, Chair 
            Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

  _________________________________ 

  ROBIN WALLS 

  Secretary-Treasurer  



Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
 

Financial Statements 
(With Supplementary Information) 
and Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
December 31, 2022 



Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 

 

Page 

Independent Auditor’s Report 1 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards 4 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 6 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) 7 

Basic Financial Statements 

 Statement of Net Position 13 

 Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 14 

 Statement of Cash Flows 15 

 Notes to Financial Statements 16 

Other Supplementary Information 

 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 22 

 Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 22 

 Financial Data Schedule 23 

 



 

1 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Housing Authority of the 
City of Sedro-Woolley (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the business-type activities of the Authority, as of December 31, 2022, and the 
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Authority’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



 

2 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit.  

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents to be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 



 

3 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The financial data schedule is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The financial data schedule and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the financial data schedule and schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 
29, 2023, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
 
 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
September 29, 2023 



 

4 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  

Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
 

To the Board of Commissioners 
Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities of the Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley (the “Authority”) as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 29, 2023.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 



 

5 

Purpose of this Report 

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Charlotte, North Carolina 
September 29, 2023 



Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley  
Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and Recommendations 

December 31, 2022 
 
 

6 

Our audit disclosed no findings that are required to be reported herein. 

 



Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

This first section of the annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley’s (SWHA) financial performance during the year 
ended December 31, 2022.  It should be read in conjunction with the Authority’s financial 
statements, which immediately follow this section. 

Located in Skagit County, Washington, the city of Sedro-Woolley officially merged the 
neighboring towns of Sedro and Woolley when it incorporated over 100 years ago.  With a local 
population of approximately 11,690, SWHA currently operates two public housing 
developments—Hillsview and Cedar Grove. These two developments total 80 units and serve a 
diversified population including senior, disabled and family households.  

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) has a long-standing contract to manage and assist 
the Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority.  SWHA has its own Board of Commissioners, which is 
responsible for approving its operating and capital budgets and overseeing programs.  SWHA is 
charged by KCHA for the direct operating expenses of the two public housing developments.  In 
addition, KCHA also charges for administrative services provided.  These indirect costs are 
allocated to SWHA using established allocation methods, generally based upon the number of 
units.   

The financial statements included in this report are in conformance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles for governments.  

2022 Financial Highlights 

 Total assets of the Authority exceeded total liabilities at December 31, 2022 by
$2,082,236.

 Total revenues (operating and non-operating) for 2022 were $693,442.  Total expenses
(operating and non-operating) were $815,894. The change in net position was a
decrease of $83,747.

7



 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
 
As required under the GASB 34 financial reporting standards, this annual report consist of two 
parts—the basic financial statements, and required supplementary information.    
 
The following basic financial statements are included in this report: 
 
 Statement of Net Position—reports the Authority’s current financial resources (short-term 

expendable resources) with capital assets and long-term debt obligations. 
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position—reports the operating 

and non-operating revenues, by major source along with operating and non-operating 
expenses and capital contributions. 

 
 Statement of Cash Flows—reports the Authority’s cash flows from operating, investing, 

capital and non-capital activities. 
 

 The statements identified above are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the information found in the financial 
statements. 

 

 
Financial Analysis of the Authority 

 
Statement of Net Position: 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, liabilities, and net position of the Authority at 
the end of the year. The purpose of the statement is to provide a snapshot of the financial 
condition of the Authority at a certain point in time. Table A-1 presents the Authority’s 
Condensed Statement of Net Position for 2022 and 2021. Supplementary information is 
provided in the accompanying notes that further explain and support the data presented in table 
A-1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

Table A-1, Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 

 
 
Current and other assets, excluding capital assets, for the year ended December 31, 2022 total 
$326,341 and are comprised of $299,415 in cash and cash equivalents and $9,778 in accounts 
receivables, and $17,148 in other assets.  Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $47,468.   
 
Capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2022 are $1.84 million. Included in this 
category are land and improvements, buildings and improvements, personal property, and 
construction-in-progress.   
 
Total liabilities totaled $88,942 at December 31, 2022, a decrease of $289,274 from 2021 
primarily from contract retention related to the Cedar Grove envelope and roof project.   
 
The Authority’s current ratio reflects the relationship between current assets and current 
liabilities and is a measure of the Authority’s ability to pay short-term obligations. At December 
31, 2022, the Authority’s current ratio was 3.67:1, an increase from the previous year’s current 
ratio of 1.68:1. This means that for every dollar in current liabilities there is $3.67 in current 
assets.  
 
Total net position decreased by $83,747 during 2022. Net investment in capital assets 
decreased by $63,551, primarily due to depreciation, while unrestricted net position decreased 
by $20,196. Unrestricted net position decreased by 8% primarily due to increase in operating 
expenses. 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: 
 
The purpose of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is to 
present the revenues earned by the Authority (both operating and non-operating) and the 
expenses incurred (operating and non-operating), and any other revenues, expenses, gains and 
losses received or spent by SWHA. Table A-2 represents the Authority’s Condensed Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for 2022 and 2021.   
 
 
 

Assets: 2022 2021

Current and other assets 326,341$              635,811$            

Capital assets 1,844,837             1,908,388           

Total Assets 2,171,178             2,544,199           

Liabilities:

Current and other liabilities 88,942                  378,216              

Total Liabilities 88,942                  378,216              

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,844,837             1,908,388           

Unrestricted 237,399                257,595              

Total Net Position 2,082,236$           2,165,983$         

9



 

Table A-2, Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 

 
 

 
Revenues are classified as operating or non-operating.  Table A-3 shows the sources of 
operating revenues for 2021 and 2022.   
 
Table A-3, Sources of Revenues for 2021 and 2022 
 

 
 

 
Operating expenses are amounts paid for providing housing to the Authority’s tenants and 
administering the various programs.  Total operating expenses (excluding depreciation), for 
2022 were $712,116. Costs included in operating expenses include: administrative, tenant 
services, maintenance, utilities, and other. 

2022 2021

Operating Revenues 263,638$      221,987$     

Net nonoperating revenues 429,804        530,381       

Total Revenues 693,442        752,368       

Operating expenses 815,894        943,636       

Total Expenses 815,894        943,636       

Excess or deficiency before contributions (122,452)       (191,268)     

Capital grant contributions 38,705          205,598       

Change in Net Position (83,747)         14,330         

Beginning Net Position 2,165,983     2,151,653    

Ending Net Position 2,082,236$   2,165,983$  

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

HUD Subsidies & Grant Revenue Tenant Rental Revenue

Percentage of Revenue By Year

2021 2022

10



 

Table A-4 illustrates the operating expense break down by category. Decrease in operating 
expense was mainly due to unit upgrades. Three were budgeted over the year, but none were 
completed as unit upgrades depend on availability. 
 

Table A-4, Operating Expenses for 2021 and 2022 
 

 
 

Capital Assets 

 
The Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley is committed to the ongoing rehabilitation 
and modernization of its housing inventory.  Hillsview and Cedar Grove were both built in 1971.  
 
Table A-5, Capital Assets for 2022 and 2021 
 

 
 
 
Information about the Authority’s capital assets is further presented in the financial statements 
Note 3 – Capital Assets.  

 
 
  

2022 2021

Land 59,287$      59,287$      

Buildings and Improvements 4,306,856 4,306,856

Construction-in-progress 315,500      275,272      

4,681,643 4,641,415

Total accumulated depreciation (2,836,806) (2,733,028)

Net Capital Assets 1,844,837$ 1,908,387$ 

11



 

Economic Factors Affecting the Authority’s Future 
 
The Authority receives the bulk of its operational funding from the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) which, like all federal agencies, depends upon 
congressional appropriations. The current administration advocates severe funding cuts to 
programs administered by HUD; including completely defunding the Capital Fund Program. 
Much like the prior year, it is uncertain how much congress will appropriate.  
 

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our stakeholders with a general overview of the 
Housing Authority’s finances and to demonstrate SWHA’s accountability for its resources.  Any 
questions about this report, or requests for additional information, should be directed to the 
Director of Finance of the King County Housing Authority. 

12



 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Housing Authority of The City of Sedro-Woolley

Statement Of Net Position

As of December 31, 2022

ASSETS:

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 290,115$      

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,300            

Receivables, net 9,778            

Other current assets 17,148          

Total Current Assets 326,341        

Noncurrent Assets
Land, Buildings, and Equipment, net

Nondepreciable 374,788        

Depreciable 1,470,049     

Total Noncurrent Assets 1,844,837     

Total Assets 2,171,178     

LIABILITIES: 

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 28,715          

Accrued compensated absences 20,287          

Tenant security deposits 9,300            

Prepaid tenant rent 12,103          

Contract retentions 9,135            

Other Current Liabilities 9,402            

Total Current Liabilities 88,942          

Total Liabilities 88,942          

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets 1,844,837     

Unrestricted 237,399        

Total Net Position 2,082,236$   

13



 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Housing Authority of The City of Sedro-Woolley

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2022

Operating Revenues

Tenant revenue 260,519$      

Other revenue 3,119            

    Total Operating Revenues 263,638

Operating Expenses

Administrative 207,237        

Tenant services 266               

Maintenance 318,901        

Utilities 151,595        

Depreciation 103,778        

Other expenses 34,117          

    Total Operating Expenses 815,894

Operating Income (Loss) (552,256)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

HUD subsidies and grant revenue 425,286        

Investment income 4,518            

    Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 429,804

INCOME (LOSS)  before contributions (122,452)

Capital grant contributions 38,705          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (83,747)         

Beginning Net Position 2,165,983     

Ending Net Position 2,082,236$   

14



 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

Housing Authority of The City of Sedro-Woolley

Statement of Cash Flows

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Receipts from tenants 271,493$  

Payments to employees (145,873)   

Payments to suppliers of goods and services (653,625)   

Other receipts 2,114        

Net cash used in operating activities (525,891)   

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Receipts from HUD 665,997    

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 665,997    

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Capital grant contributions 41,723      

Purchases of capital assets (40,228)     

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 3,445        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Investment income 4,518        

Other receipts (payments) (193,587)   

Net cash used in investing activities (189,069)   

Net decrease in cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents (45,518)     

Cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 346,883    

Cash, restricted cash and cash equivalents -- end of the year 299,415$  

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (552,256)   

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

Used in operating activities:

Depreciation expense 103,778    

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables 7,424        

Inventories and other 10,848      

Accounts payable (101,940)   

Other current liabilities 6,255        

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (525,891)$ 

15



 

 

Note 1 – Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Reporting Entity 

 
Primary Government 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Sedro-Woolley (the “Authority”) was created as a municipal 
corporation under the provisions of the State Housing Authorities Law (RCW 35.82) and the 
Housing Cooperation Law (RCW 35.83) in response to the Federal Housing Act of 1937. The 
Act created the United States Housing Authority, empowering it to make loans and annual 
contributions to local public housing agencies to assist in the development, acquisition and 
administration of low rent projects. The programs authorized under the Act, as amended, are 
now administered by the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 
 
The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) has a long-standing contract to manage and assist 
the Authority.  The Authority has its own Board of Commissioners, which is responsible for 
approving its operating and capital budgets and overseeing programs.  The Authority is charged 
by KCHA for the direct operating expenses of the two public housing developments.  In addition, 
KCHA also charges a fee for administrative services provided.   
 
The Authority has been granted a broad range of powers to provide housing assistance to low-
income households.  The nationally recognized definition of a low-income family is a household 
earning less than 80 percent of the area’s median income, adjusted for family size.  The 
Authority administers programs that serve housing needs. 

 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The significant accounting policies 
are described below. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
Accounting records are maintained according to the proprietary fund model that is similar to 
private business enterprises.  The Authority applies all relevant Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
 
 
 

16



 

 
 
Revenues and Expenses 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The 
principal operating revenues of the Authority are tenant revenues.  Operating expenses for 
proprietary funds include the cost of maintenance and repairs, administrative expenses and 
depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
The basis for recognition of revenues and expenses is the accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recorded when earned.  Expenses are recorded when incurred.  Revenue from 
operating subsidies and grants is classified as non-operating revenue.  Revenue from capital 
grants is classified as capital grant contributions. 
 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
Cash consists of Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurable deposits with 
original maturities of less than three months.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.  Investments include 
deposits with original maturities exceeding three months, securities and other assets that are 
held primarily for the purpose of obtaining income or profit. Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents as of December 31, 2022 include $9,300 of tenant security deposits. 
 
Receivables and Bad Debts 
Receivables consist primarily of rents due from tenants.  Annually, tenant receivables are 
analyzed and the allowance for doubtful accounts is appropriately adjusted.  No allowances 
existed at December 31, 2022 other than the allowance for tenant accounts receivable of 
$1,451. 
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost in the land, structures, and equipment accounts. 

Donated assets are recorded at acquisition cost. The Authority defines capital assets as tangible 
items with an initial individual cost of at least $5,000 if the item is equipment and $50,000 if the 
item is real property or a capital improvement.  Capital assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method with depreciation commencing in the acquisition year and ceasing in the 
disposal year. Capital project costs clearly associated with the acquisition, development, and 
construction of a real estate project, including indirect costs and interest, are capitalized as a 
cost of that project.   
 
Depreciable lives for the capital asset categories follow: 
 

Land      No depreciation 
  Buildings      20 – 40 years 
  Improvements     15 years 
  Equipment     3 – 10 years 
  Construction-in-process   No depreciation 
 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.  Management reviews land, 
structures, and equipment for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate 
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  If there is an indication of impairment, 

17



 

management prepares an estimate of future cash flows expected to result from the use of the 
asset and its eventual disposition.  If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the 
asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated fair value.  
Preparation of estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on 
management’s best estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions.   
 
Tax Liability 
The Authority is by law exempt from all federal, state, and local taxes and assessments.   
 
Compensated Absences 
It is the Authority’s policy to pay 100% of accumulated annual leave when an employee 
terminates employment from the Authority. As such, the value of annual leave earned but not 
used at year-end is accrued.  Sick leave does not vest and is only paid to those separating from 
the Authority as retirees as defined by the state pension system.  Because the amount of such 
payments is difficult to estimate, an accrual is made only when the actual payment amount is 
known. 
 

Note 2 – Adoption of New Accounting Standards  

During 2022, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No.87, Leases; which establishes a single 
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right 
to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability 
and an intangible right to use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable 
and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information 
about governments’ leasing activities. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2021, as amended by GASB Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of 
Certain Authoritative Guidance. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 87 had no material impact on 
the financial statements.  

Note 3 - Cash Deposits and Investments  
 
The Authority is restricted in its cash deposits and investments to those allowed by RCW 
35.82.070(6).  In general, deposits must be made with qualified financial institutions whose 
deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).   
 
Insurance and Collateralization 
Deposits that are in excess of the $250,000 insured amount must be continuously and fully 
(100%) secured.  Collateral, comprised of identifiable U.S. Government securities as prescribed 
by HUD, are pledged or set aside to secure these deposits.  The Public Deposit Protection Act 
in effect in the State of Washington set up a multiple financial institution collateral pool to insure 
public deposits.  This protection is in the form of securities pledged as collateral to the Public 
Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC) by all qualified depositories.  In 1994, the Authority 
received a waiver from HUD that enabled it to make deposits in excess of $100,000 in a 
qualified public depository because HUD determined that there were “adequate safeguards 
against the loss of Public Housing Authority funds.”   

 
Interest Rate Risk 
As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the 
Authority’s investment policy limits the maximum maturity of an investment to not greater than 
three years.  Exceptions may be made for collateralization of repurchase agreements using 
investments not exceeding 30 years, for the investment of reserve funds, which can be invested 

18



 

up to 30 years if matched to an anticipated future cash flow, and for “step-investments” that 
increase interest payments at pre-defined times.  

Credit Risk 
The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Washington State law, and the 
Authority’s investment policy all limit the instruments in which the Authority may invest.  Not all 
Authority funds have the same restrictions.  Following are some of the instruments in which any 
Authority funds, including Federal funds, may be invested: 
 
1) Direct obligations of the Federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United 

States 
a) U.S. Treasury Bills. 
b) U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds. 

2) Obligations of Federal government agencies, such as: 
a) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) mortgage-backed securities. 
b) GNMA participation securities. 
c) Maritime Administration Bonds. 
d) Small Business Administration Bonds. 

3) Securities of Government Sponsored Agencies, such as: 
a) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) notes and bonds. 
b) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) notes and bonds. 
c) Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) notes and bonds. 
d) Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) notes and bonds. 
e) Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA) notes and bonds. 

4) Demand and savings accounts. 
5) Money Market Deposit accounts. 
6) Certain mutual funds. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The Authority diversifies its investments by security type and institution.  SWHA follows the 
investment policy of KCHA which states: “With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities, 
investment agreements for trustee held funds, and authorized pools, no more than 15% of the 
Authority's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single 
financial institution. 
 
Valuation and Classification 
Cash equivalents include deposits and investments that are readily convertible to cash.  
Instruments with an original maturity date of over 3 months are classified as investments.  Cash 
and investments held for the future payment of long-term liabilities are classified as non-current 
assets. Cash and investments legally or contractually restricted as to use are classified as 
restricted. 
 
The Authority is a voluntary participant in the Local Government Investment Pool, an external 
investment pool operated by the Washington State Treasurer.  The pool is not rated and not 
registered with the SEC.  Rather, oversight is provided by the State Finance Committee in 
accordance with RCW 43.250.  Investments in the LGIP are reported at amortized cost, which is the 
same as the value of the pool per share. The LGIP does not impose any restrictions on participant 

withdrawals. As of December 31, 2022, the pool had an average days-to-maturity of 19 days and 
therefore is reported at cost.   
 
 

19



 

 
 
 
 A summary of cash and investments at December 31, 2022 follows. 
 

 
 
 

Note 4 – Capital Assets 
 
The components and capital activity of land, structures and equipment follow.  
  

 
 
 

Note 5 - Risk Management 
 
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA) has the responsibility to systematically and 
continuously identify potential exposure to losses in terms of frequency and severity probability, 
and to apply sound risk control and financing techniques to minimize the impact of those 
potential losses. SWHA Risk Management has implemented programs to protect the Housing 
Authority against accidental and criminal losses that would significantly affect personnel, 
property, or budget by using a combination of loss control programs, purchased commercial 
insurance, voluntary self-insurance, participation in a risk-sharing pool or group, and contractual 
risk transfer via indemnification agreements.  
 
The Housing Authority has secured fidelity coverage through Travelers Insurance with a 
$2,000,000 per occurrence/aggregate for all employees. Management liability coverage is 
provided by Chubb. Coverage includes public officials, errors & omissions, and employment 
practices liability coverage appropriate to the agency’s scope of work with $5,000,000 per 
occurrence/aggregate limit and a $100,000 deductible on a claims made basis. 
 
Buildings, contents, and rental income are insured through Philadelphia Insurance Company on 
a replacement-cost basis within a blanket policy. The per-loss deductible varies between $5,000 

Unrestricted Restricted Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Depository 5,000$          -$          5,000$     

Local Government Investment Pool 285,115        9,300        294,415   

Total Cash And Cash Equivalents 290,115$      9,300$      299,415$ 

 Beginning 

Balances 

Additions and 

Transfers-in

Disposals and 

Transfers-out

 Ending 

Balances 

Land 59,287$        -$                -$                  59,287$           

Construction-in-progress 275,272        40,229            -                    315,501           

Total Nondepreciable 334,559        40,229            -                    374,788           

Buildings and Improvements 4,306,856     -                  -                    4,306,856        

Total Depreciable 4,306,856     -                  -                    4,306,856        

Total Capital Assets: 4,641,415     40,229            -                    4,681,644        

(2,733,027)    (103,780)         -                    (2,836,807)       

1,908,388$   (63,551)$         -$                  1,844,837$      

Nondepreciable:

Depreciable:

Less: Accumulated depreciation

20



 

for tax credit properties to $25,000 for public housing and bond properties. Electronics and 
contents at SWHA office locations are insured on a replacement-cost basis within a blanket 
policy form. The per-loss deductible is $1,000. 
 
SWHA maintains cyber liability coverage with a $2,000,000 per claim policy limit. HAI Group 
provides a shared excess cyber liability policy in the amount of $250,000. 
 
No active claims are anticipated to exceed the applicable limits of insurance secured from any 
of the listed providers. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage purchased during the past 
five years. 
 

Note 6 – Subsequent Event 
 

Events that occur after the date of the statement of net position but before the financial 
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The 
effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the date of 
the statement of net position are recognized in the accompanying financial statements. 
Subsequent events, which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the date of the 
statement of net position, require disclosure in the accompanying notes. Management evaluated 
the activity of the Authority through September 29, 2023 (the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would 
require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial 
statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

21



 

 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEDRO-WOOLLEY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the 12 Month Period Ending December 31, 2022

 Federal Agency                    

(Pass-Through Agency) Federal Program

Federal Assistance 

Listing Number Other Award Number

From Pass-

Through Awards

 From Direct 

Awards Total

 Passed through 

to Subrecipients 

 Debt Liability 

Balance  Note 

Office Of Public And Indian Housing, 

Department Of Housing And Urban 

Development

Public and Indian Housing 14.850 S 004 -                        422,269            422,269      -                           -                     1,2

Office Of Public And Indian Housing, 

Department Of Housing And Urban 

Development

Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 WA01P030501-17 -                        -                     -               -                           -                     1,2

Office Of Public And Indian Housing, 

Department Of Housing And Urban 

Development

Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 WA01P030501-20 -                        27,150               27,150         -                           -                     1,2

Office Of Public And Indian Housing, 

Department Of Housing And Urban 

Development

Public Housing Capital Fund 14.872 WA01P030501-21 -                        14,573               14,573         -                           -                     1,2

Total CFDA 14.872 -                        41,723               41,723         -                           -                     

Total Federal Expenditures -$                     463,991$          463,991$    -$                         -$                   

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are an integral part of this schedule.

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Financial Assistance is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the King County 

Housing Authority’s financial statements.  (See Note 1 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.)

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program costs.  Entire program costs, including The Authority’s 

portion, may be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-87, Cost 

Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are

 limited as to reimbursement. 

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost

rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Expenditures

22



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Balance Sheet Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$101,111 $189,004 $290,115 111  Cash - Unrestricted

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development

 113  Cash - Other Restricted
$3,900 $5,400 $9,300 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities
$105,011 $194,404 $0 $299,415 100  Total Cash

$1,901 $1,848 $3,749 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects
$890 $816 $1,706 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous
$1,323 $4,451 $5,774 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants

-$6 -$1,445 -$1,451 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants
$0 $0 $0 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current

 128  Fraud Recovery

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable
$4,108 $5,670 $0 $9,778 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

 131  Investments - Unrestricted

 132  Investments - Restricted

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability
$5,837 $11,311 $17,148 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

 143  Inventories

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories

 144  Inter Program Due From

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

1 23

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Balance Sheet Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

 145  Assets Held for Sale
$114,956 $211,385 $0 $326,341 150  Total Current Assets

$59,287 $59,287 161  Land
$516,537 $3,270,426 $3,786,963 162  Buildings

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration

 165  Leasehold Improvements
-$492,511 -$2,344,296 -$2,836,807 166  Accumulated Depreciation
$315,501 $315,501 167  Construction in Progress
$383,139 $136,754 $519,893 168  Infrastructure
$722,666 $1,122,171 $0 $1,844,837 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current

 174  Other Assets

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures
$722,666 $1,122,171 $0 $1,844,837 180  Total Non-Current Assets

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources

$837,622 $1,333,556 $0 $2,171,178 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

 311  Bank Overdraft
$11,069 $17,647 $28,716 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due
$2,409 $6,993 $9,402 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

2 24

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Balance Sheet Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$5,155 $15,132 $20,287 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability

 325  Accrued Interest Payable

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government
$3,900 $5,400 $9,300 341  Tenant Security Deposits
$5,843 $6,259 $12,102 342  Unearned Revenue

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings
$9,135 $9,135 345  Other Current Liabilities

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other

 347  Inter Program - Due To

 348  Loan Liability - Current
$37,511 $51,431 $0 $88,942 310  Total Current Liabilities

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities
$0 $0 $0 $0 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities

$37,511 $51,431 $0 $88,942 300  Total Liabilities

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

3 25

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Balance Sheet Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$722,666 $1,122,171 $1,844,837 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets

 511.4  Restricted Net Position
$77,445 $159,954 $0 $237,399 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position
$800,111 $1,282,125 $0 $2,082,236 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position

$837,622 $1,333,556 $0 $2,171,178 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity -

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

4 26

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$72,133 $184,313 $256,446 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue
$4,074 $4,074 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other

$72,133 $188,387 $0 $260,520 70500  Total Tenant Revenue

$145,179 $280,107 $425,286 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants
$38,705 $38,705 70610  Capital Grants

 70710  Management Fee

 70720  Asset Management Fee

 70730  Book Keeping Fee

 70740  Front Line Service Fee

 70750  Other Fees

 70700  Total Fee Revenue

 70800  Other Government Grants

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets

 71400  Fraud Recovery
$805 $2,314 $3,119 71500  Other Revenue

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets
$1,480 $3,038 $4,518 72000  Investment Income - Restricted

$258,302 $473,846 $0 $732,148 70000  Total Revenue

$18,424 $52,558 $70,982 91100  Administrative Salaries
$3,640 $10,919 $14,559 91200  Auditing Fees

$15,583 $46,750 $62,333 91300  Management Fee

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

1 27

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

 91310  Book-keeping Fee
$26 $79 $105 91400  Advertising and Marketing

$6,251 $17,840 $24,091 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative
$1,021 $4,127 $5,148 91600  Office Expenses
$1,583 $790 $2,373 91700  Legal Expense
$706 $2,212 $2,918 91800  Travel

 91810  Allocated Overhead
$2,978 $15,569 $18,547 91900  Other

$50,212 $150,844 $0 $201,056 91000  Total Operating - Administrative

 92000  Asset Management Fee

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries
$5 $16 $21 92200  Relocation Costs

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services
$61 $183 $244 92400  Tenant Services - Other
$66 $199 $0 $265 92500  Total Tenant Services

$18,528 $12,156 $30,684 93100  Water
$2,231 $12,197 $14,428 93200  Electricity
$1,767 $1,767 93300  Gas

 93400  Fuel

 93500  Labor
$17,532 $51,482 $69,014 93600  Sewer

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities
$15,837 $19,866 $35,703 93800  Other Utilities Expense
$55,895 $95,701 $0 $151,596 93000  Total Utilities

$19,708 $70,403 $90,111 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

2 28

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$20,300 $26,676 $46,976 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and
$67,676 $88,430 $156,106 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts
$6,796 $20,379 $27,175 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance

$114,480 $205,888 $0 $320,368 94000  Total Maintenance

 95100  Protective Services - Labor

 95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs

 95300  Protective Services - Other

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services
$0 $0 $0 $0 95000  Total Protective Services

$6,154 $10,537 $16,691 96110  Property Insurance
$3,916 $10,745 $14,661 96120  Liability Insurance
$1,198 $3,520 $4,718 96130  Workmen's Compensation

 96140  All Other Insurance
$11,268 $24,802 $0 $36,070 96100  Total insurance Premiums

 96200  Other General Expenses
$678 $2,083 $2,761 96210  Compensated Absences

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages

 96600  Bad debt - Other

 96800  Severance Expense
$678 $2,083 $0 $2,761 96000  Total Other General Expenses

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

3 29

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

 96730  Amortization of Bond Issue Costs
$0 $0 $0 $0 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost

$232,599 $479,517 $0 $712,116 96900  Total Operating Expenses

$25,703 -$5,671 $0 $20,032 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments

 97350  HAP Portability-In
$31,205 $72,574 $103,779 97400  Depreciation Expense

 97500  Fraud Losses

 97600  Capital Outlays  - Governmental Funds

 97700  Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

 97800  Dwelling Units Rent Expense
$263,804 $552,091 $0 $815,895 90000  Total Expenses

 10010  Operating Transfer In

 10020  Operating transfer Out

 10030  Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government

 10040  Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit

 10050  Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

 10060  Proceeds from Property Sales

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

4 30

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out
$0 $0 $0 $0 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses)

-$5,502 -$78,245 $0 -$83,747 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total

$0 $0 $0 $0 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments
$805,613 $1,360,370 $0 $2,165,983 11030  Beginning Equity

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and

 11050  Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

 11060  Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

 11070  Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

 11080  Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

 11090  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling

 11100  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity
240 720 0 960 11190  Unit Months Available
231 712 0 943 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased

$52,340 $108,821 $0 $161,161 11270  Excess Cash
$0 $0 $0 $0 11610  Land Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 11620  Building Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 11630  Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 11660  Infrastructure Purchases
$0 $0 $0 $0 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

5 31

khelin
Text Box



HA City of Sedro Woolley  (WA030)

Project Revenue and Expense Summary

 12/31/2022 Audited/Non Single Audit Fiscal Year End:Submission Type:

TUKWILA, WA

$0 $0 $0 $0 13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds

WA030000103 WA030000155 OTHER PROJ Total

6 32

khelin
Text Box



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
8 



 SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

 

Page | 1 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   The Board of Commissioners 
 

FROM:   Tesh Assefa, Financial Reporting Manager 
 

DATE:  October 19, 2023 
 

RE:  August 2023 Financial Report 
 

Attached for your review is the unaudited financial report for August 2023. This report shows 
actual results, budgets, and variances expressed in both dollars and percentages.  The report, in cash 
format, details operating income and expenses, operating cash flow, non-operating income and expenses, 
and changes in assets and liabilities. Reports in this format will reconcile the changes in cash, and both the 
beginning and ending cash balances are displayed. 

 
EXECUTVE SUMMARY 

Year-to-date operating income is 6.6% over budget and operating expenses are 11.6% over budget.  
 

 
 

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE 
 

Year-to-date operating revenues totaling $455,236 exceeded budget expectations, coming in over 
budget by $28,220, or 6.6%. The primary driver of this variance was an increase in tenant revenue.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating Revenue Operating Expenses

$ Variance % Variance $ Variance % Variance

Tenant Revenue $40,322 24.3% 3 Salaries and Benefits ($11,008) ‐8.4% 1

Federal Operating Support (12,885)       ‐5.0% 2 Administrative Expenses $9,728 11.1% 3

Other Revenue 782              105.0% 3 Maintenance Expenses, Utilites, Taxes ($42,721) ‐21.1% 1

Other Programmatic Expenses ($4,863) ‐800.8% 1

  Total Operating Income $28,220 6.6% 3   Total Operating Expenses (48,863) ‐11.6% 1

Green are favorable variances 

Yellow are unfavorable variances less than 5% 

Red are unfavorable variances greater than 5% 

Favorable Favorable

(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)



Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority 
 

Page | 2 
 

 
 
 

Year-to-date operating expenses in the amount of $469,622 are over budget by 11.6%.  The primary 
reasons for the variance were: unplanned plumbing expenses totaling $20K at Cedar Grove to fix a main 
sewer line and $9.5K at Hillsview to repair sprinkler backflow device, increase in salaries as portfolio staff 
assisted in preparations for the HUD Monitoring. Also, unbudgeted maintenance cost totaling $19.1k in 
preparation for REAC inspection.  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority 
 

Page | 3 
 

 
CAPITAL ACTIVITY  

Capital project expenditures were under budget by 56.2% due to the timing of unit upgrades.  
Three unit upgrades were budgeted evenly throughout the year, however one unit upgrades have been 
completed through August as actual timing is dependent on unit availability.  

 
CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED CASH 

Unrestricted cash in the amount of $228,093 has decreased by $62K since the beginning of the 
year. The decrease is mainly due to payment of short-term liabilities and increase in prepaid insurance.  

 
 
 
 

 



Sedro‐Woolley Housing Authority

Statement of Financial Position

As of August 31, 2023

Cedar Grove Hillsview Combined

Cash‐Unrestricted $102,766 $125,327 $228,093

Cash‐Held by Management Agent ‐                               ‐                      ‐                      

Cash‐Designated ‐                               ‐                      ‐                      

Cash‐Restricted 3,750                           5,500                 9,250                  

  Total Cash 106,516                      130,827             237,343              

Current Assets (9,458)                         17,696               8,239                  

Long‐term Assets 699,941                      1,067,741          1,767,682          

  Total Other Assets 690,484                      1,085,438          1,775,921          

  Total Assets 797,000                      1,216,264          2,013,264          

Current Liabilities 11,173                        27,752               38,925                

Long‐Term Liabilities ‐                               ‐                      ‐                      

  Total Liabilities 11,173                        27,752               38,925                

Equity 785,827                      1,188,513          1,974,339          

  Total Liabilities and Equity $797,000 $1,216,264 $2,013,264



Sedro‐Woolley Housing Authority

Cash Reconciliation Report

Combined Operations

For the Period Ended August 31, 2023

2023 2023 Favorable Favorable

YTD YTD (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)

Actual Budget $ Variance

Beginning Cash Balance‐Unrestricted/Held by Mgmt Agent $290,115

Beginning Cash Balance‐Designated 0

Beginning Cash Balance‐Restricted 9,300

  Total Beginning Resources $299,415

Tenant Revenue $206,488 $166,166 $40,322 24.3% (1)

Operating Subsidy from HUD‐PH 247,220                        260,104                        (12,885)                         (5.0%)

Other Operating Income 1,527                             745                                782                                105.0%

  Total Operating Income 455,236                        427,016                        28,220                          6.6%

Salaries (102,120)                       (89,450)                         (12,670)                         (14.2%) (2)

Benefits (39,268)                         (40,931)                         1,662                             4.1%

Occupancy Expenses (244,737)                       (202,016)                       (42,721)                         (21.1%) (3)

Other Social Service Expenses (5,470)                           (607)                               (4,863)                           (800.8%) (4)

Administrative Expenses (78,027)                         (87,755)                         9,728                             11.1% (5)

  Total Operating Expenses (469,622)                       (420,760)                       (48,863)                         (11.6%)

Operating Cash Flow (14,387)                         6,256                             (20,643)                         (330.0%)

Non‐Operating Income 39,509                          108,537                        (69,028)                         (63.6%) (6)

Non‐Operating Expenses (4,572)                           ‐                                 (4,572)                           n/a

Capital Expenditures (45,524)                         (103,980)                       58,456                          56.2% (6)

Change in Designated Cash ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 n/a

Change in Restricted Cash 50                                  ‐                                 50                                  n/a

Transfers In/Out ‐                                 ‐                                 ‐                                 n/a

Others Sources/(Uses of Cash) (37,098)                         ‐                                 (37,098)                         n/a (7)

  Non Operating Net Sources (Uses) of Cash (47,635)                         4,557                             (52,192)                         (1,145.2%)

Net Change in Unrestricted Cash (62,022)                         $10,813 ($72,835) (673.6%)

Ending Cash Balance‐Unrestricted/Held by Mgmt Agent $228,093

Ending Cash Balance‐Designated 0

Ending Cash Balance‐Restricted 9,250

  Total Ending Resources $237,343

1) Dwelling rents were higher than expected. Rents are calculated based on income.
2) Salaries expense was higher than budget. Staff at the portfolio office were assigned to assist in preparations for the HUD Monitoring Review
3) Due to unplanned plumbing expenses totalling $20K at Cedar Grove and $9.5K at Hillsview. A main sewer line at Cedar Grove had a couple of line breaks and 

blockages that was causing backups into a unit. The sprinkler backflow device at Hillsview needed to be replaced as directed by the utility provider. Also, 
Regional Mainateance Staff expense was higher than budget in preparations for REAC Inspection. In addition, $14K in abatement charges occurred due to a 
Hillsview unit being severly exposed to meth use. These are slightly offset by camera installations project that were expected to occur in the third or fourth 
quarter.

4) Unbudgeted relocation expense for a family that was displaced when the sewer line broke and sewage was backing up.
5) Mainly due to timing of audit fees. The fees for the 2022 annual audit was paid in October.
6) Three unit upgrades were budgeted for 2023, but only one project was completed as unit upgrades depend on availability. This resulted in a lower draw from 

the CFP grant.  
7) Mainly due to decreases in accounts payable and contract retensions ($38K), deferred rent revenue ($12K)  offset by decrease in prepaid insurance ($18K).



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
9 



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Housing Management Report 

 

 
Page 1 of 2 

August 2023 -October 2023 

Vacancy Report 
 Vacates Housings Completed Upgrades 

Hillsview 2 1 1 

Cedar Grove 2 0 0 
 

Average Unit Turnover Rates  
Current Unit Turnover Rate (UTO) is 12 days.  

 Hillsview 
o Unit 353 On Notice end of October  
o Unit 112 Housed 9/28/203 

 Cedar Grove 
o Cedar Grove III 628 Jennings in Upgrade 
o Cedar Grove II Unit 1419 4th –On Notice 

 

Current Applications of Wait List as of September 30, 2023  

Hillsview Applicants 

Claiming 

Preference 

Elderly/Disabled 

Claiming 

Preference 

Non-Preference 

Applicants 

Total 

1 Bedroom 93 60 61 154 

 

Cedar 

Grove 

Preference Non-Preference Total 

2 Bedrooms                          194 28 222 

3 Bedrooms 13 14 27 

4 Bedrooms 3 0 3 

Total                          210                          42 252 

 
Preference Definitions: 

1. Rent burden – person is paying more than 50% of income in rent 
2. Family lives in substandard housing - homeless or condition of unit substandard 
1. Involuntary displacement – disaster, government action, housing owner action, domestic violence, etc. 
2. Rent burden – person is paying more than 50% of income in rent 
3. Family lives in substandard housing - homeless or condition of unit substandard 
4. Involuntary displacement – disaster, government action, housing owner action, domestic violence, etc. 

 



SEDRO-WOOLLEY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Housing Management Report 

 

 
Page 2 of 2 

Work Orders 
  

Routine Inspection Emergency Vacate RA Total 
Hillsview 27 9 0 1 0 37 

Cedar Grove I 2 7 0 0 0 9 

Cedar Grove II 15 11 0 1 0 26 
Cedar Grove III 8 4 0 0 0 12 

Cedar Grove 
(all sites) 

25 31 0 1 0 1 

Total 52 31 0 2 0 85 

 
 
Resident Functions 
Community Action Energy Assistance Program 10/27/23 
 

Staffing 
Interviews the Assistant Property manager were held Monday 10/9/2023. 
 

Previous Meeting Concerns 
 None 

 

Resident Issues 

 Management is working through the eviction process with legal for Hillsview #341. We are now moving 
forward with the show cause hearing.  

 

Building Issues 

Hillsview has received bids to repair the DHP unit that cools the Elevator. Hillsview has also received quote 
to repair all deficiencies found during annual Smith Fire inspection.   Cedar Grove still has issues with Tree root 
encroachment, this has been indicated in the contract bid from Skagit Landscaping. 

Routine Inspection Emergency Vacate RA Total

Hillsview 23 10 3 1 0 37

Cedar Grove I 5 3 0 0 0 5

Cedar Grove II 0 1 0 0 0 1

Cedar Grove III 4 0 0 0 0 4

Cedar Grove (all sites) 11 4 0 0 0 13

Total 43 18 3 0 0 60

Routine Inspection Emergency Vacate RA Total

Hillsview 23 10 3 1 0 37

Cedar Grove I 5 3 0 0 0 5

Cedar Grove II 0 1 0 0 0 1

Cedar Grove III 4 0 0 0 0 4

Cedar Grove (all sites) 11 4 0 0 0 13

Total 43 18 3 0 0 60



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
10 



1 of 2 

Sedro-Wooley Housing 

Authority Inventory Policy 

Effective Date: November 1, 2023 

Review Date: August 21, 2023 

I. Introduction

In accordance with Federal Regulations 2 CFR 200.313 it is necessary for Sedro-Wooley 
Housing Authority (SWHA) to conduct a physical inventory of its properties at least every 
two years. In order to provide consistency in recording, valuation, and reporting of 
inventories, this guideline has been developed for use as a reference.

Adherence to these procedures will  ensure  each physical inventory will be properly 
conducted, valued, and reported. 

II. Planning

The physical inventory should be conducted as close to December 31st fiscal year-end as
possible. Regardless of when it is conducted, schedule a sufficient amount of time to
properly conduct the inventory. Keep in mind that a sufficient number of qualified people
must also be available during that time to conduct the inventory. The assigned property
manager will be responsible for planning, coordinating, conducting, and reporting the
inventory. All inventory items on hand should be properly located prior to the actual
beginning of the inventory count.

If possible, the area where the inventory is to be conducted should be closed during the
actual inventory. This will necessitate prior notification to persons who may use products
being inventoried. Once the inventory dates have been decided upon, two-person
inventory counting teams should be established. Persons who participate in the inventory
count should not also have continuing regular responsibility for that inventory.

During the first inventory count, an inventory count sheet will be prepared and items
categorized by cost (lower of cost or market value) and physical location and by major
classification.

III. Procedures

If the area is closed during the inventory, signs to that effect should be clearly posted.
Sales or receipts of new goods should not occur during the inventory if possible. Inventory
should not be moved during the process, so as to prevent double counting the inventory or
exclusion from the count.

Inventory teams should proceed methodically according to plan, with one person calling
out the item and quantity, and other person recording the information on the count sheet.
The items should be marked as they are counted to ensure that all items are included
without duplication.



2 of 2 

Opened containers are not generally included as inventory. For example, a box of paper 
contains paper reams which should be included, but open reams should not be included. 
The inventory team should clearly document the criteria used to determine what is and is 
not included.  

The inventory recorded should then be compared with the previous records if they are 
kept, and any material adjustments should be recorded by the Finance Department. The 
perpetual records should be adjusted to reflect the periodic records exactly, as of the 
inventory date. 

IV. Reporting

The final report will reflect the general types or categories of goods inventoried, the costs
of each category, the method used to value the inventory if not the lower of cost or the
market value, and the total inventory value. The final inventory report should be prepared
by the assigned staff and approved by the property manager. Copies are to be sent to
Property Management and Finance by the established deadline. The report will be used to
adjust financial records to reflect an accurate valuation of inventory. The inventory count
sheets should be retained by the department for three fiscal years then may be destroyed.

V. Conclusion

All inventories are subject to audit at any time by either internal or external auditors. Adherence to
established inventory procedures and guidelines is necessary to ensure accurate financial reporting.

Contact Property Management or Finance if you should have any questions.



T 
A 
B 

 
N 
U 
M 
B 
E 
R 

 
11 



 

1 

Cost Allocation Plan  
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority 

 

1.0 Introduction 

Located in Skagit County, Washington, the city of Sedro-Woolley officially merged the neighboring 
towns of Sedro and Woolley when it incorporated over 100 years ago.  With a local population of 
approximately 11,690, SWHA currently operates two public housing developments—Hillsview and 
Cedar Grove. These two developments total 80 units and serve a diversified population including 
senior, disabled and family households.  

The King County Housing Authority (KCHA) has a long-standing contract to manage and assist the 
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority.  SWHA has its own Board of Commissioners, which is responsible 
for approving its operating and capital budgets and overseeing programs.  SWHA reimburses KCHA 
for the direct operating expenses of the two public housing developments.  In addition, SWHA also 
pays a fee for administrative services provided by KCHA. 

Objective of Cost Allocation Plan  
The purpose of this cost allocation plan is to summarize, in writing, the methods and procedures 
that this organization, Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA), will use to define and allocate 
costs to various programs, grants, contracts, agreements and other costs objectives.  
 
The U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) has established principles and standards for 
determining allowable direct and indirect cost for Federal awards. Specifically, 2 CFR 200 Subpart E 
“Cost Principles” establishes the principles for determining costs of grants, contracts, and other 
agreements with the Federal Government. These principles also apply, by reference, to certain 
contracts.  
 
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority’s Cost Allocation Plan is based on the allocation methods and 
standards described in 2 CFR 200: Uniform Guidance: Cost principles, Audit and Administrative 
Requirements for Federal Awards - Subpart E – Cost Principles and Appendix V to Part 200 – 
State/Local Government wide Central Service Cost Allocation Plans. Only costs that are allowable, 
in accordance with the cost principles, will be allocated to final cost objectives.  

 Direct costs are those that can be identified specifically with a particular final cost 
objective.  

 Indirect costs are those that have been incurred for common or joint objectives and cannot 
be readily identified with a particular contract, program, or final cost objective.  

 
  



 

2 

Organizational Structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notes:  
The King County Housing Authority Central Office is located at 600 Andover Park West, Tukwila, 
Washington 98188.  
 
Leased Housing  

 The property office of Hillsview and Cedar Grove is located at 830 Township Street, Sedro-
Woolley.  

 
 

2.0 Cost Objectives  

Cost Objectives are programs, functions, activities, awards, contracts, organizational divisions, or 
work units for which cost data is needed by SWHA to support federal, state and local requirements 
or for monitoring and reporting needs.  
 
Final Cost Objectives are cost objectives that contain both direct and allocated indirect costs, 
which will not be subsequently allocated or added into another cost objective. SWHA has identified 
the following Final Cost Objectives:  
 
Leased Housing  

1. Low Rent Public Housing – Operations – Cedar Grove 

2. Low Rent Public Housing – Operations - Hillsview  
3. Capital Fund Program by Grant Year - Cedar Grove  
4. Capital Fund Program by Grant Year – Hillsview 

  

BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS 

KING COUNTY 
HOUSING 

AUTHORITY 

LEASED HOUSING 

HILLSVIEW CEDAR GROVE 



 

3 

3.0 Charging of Costs to Cost Objectives  

As is the common practice, SWHA’s cost allocation plan is organized by cost type (e.g., personnel 
compensation, supplies, equipment, insurance, telephone, etc.) and then by allocation method. This 
section provides information on each cost type, identifies the cost as either direct or indirect, and 
the method used to allocate costs to the agency’s program and/or projects (final cost objective).  
 

1. Indirect Costs  
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority (SWHA) has contracted with King County Housing Authority to 
manage and operate its properties.  It pays monthly management and bookkeeping fees to cover all 
associated indirect costs including but not limited to general administration and program overhead.  
These fees are based on HUD published Schedule of 80th Percentile of Property Management Fees in 
FHA Housing by Field Office, for Unlimited Dividend, Limited Dividend and Non-Profit Ownership 
Types.  Bookkeeping fees shall be set as authorized under HUD’s original Asset Management 
guidelines, which may be inflated annually using the Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-W for the 
Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue area, as published for June for each year.   
 

2. Direct Costs  
Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority has the following direct costs: 

(a) Personnel  
(b) Other Costs 

 
Personnel 
 
1. Non-Allocated Salary and Wages: N/A Salaries and benefits are charged directly to the final 

cost objective (Hillsview and Cedar Grove) for those leased housing staff that work in only one 
final cost objective. 

 
2. Allocation Method 1: Leased Housing Property Manager. Salary and benefits for the Leased 

Housing Property Manager are charged directly to the final cost objective (Hillsview and Cedar 
Grove) based on the number of SWHA units in the Ballinger portfolio. 

 

3. Allocation Method 2: Central Application Center (CAC). Salary and benefits for the CAC staff 
are charged to the final cost objective based on the number of units at SWHA as a percentage of 
the number of all units served by the CAC. 

 
4. Allocation Method 3: Property Specialist. Salary and benefits for the Property Specialist is 

charged directly to the final cost objective (Hillsview and Cedar Grove) based on the total 
number units at each site. 

 
5. Allocation Method 4: Site Based Maintenance Mechanic (SBMM). Salary and benefits for the 

SBMM is charged directly to the final cost objective (Hillsview and Cedar Grove) based on the 
total number units at each site.  

 
Benefits are allocated in the same manner as salaries and wages. 
 

 
  



 

4 

Other Costs 
 
1. Allocation Method 1: All Housing Management Properties (Fund 906) Includes cost such as 

prepaid insurance, professional services, administrative contracts and general liability 
insurance; allocation based on the number of units within all Housing Management properties. 

 
2. Allocation Method 2: Sedro-Woolley (Fund 910) Includes costs such as uniforms, admin 

supplies, vehicle, background checks, insurance, occupancy expenses; allocation based on 
number of units between Cedar Grove and Hillsview. 

 
3. Allocation Method 3: Ballinger Portfolio with Sedro-Woolley (Fund 911) Communications 

expenses such cell phones and internet, Property Manager training; allocation based on number 
of units within the Ballinger Portfolio.  

 

4. Allocation Method 4: All KCHA Managed Properties except Tax Credit Properties (Fund 
952) Mail, postage, telecommunication, ethernet network; allocation based on number of units 
of all KCHA managed properties excluding tax credit properties. 

 
5. Allocation Method 5: Central Applications Center (Fund 954) Central Applications Center 

(CAC) staff salaries and benefits, administrative expenses relating to the CAC such as 
background checks, equipment, insurance, etc.; allocation based on number of units served by 
the CAC. 

 
6. Allocation Method 6: KCHA Managed Senior Buildings (Fund 977) Primarily used for 

expenses related to senior buildings such COVID 19 preparedness; allocation based on number 
of units in all KCHA managed Senior Buildings. 

 
7. Allocation Method 7: Technology (Fund 980) Includes expenses such computer software, 

EDP (electronic data processing) insurance; allocation based on number of KCHA 
units/vouchers as well as portion to the central office cost center. 

 

 
 

4.0 Certificate of Cost Allocation Plan  

This is to certify that I have reviewed the cost allocation plan herewith and to the best of my 
knowledge and belief:  
 
(1) All costs included in this proposal as of 6/16/2023 to establish cost allocations or billings for 

the period 01/01/2023 – 12/31/2023 are allowable in accordance with the requirements of 
this Part and the Federal award(s) to which they apply. Unallowable costs have been adjusted 
for in allocating costs as indicated in the cost allocation plan.  

(2) All costs included in this proposal are properly allocable to Federal awards on the basis of a 
beneficial or causal relationship between the expenses incurred and the Federal awards to 
which they are allocated in accordance with applicable requirements. Further, the same costs 
that have been treated as indirect costs have not been claimed as direct costs. Similar types of 
costs have been accounted for consistently. 

 
  



 

5 

I declare that the foregoing is true and correct.  
 
Governmental Unit: Sedro-Woolley Housing Authority  
 
Signature:  
 
Name of Official:  Saeed Hajarizadeh 
Title: EVP Administrative Services - Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Date of Execution:  
 
 

 


	Final SWHA 2022 Audit.pdf
	Sedro 2022 update3
	SWHA BS
	SWHA IS

	SWHA Financials Board Memo and Financials_August  2023.pdf
	aSWHA Financials Board Memo_2023-08
	zSedro New FS concept 2023-8-31




